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NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 72 OF 1951. 

NGWEKULU v. MANO. 

PRETORIA: 11th September, 1951. Before Steenkamp, President; 
Balk and Smithers, Members of the Court. 

BA VEND A CUSTOM. 
Native customary union-Widow, past child-bearing age, electing 

to return to her people after her husband's death-Whether 
lobolo refundable. 
Summary: A widow, past child-bearing age, after the death 

of her husband, whom she had borne children, elected to 
return to the kraal of her own people, whereupon her late 
husband's heir sued for the return of lobolo paid for her. 

Held: That there is no obligation, under Venda custom, on 
the father of a widow or on such other person as would 
have been her guardian if she had not contracted a customary 
union, to restore the lobolo paid for her by her late 
husband, on her return to her father or such other person 
if she is past child-bearing age, and she has borne her late 
husband children. 

Held further: That the above opinion expressed by the 
majority of the Native Assessors, and accepted by the Court 
as correctly setting out the custom of the tribe to which 
the parties belong, as practised at present, is not opposed 
to the principles of public policy and natural justice. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Sibasa. 
Balk (Permanent Member), delivering the judgment of the 

Court:-
This is an appeal by the defendant against an Assistant Native 

Commissioner's judgment for plaintiff "for the return of woman 
Nyatshikalanga failing which return of lobolo paid, viz.: 8 head 
of C(l.ttle and 6 sheep or their value, and payment of £62 
received by defendant as lobolo for Mirianne, and costs". 

Defendant is the person who would be the guardian of 
Nyatshikalanga, the widow of the late Ngwekulu, if her 
customary union with the latter were dissolved; Mirianne is the 
daughter o!; the late Ngwekulu by Nyatshikalanga, and plaintiff 
is the son and heir of the late Ngwekulu. 

There is no substance in the appeal in so far as the portion 
of the judgment awarding olaintiff £62 is conc;erned, as defendant, 
both in his plea and evidence, admitted liability for this sum, 
being the amount received by him as lobolo for Mirianne, and 
there is no question ~ of set-off since defencfant's counterclaim for 
the balance ·of Nyatshikalanga's lobolo fails as is apparent from 
what follows. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner was justified in his finding 
that eight head of cattle and six sheep had been paid by the 
late Ngwekulu as full lobolo for Nyatshikalanga on the evidence 
of plaintiff's witnesses, coupled with-

(a) defendant's unconvincing reasons for his failure to claim 
over a period of many years dating back to Ngwekulu's 
death in April, 1936, the balance of the lobolo alleged 
by him to be still outstanding for Nyatshikalanga in 
respect of her customary union to the late Ngwekulu; 

(b) defendant's admission that he claimed the balance of 
Nyatshikalanga's lobolo from plaintiff for the first time 
after he (defendant) had received the £62 referred to above 
as lobolo for Mirianne; and 

le) the weakness of the evidence of defendant's witnesses. 
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It is also clear from the evidence that Nyatshikalanga has left 
the plaintiff's kraal and is residing at the defendant's kraal. 

According to the opinion of the majority of the Bavenda 
Assessors in this case, there is, under their custom, no obligation 
on the father of a widow or on such other person as would have 
been her guardian if she had not contracted a customary union, 
to restore the lobolo paid for her by her late husband on her 
return to her father or to such other person if she is past child­
bearing age and she has borne her late husband children. 

This Court accepts this expression of opinion as correctly setting 
out the relevant custom of the tribe to which the parties in this 
action betong. as practised at present, and, considers that it is 
not opposed to the principles of public policy and natural justice. 

It follows that the plaintiff is not entitled to have the lobolo 
paid for Nyatshikalanga by her late husband restored to him 
if she prefers to remain with her own people rather than return 
to him, and the appeal against the judgment on the plaintiff's 
second claim must therefore succeed. 

Whilst it is implicit in the Assistant Native Commissioner's 
judgment that he found for the defendant-in-reconvention on the 
counterclaim, this inference does not suffice, and that finding 
should be specifically set out in his judgment. 

In the result the appeal is allowed with costs and the Assis­
tant Native Commissioner's judgment is altered to read as 
follows:-

" On the first claim in convention, for plaintiff in the sum 
of £62 with costs. 

On the second claim in convention, for defendant wi th 
costs. 

On the counterclaim, for defendant-in-reconvention with 
costs." 

Steenkamp (President):-
Two of the three Ravenda Assessors are emphatic that when a 

widow past child-bearing age goes to live at her people's kraal, 
the heir of her late husband will ask her to return, but if she 
refuses, nothing further will be done and the return of the 
lobolo paid for her will not be demanded. 

The other Assessor seems to hold the view that she must spend 
her whole life at the kraal of her late husband and if she 
refuses to do so the lobolo must be returned to the heir of her 
late husband. 

The opinion given by the majority would appear to conform 
to what can be termed " natural justice" as any other view 
would be tantamount to placing an undue hardship on widows 
who have served their late husbands well by bearing children. I 
also think that natural justice demands that no unqualified 
restrictions should be placed on any old widow to have the right 
to choose the place where she wants to spend the declining years 
without penalising her people to return the lobolo paid for her. 
If we accept the opinion of the minority, then the life of a 
widow could be compared to something bordering on serfdom, 
and so long as she does not act in an unreasonable manner, I 
do not see why she should not be treated as a free human 
being. 

Native Assessors. 

I. Chief Adolf Mhinga, Sibasa, Shangaan. 
2. Chief Johannes Shigalo, Sibasa, Shangaan. 
3. Jacob Mabulela, Louis Trichardt, Shangaan. 
4. Headman Matsila, Louis Trichardt, Bavenda. 
5. Robert Nethengwe, Sibasa, Bavenda. 
6. Petros Mogeri, Louis Trichardt, Bavenda. 
Question: When a man who is married to a woman by Native 

law, and custom dies, and she decides, after his death, to go 
and live with her people, may she do so? I mean, if the woman 
is past child-bearing a~:e. 
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Answer: 
Chief Adolf Mhinga: According to the Shangaan custom, if 

this woman whose husband has died, wants to go to her home, 
she may do so, provided there are no brothers of the deceased 
husband. If she is past child-bearing age, she may not return 
to her people, because she will have her own children to look 
after her. 

Chief Johannes Shigalo and Jacob Mabulela agree. 
Headman Matsila: According to Bavenda custom, it is not so. 

She must remain where she was married until she dies, i.e. at 
her husband's k:raal. 

Robert Nethengwe and Petros Mogeri: Agree, i.e. she must 
stay at her late husband's kraal. 

Question: If she, of her own choice, goes and stays with her 
people, what happens about the lobolo? 

Answer: 
Chief Mhinga, Shingalo and Mabulela: If she chooses of her 

own, she must agree with her people to return the lobolo. 
Matsila and Nethengwe: If she should go home of her own 

choice to her father, he will not say "Go back to where you 
were married " but he will wait for those people who had 
married her to come and report why she had returned to her 
people. If she has had children the lobolo is not returned to 
the husband's people, but if she has had no children, then the 
lobolo is returned. 

Mogeri: After she has gone to her people, we then go to the 
woman's father and ask him for her to be replaced by another 
girl. If he does not agree to this, then we ask for the return 
of the lobolo. If she goes back to her people on her own 
accord we first report to them, but if she does not satisfy us we 
ask for the return of the lobolo. 

Question: You don't agree with the last two Assessors who 
say the lobolo is not returned to the husband's people? 

Answer: Mogeri: No, I don't agree with them. Even if she 
had children the lobolo is returned. 

Question: I want to ask the Shangaan Assessors: You say the 
lobolo is returned. Is the full lobolo returned or is a deduction 
made for children born of the union? 

Answer: 
Mhinga, Shigalo and Mabulela: There are deductions made for 

children. A beast remains if she has one child. There is a 
difference, based on whether the child is a boy or girl. If the 
child is a girl, 2 head of cattle are retained, and if a boy, only 
one beast. 

Mogeri: We take everything, i.e. the children and the lobolo. 
There is nothing deducted. 

Question: Do I understand you ~o mean that the late husband's 
people must get back all the lobolo and retain the children as 
well? 

Mogeri: The children and the lobolo must be returned 
because the woman should come back to her late husband's 
people. If she refuses to come back, then everything belongs 
to the late husband's people. 

Matsila and Nethengwe questioned: You two say that when 
a woman is old and she returns to her people, then her late 
husband's people cannot get the lobolo, if she has had children? 

Answer: They don't ask for the lobolo, because the childr'!n 
remain at the husband's kraal. 

Question: Do any of you know Chief Kinge Rasagane? 
Answer: Most of us do. 

Question: Can you tell us what practice obtains in his area? 
If a widow, having had children, after her husband's death 
ret~rns to her own people, which law is followed in Chief Kinge'~ 
terntory? 
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Answer: The Venda practice is followed there and also in 
Headman Ngwekulu's country. 

Question: I want to ask the Shan~aan Assessors another 
question. If a widow who has borne children and would like to 
go and live with her own people and her late husband's heir 
gives her consent to go and live there, does that make any 
difference? 

Answer: 
Mhinga: If there has been an agreement with the heir that 

this widow can go to her people's home, then there is no quarrel, 
and we shall keep on going to see her. 

Mabulela: That is so, but the only trouble will be when she 
begins to have friends when she is at her people's home; I mean 
men friends. 

Adv. van der Spuy to Bavendas: If a woman is married into 
another kraal for 32 years and stayed there all her life and borne 
children, and then leaves, is it usqal for one of the sons of this 
kraal to claim the return of this old woman? 

Answer: Matsila: The woman has no right whatsoever to 
leave the kraal and go back to her home, so that once she leaves 
the kraal and goes back to her people, they have the right to go 
to her people's home and ask for her return, but if ~he refuses, 
they cannot claim return of lobolo. 

For Appellant: Adv. van der Spuy, instructed by Messrs. 
Metelerkamp, Ritson & Keel, Pretoria. 

Respondent in default. 

NOHTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 46 / 51. 

DHLAI\11:"1 1·. MAHLAHA. 

DuRBAN: 31st October, 1951. Re fore Steenkamp, President; Ralk 
and Lawrence, Members of the Court. 

COMMON LA \V. 
Practice and Procedure-Appeal to Appellate Di1•ision-No reason­

able prospect of success. In pari delicto rule. 
Summary: Plaintiff had authorised defendant to collect certain 

rents from tenants to recoup himself to the extent of 
£90. 6s. 9d. lent by defendant to plaintiff. 

Defendant collected in all £250 from those tenants and 
plaintiff claimed the amount collected in excess of £90. 6s. 9d. 
The Native Commissioner's judgment in favour of defendant 
was reversed on appeal by the Native Appeal Court. 

Defendant now applies for consent to apply for leave to 
appeal to the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court. 

Held: That as it is clear that the defendant took improper 
advantage of the mandate given to him by the plaintiff to 
recoup himself to the extent of the loan by means of the 
rentals in question, to misappropriate further of those rentals, 
there can be no doubt that public policy in this instance 
demands a relaxation of the in pari delicto rule in the plain­
tiff's favour. 

Held further: That in view of the above the applicant cannot be 
said to have a reasonable prospect of success on further appeal 
on the merits of the case and that the application for the 
consent of this Court to apply for leave to appeal to the 
Appellate Division should be refused. 



7 

Cases referred to: 
Estate Kaluza v. Braeuer, 1926, A.D ., 243 . 
Haine v. Podlashuc & Nicholson, 1933, A.D., 104. 
De Wet v. Union Government, 1933, A.D., 200. 
Jajbhay v. Cassim, 1939, A.D., 540. 
Kramer v. Coloured Vigilance Committee, Grassy Park, 1948 

(1) S.A. 1233 (A.D.). 
Kriegler v. Minitzer & Anr., 1949 (4) S.A. 821 (A.D.). 
Padayachey v. Lebese, 1942, T.P.D. 10. 

Statutes referred to: 
Section 18 of Act No. 38 of 1927. 
Sections 1, 9 (5) and 46 (2) of Act No. 25 of 1945. 
Proclamation No. 29 of 1937. 

Application for consent to apply for leave to appeal to the 
Appellate Division of the Supreme Court against the reversal 
on appeal of a judgment of the Court ot Native Commis­
sioner, Durban. 

Balk (Permanent Member). 
This is an applica tion for the consent of this Court, in terms of 

section eighteen of the Native Administration Act , 1927, to apply 
for leave to appeal to the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court 
in consequence of the reversal by this Court of the judgment given 
in a certain action by a Native Commissioner's Court in favour 
of the defendant (present applicant) after the hearing of an appeal 
brought by the plaintiff (present respondent). 

The pleadings in that action and the findings thereupon by the 
Court a quo and this Court, as well as the respective reasons for 
those findings, are set out in the judgment of this Court delivered 
on the 25th July, 1951. 

The money and cottage in issue in the action in question are 
obviously so substantial in relation to the costs of the contem­
plated appeal as to constitute an amount of real or substantial 
importance between the parties, so that all that remains is to 
ascertain whether or not the applicant has a reasonable prospect 
of success on further appeal on the merits of the case, vide De Wet 
v. Union Government , 1933 , A.D., 200. 

The points which the applicant desires should be stated by this 
Court for consideration by the Appellate Division of the Supreme 
Court, are-

" (a) whether, having regard to the findings of fact which were 
arrived at by the Native Commissioner, this Honourable 
Court did not misdirect itself in reversing those findings 
of fact; 

(b) whether this Honourable Court misdirected itself in its find­
ing with regard to the onus of proof in the proceedings 
between respondent and me; 

(c) wheter this Honourable Court was correct in its finding 
with regard to the Plea of illegality which had been set up 
by me in the said Court of the Native Commissioner-

(i) that there was uncertainty that there had been an 
infringement of the Natives (Urban Areas) Act, 1945; 
or 

(ii) that respondent was entitled to claim and recover 
from me the amount claimed by him on the grounds 
stated in the judgment of this Honourable Court 
delivered by His Honour Balk, Permanent Member." 

Counsel for the applicant intimated that he did not press point 
(a) unless it was found by this Court that there was substance in 
point (b) , in which event the reversal by this Court on appeal of 
the findings of fact by the Court a quo would fall to be recon­
sidered on further appeal in the light of the altered incidence 
of the onus of proof as regards the alleged sale of the cottage in 
question; in other words, the question whether the plaintiff had 
discharged that onus if it rested on him instead of on the defen­
dant, would then have to be considered. 



8 

It was contended by Counsel for the applicant that this Court 
was wrong in its conclusion that the onus of proof regarding that 
sale rested on the defendant in that on the pleadings it was incum­
bent on the plaintiff to prove that he was the owner of the cottage 
in issue at all material times even though this involved his proving 
a negative. Kriegler v. Minitzer and Another, 1949 (4), S.A. 821 
(A.D.) was the authority reljed upon in furtherance of this con­
tention. 

In that action the plaintiff. in claiming in a Magistrate's Court, 
the balance of the purchase price of a certain building, alleged 
that he had performed his part of the agreement-a verbal one 
which had been entered into whilst that building was in the course 
of construction-and that the defendants were consequently bound 
to pay the full purchase price therefor. The defendants pleaded 
that a certain representation, which they alleged was an express 
term of the agreement in question, had been made by the plaintiff 
as to the subject matter of the sale, viz., that the plaintiff had 
bound himself to deliver to the defendants a buildi.ng which con­
tained a balcony and a staircase, that he had subsequently refused 
to provide the balcony and staircase and that, not having per­
formed hi9 obligations, he was not entitled to performance by the 
defendants of their reciprocal obligations. No reply was filed to 
this plea. On appeal to the Appellate Division of the Supreme 
Court it was held that the onus rested on the plaintiff to prove that 
what he had sold was a building without a balcony and staircase. 
It is important to note for the purposes of the present application 
that it was held in Kriegler's case that that case was distinguishable 
from the decision in Estate Kaluza v. Braeuer, 1926, A.D., 243, 
because-
" (a) from the record (of the last-mentioned case) it appears that 

the appellant alleged, without any qualification, a sale by 
auction on the 22nd April of cattle by him to the respon­
dent which the respondent without qualification admitted, 
but in a later paragraph he alleged a prior agreement on 
the 6th April between the partie~ to the effect that the 
purchas,. price of any cattle bought by him at the auction 
sale slvmfd be set off against a debt due by the deceased 
to th,. respondent; 

(b) apart from any question of pleading. the respondent was rely­
ing on a prior agreement which modified the liability that 
would otherwise have rested on him under the contract 
of the 22nd April and, as in the case of a condition prece­
dent, the onus reste.s.l on him to prove it." 

(See the report of Kriegler's case at pages 826 and 827.) 
In the present instance the plaintiff's case is that he is the 

owner of a certain cottage situate at 231 Booth Road, Durban 
(hereinafter referred to as " the cottage "), that he had authorised 
the defendant to collect rentals as from the 1st December, 1948. 
from the tenants thereof to recoup himself to the extent of 
£90. 6s. 9d. lent by the defendant to the plaintiff, that the defen­
dant collected rentals from those tenants in the sum of £250 and 
that his (plaintiff's) claim is in respect of the excess of such rentals 
collected by the defendant over and above the amount of the 
said loan, i.e. the difference between £250 and £90. 6s. 9d. and for 
an order restraining the defendant from further collecting rents 
from the tenants concerned. The defendant in the relevant portion 
of his plea denied both that the plaintiff was the owner of the 
cottage and that he (defendant) had been authorised by the plain­
tiff to collect any rent from the tenants concerned and averred 
that he (defendant) was the owner of the cottage as he had pur­
chased it from the plaintiff. 

It is common cause that the cottage stands on land owned by 
third persons, i.e. the Shahs. The evidence does not disclose the 
manner in which the cottage is affixed to the soil and it is therefore 
not clear whether in law it constitutes movable or immovable 
property. It is obvious, however, from the pleadings and the rele­
vant findings by the Court a quo, that the cottage was regarded 
as a movable. However that may be, the matter to be determined 
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is the right to the cottage as between the parties and from the 
nature of the case, as disclosed by the pleadings and evidence, 
it seems immaterial whether the cottage constitutes movable or 
immovable property. 

It is clear from the pleadings that the sale of the cottage alleged 
by the defendant was not a term of the agreement relied upon by 
the plaintiff. Moreover it emerges from the evidence for the 
defendant that his case is that t!l_e alleged sale was concluded 
before the loan of £90. 6s. 9d. was effected, this loan beil!g com­
mon cause. In this connection it must be mentioned that under 
the rules of Native Commissioners' Courts applicable in this case 
(now superseded by new Rules) pleadings were not always precise, 
there being no provision for exceptions or objections thereto, no 
doubt so that illiterate Natives appearing in those Courts without 
legal assistance should not be hampered by technicalities in bring­
ing or defending their actions. Consequently it is frequently 
necessary to have recourse to the evidence to ascertain precisely 
what the parties' cases are. 

Reverting to the present case, it is obvious that, if the alleged 
sale was concluded before the loan was effected, as averred in the 
evidence for the defendant, the agreement relied upon by the plain­
tiff, viz., that the loan was to be repaid by means of the rentals 
derived from the cottage, and the agreement of sale relied upon 
by the defendant are mutually exclusive. It follows that if the 
plaintiff proves the agreement relied upon by him he thereby 
disproves the agreement of sale relied upon by the defendant, and 
vice versa. It is manifest that since the alleged sale in the present 
case was not a term of the agreement relied upon by the plain­
tiff, the decision in Kriegler's case (supra) regarding the onus 
of proof is distinguishable from the present case in the same way 
as the decision in Kaluza's case (supra) is distinguishable from 
Kriegler's case as is clear from the relevant portion of the judg­
ment in the last-mentioned case set out above. It follows that 
the conclusion reached by this Court that the onus of proof as 
regards the sale alleged by the defendant rested on him cannot 
be regarded as wrong. In any event, as pointed out above, the 
agreement relied upon by the plaintiff and that relied upon by 
the defendant are mutually exclusive so that if the plaintiff was 
properly held to have discharged the onus of proof resting on 
him, viz., if it were properly found that the agreement regarding 
the repayment of the loan by means of the rentals had been 
proved by him, he thereby disproved the alleged sale. In this 
connection it is necessary to consider point (a) set out above. 

As pointed out in the judgment of this Court referred to above, 
the presiding judicial officer in the Court a quo did not in his 
reasons for judgment comment on the demeanour of the witnesst·.; 
but arrived at his findings solely on the probabilities. It is 
'llso clear from this Court's judgment that no good reason was 
~iven or suggested itself for his rejection of the evidence of the 
plaintiff's witnesses, Mqwebu and Gumede, and that his reason­
ing otherwise was also at fault; further that the probabilities as 
were disclosed by the evidence to have been material, were over­
whelmingly in favour of the plaintiff's version and opposed to that 
of the defendant, with the result that the conclusion reached by 
this Court that the Court a quo was wrong in its findings, was 
inescapable. 

Counsel for the applicant intimated that he had been instructed 
to point out that the finding against the defendant's version pos­
tulated a conspiracy on the latter's part which was against the 
probabilities. But then a finding against the plaintiff's version 
would have the same effect in so far as he (plaintiff) is concerned, 
as it is obvious that in that event he must have entered into a 
conspiracy with his witnesses, Mqwebu and Gumede; and for the 
reasons given at page 15 of this Court's judgment and as con­
ceded by Counsel, the contention advanced on behalf of the 
defendant that it was improbable that he had entered into a con­
spiracy was a two-edged sword in that it was arguable with equal 
force on behalf of the plaintiff that it was just as improbable that 
he had entered into a conspiracy. 
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In my view, therefore, points (a) and (b) are without substance. 
Com,ng to pomt (c), Counsel for the applicant produced and 

referred to Proclamation No. 29 of 1937, which had not been done 
previously. It seems clear from this Proclamation read with the 
provisions of sections nine (5) and forty-six (2) of the Natives 
(Urban Areas) Consolidation Act, 1945, and the definition of 
" Native hostel" in section one of that Act, that the letting of 
the cottage to the Native tenants concerned constituted an illegal 
transaction. Counsel contended that in those circumstances there 
was no duty on the defendant to account for the rentals claimed 
by the plaintiff, referring to The Law of Agency in South Africa 
by De Yilliers and Macintosh at page 10 in support of this con­
tention. But the statement of the law in that publication obviously 
only holds good where the relationship between the parties is one 
of agency. In the present instance the question of agency between 
the parties does not arise, as it is no part of the plaintiff's case 
that he had given the defendant a mandate to collect the rentals 
claimed. On the contrary the plaintiff's case is that the defendant 
had no authority whatsoever to appropriate those rentals, i.e .• my 
rentals paid by the tenants concerned once the loan of £90. 6s. 9d. 
had been satisfied. It follows that in his claim for the rentals 
the plaintiff does not rely on any agreement between him and the 
defendant but seeks to recover money payable to him by the 
tenants concerned which the defendant had appropriated without 
any authority from him. Assumi~. however, that this court was 
wrong in applying the principle that the plaintiff did not have to 
rely on any illegality to recover the rentals claimed by him, in that 
he averred their source both in his claim and evidence, i.e. the 
letting of the cottage to the N:.1tive tenants concerned, and thus 
may be said to have relied on that letting which was an illegal 
transaction, the operaton of the in pari delicto rule still has to be 
consdered as between the plaintiff and the defendant. In other 
words, the Court has to consider whether or not, despite the 
illegal transaction under which the rcntals accrued to the plaintilT 
and in respect of which the defendant was equally guilty in that 
in collecting those rentals he made himself a party to the illegal 
transaction, public policy, which gives due regard to the necessity 
of doing justice between man and man. demanded a relaxation 
of the rule in the plaintiff's favour in this instance. In this con­
nection the following extract from the judgmen: in Padayachey 
v. Lebes.:, 1942, T.P.D., 10, is in point:-

"The question is, as I sec it. whether a purchaser of stolen 
property should be perm;ttcd to enforce the seller's subsequent 
agreement to refund the purchase price of such property sold 
but not delivered, the original 4nlawful transaction having 
been treated as at an end in consequence of such non-delivery. 
The decision in Jajbhay v. Cassim, 1939. A.D .• 540, makes 
this question one of public policy to be determined judicially 
but without precise definition of the limits of public policy. 
The judgments in that case, in overruling the decision in 
Brand! v. Bergstedt, 1917, C.P.D., 344, indicate, as a con­
sideration of public policy, that an injustice would be perpe­
tra:ed if the owner of an animal who parts with possession 
thereof in carrying out a sale thereof in contravention of 
certain statutory provisions, should not only be prohibited 
from suing for the purchase price, but be debarred from 
claiming the return of his animal. On the same basis I 
think that it is against ordinary justice that persons in the 
position of the respondent and Ismail Suliman should be 
enriched by permitting them to retain, as against the appel­
lant. moneys for which they have in fact given no value; and 
in fact it would be in accordance with public policy, as I 
see it, to hold them to any specific subsequent agreement made 
by them to refund such moneys. I therefore consider the first 
ground of defence fails." 

In the present case it is clear that the defendant took improper 
advantage of the mandate given to him by the plaintiff to recoup 
himself to the extent of the loan by means of the rentals in 
question, to misappropriate further of those rentals, viz., those 
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claimed and due to the plaintiff. Applying the principles 
enunciated in Jajbhay's and Padayachey's cases (supra), there can, 
to to my mmd, be no doubt that public policy m this instance 
demands a relaxatiOn of the in pari delicto rule in the plaintiff's 
favour. 

I am therefore of opinion that there is also no substance in 
point (c). That being so, the applicant cannot be said to have a 
reasonable prospect of success on further appeal on the merits 
of the case and in my view therefore the application should be 
refused with costs. 

Lawrence (Member) (Dissentiente):-
1. This is an application in terms of section eighteen of Act No. 

38 of 1927 for leave to appeal to the Appellate Division against a 
decision of this Court delivered on the 25th July, 1951, reversing 
a judgment given by the Native Commissioner of Durban in an 
action in which the abovenamed parties were the defendant and 
plaintiff respectively (hereinafter for convenience referred to as 
such). 

2. The history of the matter is that the plaintiff sued the defen­
dant for £159. 13s. 3d. being the amount alleged to be due to him 
in respect of rents collected by the defendant from plaintiff's 
property in excess of the amount which, in terms of an agreement 
between them, he was entitled to collect. 

3. Defendant pleaded that the agreement on which the action 
was founded was illegal as it was in conflict with the Natives 
(Urban Areas) Act, 1945. Alternatively, he pleaded that the plain­
tiff had no title to sue for the rent of the property as the defen­
dant had become the owner of the property by purchase and was 
"not bound to account to plaintiff in any way". Defendant 
further counterclaimed for an amount of £90. 6s. 9d. stated to 
be due to him on an acknowledgment of debt. 

4. The Native Commissioner gave judgment in favour of the 
defendant on both the main and the counterclaim, holding that 
the defendant had established his purchase of the property in terms 
of the agreement of purchase and sale put in (Exhibit "B" in the 
case) and that plaintiff's indebtedness to defendant for the amount 
of the counterclaim was proved by the acknowledgment of debt 
produced (Exhibit " A" in the case). 

5. On appeal to this Court it was held in a unanimous judg­
ment that the Native Commissioner's finding that the defendant 
had sufficiently established his purchase of the property could 
not be sustained and that the probabilities were strongly in 
favour of plaintiff's contention that no such sale had in fact taken 
place. It was further held that whether or not the leasing of 
rooms in the property in question to Natives constituted an 
infringement of the Natives (Urban Areas) Act, No. 25 of 1945, 
plaintiff was not relying on an illegal transaction for his claim and 
in terms of the authorities quoted in the judgment, was conse­
quently not debarred on that ground from suing. 

6. This Court thereupon reversed the judgment of the Native 
Commissioner which was altered to read:-

" On the claim in convention for plaintiff as prayed with 
costs. On the counterclaim for defendant in reconvention 
with costs." 

7. Leave is now sought by the defendant to appeal to the Appel­
late D:vision on the points as set out m his affidavit annexed to 
the application. 

8. The principles which a Court should apply in deciding a 
question of this nature have been laid down by the Appellate 
Division in Haine v. Podlashuc & Nicolson, 1933, A.D., 104 and 
in numerous subsequent decisions, as follows:- ' 

(i) Whether there is an arguable point in the case which has a 
reasonable prospect of success; 

(ii) whether the matter is of general importance or of real 
or substantial importance to the parties; and 

(iii) whether the amount involved is not trivial in relation to 
the probable costs of the contemplated appeal. 
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9. As regards the first principle enunciated above, the following 
as.pects of the present case must be taken into account:-

(a) This Court differed from the Native Commissioner on a 
question of fact; 

(b) this Court accepted the evidence of witnesses which had 
been rejected by the Native Commissioner, and rejected 
the evidence of others which he accepted; 

(c) the decision of this Court in giving judgment in favour of 
the plaintiff is tantamount to a rejection, as fraudulent or 
at least as of doubtful validity, of a document (i.e. the deed 
of sale 12lJt in) which, on the face of it, is very strong 
evidence of the matters it purports to record. 

10. The reasons for this Court differing from the Native Com­
missioner in these respects will be seen from the full and meticu­
lous judgment of my brother Balk (Permanent .Member) to be 
exceedingly cogent. but the possibility of another Court taking a 
different view of the facts in issue cannot be denied. The first 
principle must therefore be said to apply. 

11. As regards the second and third principles, there can be no 
question that the matter is of very substantial importance to the 
parties and that the amount involved is far from trivial if one 
considers that a property bringing in a rental of £120 per annum 
is in dispute. 

12. For these reasons, I am of opinion that the application for 
leave to appeal to the Appellate Division should be granted. 

Steenkamp (P):-

This is an application for leave to appeal to the Appellate 
Division of the Supreme Court and by virtue_ of section eighteen 
of the Native Administration Act, No. 38 of 1927, consent of 
this Court is sought. 

I am loath to refuse consent especially in a case of this nature 
wherein this Court had reversed the judgm~t of the Native 
Commissioner, but at the same time I must not overlook the fact 
that the Native Commissioner had not approached the issues in 
the correct manner in as much as he had not attached sufficient 
importance to the question of preponderance of probabilities. 

There is also a principle of law involved but this is a question 
which has already been decided by the Appellate Division as 
pointed out by my brother Balk and, to my mind that decision is 
so much in point that there is no necessity to approach the highest 
tribunal of the land to deal with the matter again. 

This Court is placed in somewhat of an invidious position 
having to state whether or not the judgment given by it is open 
to attack [vide remarks by Ogilvie Thomson (J.) in Kramer v. 
Coloured Vigilance Committee, Grassy Park, 1948 (1) S.A., 1233, 
C.P.D.] but as the legislature has imposed that obligation and 
responsibility upon this Court, which has to consider both parties, 
I feel that the costs which would be involved would most 
probably impoverish at least the respondent, concerning whom 
there is evidence that he is or was in financial difficulties. 

After careful consideration I am of opinion that consent by this 
Court should be refused. 

For Applicant: Adv. D. 1. Shaw, i/b :Mr. A. H. Mulla of Dur­
ban. 

For Respondent: Mr. R. I. Arenstein of Durban. 
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NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 111/51. 

NDHLOVU v. MBATA. 

VRYHEID: 7th January, 1952. Before Steenkamp, President; Balk 
and Thompson, Members of the Court. 

ZULU CUSTOM. 
Customary Unions--contracted in Northern Districts of Natal 

after 1903-Pub/ic declaration to official witness. 
Summary: In an alleged customary union entered into after 

1903 in the Northern Districts of Natal no public declaration 
by the intended wife to the Official Witness was made. The 
question as to whether such " union " can be regarded as a 
valid customary union is now in issue. 

Held: That as the Northern Districts were ennexed to Natal in 
1903. the old Natal Code of Native Law contained in the 
Schedule to Law 19 of 1891 (Natal) obtained there as from 
that year. -

Held further: That as the public declaration by the intended 
wife to the Official Witness on the wedding day to the effect 
that the proposed customary union was being entered into 
with her own free will and consent was not made, the 
" union " in this case cannot be regarded as a valid customary 
union. 

Cases referred to:-
Mfanombana v. Fana, 1922, N.H.C., 26. 
Mdhlalose v. Kuba, 1938, N.A.C. (T & N), 43. 
Ngema v. Ndhlela, 1938, N.A.C. (T & N), 210. 

Statutes re/erred to:-
Sections 148 and 151 of the Old Natal Code of Native Law 

contained in the schedule to Law No. 19 of 1891 (Natal). 
Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Utrecht. 
Balk (Permanent Member), delivering the judgment of the 

Court:-
The plaintiff (present respondent) sued the defendant (present 

appellant) in a Chief's Court for the custody of a certain minor 
female child named Monkey Nut. 

The plaintiff is the eldest son of the late GP..elbooi Mbata who 
was the eldest son of the late Thunzane Mbata. The latter had 
a daughter, Kelina, who was a full sister of the late Geelbooi. 
One Maphelu paid lobolo for Kelina. It is disputed whether all 
or only portion of that lobolo was paid, but this aspect seems 
immaterial as will be clear from what follows. Maphelu and 
Kelina lived together as man and wife for some considerable 
time. Six children were born of that union, of whom those that 
survived are a son, viz., the defendant, and two daughters, 
Nomasonto and Martha. Monkey Nut is the illegitimate daughter 
of Nomasonto. 

The Chief gave judgment for the plaintiff. 
An appeal by the defendant against this judgment to the Native 

Commissioner's Court was dismissed with costs. 
The matter was then brought in appeal to this Court which set 

aside the judgment of the Native Commissioner's Court and 
returned the record of proceedings to it for a fresh judgment after 
evidence had been lead to determine whether the union between 
Maphelu and Kelina had been entered into before or after the 
year 1903, as the record did not disclose the position in this 
respect and a finding thereon was essential for a proper determina­
tion of the case as will be apparent from what follows. 
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The parties and their relatives concerned in this action belong 
to the Utrecht District which forms part of the territory in Nat.tl 
known as the Northern Districts. This territory was annexed to 
Natal during the year 1903 and the old Natal Code of Native 
Law contained in the Schedule to Law No. 19 of 1891 of Natal 
therefore obtained there as from that year. Section 148 of that 
Code laid down the essentials of a customary union in Natal 
which differed materially from those obtainina in the other 
provinces, particularly as regards the provision 10 paragraph (c) 
of that section which required a declaration in public by the 
intended wife to the Official Witness on the wedding day that the 
proposed customary union was being entered into with her own 
free will and consent. 

In the instant case the rights of the parties to the custody of 
Monkey Nut turn on the question of whether the "union" 
between Maphelu and Kelina was a valid cutomary union, since 
the plaintiff's claim is founded on his avcrnment that Monkey 
Nut's mother. Nomasonto, and the defendant arc the illegitimate 
children of Kelina, whereas the success of the defendant's case is 
contingent upon a finding that he and his sister, Nomasonto, are 
the legitimate children of ~laphelu and Kelina; in other words, 
that a valid customary union had been contracted by them. Here 
it may be mentioned that Maphelu is still alive, and according 
to his evidence Monkey Nut is living with the defendant apparently 
with his (l\laphelu"s) consent. 1 he plaintiff"s version is that the 
defendant took l\tonkey Nut from the plaintiii"s kraal and has 
kept her at his (defendant's) kraal. 

At the conclusion of the further hearing of this case in pur­
suance of the directions of this Court mentioned above, the 
Native Commissioner's Court found that the " union" between 
Maphelu and Kelina had been entered into after the year 1903 
and again dismissed. with costs, the appeal by the defendant 
against the Chiefs judgment. 

The present appeal by the defendant is against this judgment 
of the Na:ive Commissioner's Court. on the ground that it is 
against the we:ght of the evidence. 

In her evidence for the plaintilf at the further hearing, his 
mother. Rosalina, stated that sl)e had been married two years 
after the conclusion of the last Anglo-Boer War and that at that 
time Kclina was ·· a little girl at home "; further that l\laphelu 
and Kelina entered upon their "union" after her (Rosalina's) 
marriage. 

Maphelu was the only witness called by the defendant at the 
further hearing. 

The presiding Native Commissioner concerned accepted Rosa­
Iina 's evidence and rejected that of l\laphelu, finding that the latter 
was an unreliable witness and referring to certain contradictions 
in h!s evidence. 

l\1aphelu in his testimony at the further hearing. stated:-
"I matured during the Rinderpest (1896)-that is when I 

reached puberty. I married at the end of the Boer War­
during the winter. The war ended just when winter started 
but I canr.ot say what year it was. I married just when war 
ended-the same winter it ended. I then married Kelina, the 
daughter of Tunzana ... Rosalina married first and shortly 
thereafter I married Kelina. She did not marry two years 
after the Boe( War. I married about six months after Rosa­
Iina. Kelina's lobolo was used for Rosalina. When Rosa­
lina married the Boer War had ended. but had not yet ended 
a long time ... I cannot say how long after the Boer War 
Rosalina married." 

It is obvious from these extracts ~rom :\laphelu'5 evidence that 
it is unconvincing on the face of 1t. In addition there are the 
contradictions referred 10 by the Native Commissioner in his judg­
me!"lt. 
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In my view, therefore, the Native Commissioner was justified 
in rejecting Maphelu's evidence on the ground that he was an 
unreliable witness, and in accepting the testimony of Rosalina at 
the further hearing. Consequently the Native Commissioner 
properly found that the " union" between Maphelu and Kelina 
had been entered into after the year 1903. That being so, the 
provisions of Section 148 of the Old Code referred to above, 
apply to that "union" and as it is manifest from the evidence 
that the declaration in public required in terms of paragraph (c) 
of that section was not made by Kelina, her " union " with 
Maphelu cannot be regarded as a valid customary union, see 
Mfanombana v. Fana, 1922, N.H.C., 26; Mdhlalose v. Kaba, 
1938, N.A.C. (T & N), 43 and Ngema v. Ndhlela, 1938, N.A.C. 
(T & N), 210. 

That this was the position appears to have been accepted by 
both the defendant and Maphelu, as the former stated in his 
evidence: " My mother and father were not married. That is 
why I cannot say Jhat Maphelu is the child's (Monkey Nut's) 
guardian "; and he undertook in the Chief's Court to return 
Monkey Nut to the plaintiff; and Maphelu, in the course of his 
evidence, stated: " I was not married to Kelina ". 

Counsel for appellant contended that the onus of proof that 
official witnesses had already been appointed in the Utrecht District 
at the time when Maphelu and Kelina entered into their "union " 
rested on the plaintiff and that the latter had not discharged that 
onus. 

In my view that contention is without substance since, although 
Maphelu stated in his evidence at the further hearing:- " There 
were no official witnesses (at the time in question) ", it is clear 
from Maphelu's evidence at the initial hearing that that was not 
in fact the position, as he then stated that Geelbooi had refused 
to register the said " union", which postulates that customary 
unions could be registered in the Utrecht District at the time in 
question and that official witnesses had then already been 
appointeg, vide the provisions of Section 151 of the Old Code 
referred to above. 

I therefore;: come to the conclusion that Nomasonto is an 
illegitimate daughter of Kelina, the full sister of the pJiJ.intiff's 
father, and that in Native Law the plaintiff, being his father's 
eldest son-plurality of wives is not invoJved in this case­
became, on his father's death, the guardian of Nomasonto and is 
therefore also the gua~dian of the latter's illegitimate daughter, 
Monkey Nut, and, as such, entitled to her custody. 

Accordingly I am of opinion that the appeal should be dis-
missed with costs. 

Steenkamp (President): I concur. 
Thompson (Member): I concur. 
For appellant: Mr. J. F. du Toit, i/b. H. T. W. Tromp, Esq., 

Utrecht. 
For res~uondent: Mr. H. L. Myburgh, i/b. D. R. Smith, Esq., 

Dundee. 

NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 120/51. 

MAGWAZA v. NTOMBELA. 

VRYHEID: 8th January, 1952. Before Steenkamp, President; Balk 
and Thompson, Members of the Court. 

ZULU CUSTOM. 
Native Law-Damages for assalllt-!iability of guardian-assess­

m ent of damaJ?es. 
Practice and Procedure: Citing of defendant-not clear whether 

defendant's guardian joined as a second defendant or merely 
as assisting defendant. 
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Summary: Plaintiff sued defendant r!uly assisted by his father 
for damages for assault. From the relative record of pro­
ceedings, however, it is not clear from which of the two 
persons the plaintiff intended to recover the damages, nor 
against which of those persons the judgment under appeal 
was given. 

Held: That the judgment is ambiguous in that it is not clear 
from the record which of the two persons is liable thereunder, 
and moreover, it is not clear from the relative summons from 
which of the two persons the plaintiff intended to recover 
the damages, nor is that ambiguity clarified by the evidence. 

Held further: That it was not competent for the Court below to 
have given judgment against Qolobana, the guardian, even if 
he were a party to the action, in the absence of any evidence 
or an admission that Magomana had committed the ~aid 
assault whilst he was in residence at Qolooona's kraal. 

Held further: That the aspect of the circumstances under which 
the assault was committed, i.e. whether there had been any 
provocation, was not only material in the assessment of the 
damages claimed, but was one that should have been enquired 
into by the Native Commissioner concerned, as the parties 
were not represented by legal practitioners in that Court and 
the defence was that the plaintiff had suffered no damages. 

Cases referred to:-

Kuzwayo and Others v. Zwane, 1948, N .A.C. (T & N), 11. 
Pambaniso v. Willem, 1939, N.A.C. (C & 0), 94. 

Statutes referred to:-
Section 141 (2) (a) of Natal Code of Native Law published 

under Proclamation No. 168 of 1932. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Babanango. 

Balk (Permanent ~lember), delivering the judgment of the 
Court:-

The plaintiff instituted an action in a Native Commissioner's 
Court in Natal, claiming the sum of £100 damages for an assault 
committed on him during April, 1950. 

The presiding Native Commissioner entered judgment for the 
plaintiff in the sum of £25 with costs. 

The parties were not represented by legal practitioners in the 
Court a quo, and the present appeal is brought by Magomana 
and Qolobana on the grounds that the said judgment is against 
the weight of evidence and contrary to law. 

It is not clear from the relative record of the proceedings in this 
action in the Court below from which of the two persons named 
by the plaintiff in his summons, he intended to recover the 
damages in question. nor against which of those persons the 
judgment under appeal was given. That this is the position is 
manifest from what follows. 

On the face of the cover. which is the portion of the record 
in question on which the said judgment is entered, the parties are 
shown as-

.. Mhlanganyelwa Ntombela . . . . . . . . . . . . . . . Plaintiff 

versus 

Magomana Magwaza . . . . . . . . . Defendant " 
In the relative summons they arc denoted as fo:Iows:-

" Mhlanganyelwa Ntombela ............... Plaintiff 

versus 

(l) ~lagomanl Magwaza d.a. by 
(2) Qolobana Magwaza . .. . . . Defendant (singular)". 
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That summons is directed " to the abovenamed defendant (singu­
lar)" and requires him to appear before the Court concerned on 
a certain date and at a certain time, together with his witnesses, 
"to answer the claim of the above-named plaintiff, as follows:-

Plaintiff claims from defendant the sum of £100, being for 
damages suffered by the plaintiff by an assault during April 
1950. 

Plaintiff suffered great pain and was admitted to the Eshowe 
Hospital where he was opera!ed on for a depressed fracture 
of the skull. 

Notwithstanding several demands the defendant refuses or 
neglects to pay, wherefore plaintiff prays for judgment in 
his favour and costs." 

The plea as recorded by the Native Commissioner concerned 
reads:-

" Defendant's plea:-
(1) Admits that he assaulted plaintiff. 
(2) Denies that the damages suffered amounted to £100 

and states that he suffered no damages." 
According to the certificate of record, this case was between 

Mhlanganyelwa Ntombela versus Magomana Magwaza d.a. by 
Qolobana Magwaza. 

Again, as is evident from the foregoing extract from the sum­
mons, it does not disclose the grounds on which it was sought to 
hold Qolobana and/or Magomana liable for the damages claimed 
in that it does not specify who committed the assault in question. 

According to the evidence for the plaintiff, Magomana alone 
committed that assault; Qolobana, in his evidence, admitted that 
he was Magomana's father; but there is nothing in the evidence 
as a whole, nor any admission indicating that Magomana 
committed the said assault whilst he was in residence at the same 
kraal as his father, Qolobana. This is a fatal defect in so far as 
Qolobana's liability for damages for the assault in question is 
concerned, see Section 141 (2) (a) of the Natal Code of Native 
Law published under Proclamation No. 168 of 1932 and Kuzwayo 
and Others v. Zwane, 1948, N.A.C. (T & N), 11. 

Moreover, the circumstances under which the said assault was 
committed, i.e. whether there had been any provocation, etc., was 
not canvassed in the Court below. This aspect was not only 
material in the assessment of the damages claimed, but was one 
that should have been enquired into by the Native Commissioner 
concerned, as the parties were not represented by legal practi­
tioners in that Court and the defence was that the plaintiff had 
suffered no damages. 

It would appear from the reasons given by the Native Com­
missioner concerned in support of the judgment under appeal 
that he intended that judgment to bind both Magomana and 
Qolobana, jointly and severally, but, as is evident from what has 
been stated above, that judgment is ambiguous in that it is not 
clear from the relative record which of those persons is liable 
thereunder, i.e. Magomana only, or both he and Qolobana. More­
over, as is also obvious from what has been stated above, it is 
not clear from the relative summons from which of those per­
sons the plaintiff intended to recover damages for the assault in 
question; nor is that ambiguity clarified by the evidence. It 
follows that the judgment under appeal is bad in law on those 
grounds, see Pambaniso v. Willem, 1939, N.A.C. (C & 0), 94. 
In any event, as pointed out above, it was not competent for the 
Court below to have given judgment against Qolobana, even if he 
were a party to the action, in the absence of any evidence or an 
admission that Magomana had committed the said assault whilst 
he was in residence at Qolobana's kraal. 

I feel constrained to add that it is a matter for regret that the 
Native Commissioner concerned should have dealt with this case 
so ineptly and should have lent himself to so much confusion in 
such simple issues as were involved. 
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It is observed that the certified copies of the record in question 
differ materially from the original. The gravity of failure to 
ensure that the certified copies of such a record correspond in all 
respects with the original cannot be sufficiently strongly stressed 
as obviously such a failure may well result in this Court dealing 
with the case on appeal on incorrect premises and thereby causing 
a miscarriage of justice. The Native Commissioner concerned is 
directed to bring this matter home to the otlicer responsible in no 
uncertain terms with a view to ensuring that defects of the nature 
in question do not recur in the future. 

In the result, I am of opinion that tht; appeal should be 
allowed with costs and that the jucjgment of the Court a quo 
should be altered to read: "Absolution from the instance with 
costs." 

Steenkamp (President): I concur. 

Thompson (Member): I concur. 

For appellant: 1\lr. F. J. du Toil, i/b. Messrs. Bestall & Uys, 
Kranskop. 

Respondent in person. 

NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 110 / 51. 

:\WATA 1'. :\1DHLALOSE. 

VRYHEID: 7th January, 1952. Before Steenkamp, President; Balk 
and Thompson, Members of the Court. 

COlVIlVION LA \V. 
Practice and Procedure-Appeal from Chief's Court-Applirotion 

for extension of time in which to note-particulars required 
ro he lodged by the Chief concemed not fumished-fatal defect 
-Rule 14 of new mles for Chiefs' Ci1•i/ Courts. 

Summarv: Plaintiff applied to a Native Commissioner's Court 
for an extention of time within which to note an appeal 
agaimt the judgment of a Chief's Court, but did not at the 
same time or timeously thereafter note an appeal against 
such Chief's judgment. The application having been refused 
plaintiff appealed to the Native Appeal Court. 

Held: 
(I) That the procedure to be followed in appli<..ations for 

extension of time in which to note an appeal against 
a Chief's judgment is that an appeal must be noted and 
that either at the time of such noting or timeously there­
after application must be m~tde for the necessary 
extension of time to validate such late noting. 

(2) Further, that as such procedure was not followed and 
the p.uticulars required to be lodged hy the Chief con­
cerned in terms of Rule 7 of the Rules for Chiefs' 
Civil Courts. published under Government Notice No. 
2255 of 1928. as amended. have not been furnished. the 
Native Commissioner's Court was precluded from 
considering the merits of the applicant's case in the 
Chief's Court, and consequently it could not determine 
whether or not those particulars disclosed a manifest 
miscarriage of justice. 

(3) Further, that the new Rules for Chief's Civil Courts 
will now apply to this case by virtue of the provisions 
of Rule 14 thereof. 
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Cases referred to: 

Lekhetha v. Toane, 1946, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 22. 
Gezane v. Gabuza, 1946, N.A.C. (T. & N.), 100. 
Mbhele v. Mbanjwa, 1947, N.A.C. (T. & N.), 89. 

Statutes referred to: 
Rule 7 of Government Notice No. 2255 of 1928. 
Rule 14 of Government Notice No. 2885 of 1951. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Nqutu. 

Balk (Permanent Member), delivering the judgment of the 
Court:-

Good cause having been shown, the late noting of the appeal 
to this Court is condoned. 

This appeal is against a Native Commissioner's refusal to 
entertain an application for extension of time within which to 
note an appeal against a judgment of a Chief's Court. 

The reasons given by the applicant (present appellant) in the 
Native Commissioner's Court for the delay in noting the appeal 
against the Chief's judgment are twofold, viz., lack of funds and 
illness. It has repeatedly been held by this Court that lack of 
funds does not constitute good cause for the condonation of the 
late noting of an appeal and it is manifest from the evidence that 
in this instance the remaining ground, i.e. illness, has not been 
substantiated. 

I therefore agree with the Native Commissioner that the 
applicant cannot succeed on those grounds. But this does not 
dispose of the matter since the merits of the applicant's case in 
the Chief's Court also fall to be considered, see Lekthetha v. 
Toane, 1946, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 22 and Qina's case referred to 
therein. 

The procedure to be followed in applications of the nature in 
question was laid down by this Court in Mbhele v. Mbanjwa, 
1947, N.A.C. (T. & N.), 89, viz., that an appeal must be noted 
against the Chief's judgment and that either at the time of such 
noting or timeously thereafter application must be made for 
the necessary extentsion of time to validate the late noting. 

This procedure was not followed in the instant application and 
the particulars required to be lodged by the Chief concerned in 
terms of Rule 7 ot the Rules for Chiefs' Civil Courts, published 
under Government Notice No. 2255 of 1928, as amended, have 
not been furnished. This is a fatal defect in that the absence 
of those particulars precluded the Native Commissioner's Court 
from considenng the merits of the applicant's case in the Chief's 
Court, so that it could not determine whether or not those 
particulars disclosed a manifest miscarriage of justice, see Gezane 
v. Gabuza, 1946, N.A.C. (T. & N.), 100. 

In my view therefore the appeal should be allowed with costs, 
the Native Commissioner's judgment should be set aside and the 
record of proceedings returned to him for further hearing and 
!! fresh judgment after the proper procedure has been followed, 
I.e. after the appeal has been noted against the Chief's judgment 
under the new Rules for Chiefs' Civil Courts published under 
Government Notice No. 2885 of 1951, which, by virtue of Rule 
14 thereof, now apply in the instant case, and after the relevant 
Rules in that Government Notice have been complied with. 
Costs already incurred in the Native Commissioner's Court to be 
borne by the applicant. 

Steenkamp (President): I concur. 

Thompson (Member): I concur. 
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NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 117/51. 

l"XUMALO v. NXUMALO. 

VRYitEto: 8th January, 1952. Before Steenkamp, President, Balk 
and Thompson, Members of the Court. 

ZULU CUSTOM. 
Practice and Procedure-Action on beltalf of minor agaitut 

guardia11. 
The facts app~ar from the judgment. 

Held: That a minor need not be assisted in an action against 
his gu:trdian unless the Court considers it necessary that a 
curator <td litem should be appointed, and so directs, and it 
is not competent, when a dispute arises between such w.ud 
and his guardian for another member of the family to inter 
vene and take action in his own name or even to sue on 
behalf of the minor unless, in terms of Section 50 (2) of the 
Code, the Court has so directed. 

Statutes referred to: 
Section 50 (2) of the Natal Code of Native L:tw. 

Appe:tl from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Utrecht. 

Steenkamp (P), delivering the judgment of the Court:-
Just c:tuse having been shown, the late lodging of the security 

is condoned. 
In the Chief's Court the plaintiff (now appellant) sued the 

defendant (now respondent) for five head of cattle on behalf of 
his brother's son, l\tuntu. The Chief gave judgment in favour 
of plaintiff and in his reasons for judgment he states he did 
this because it was proved that the cattle in question belonged 
to l\luntu. The defendant appealed to the Native Commissioner 
who allowed the appeal from the Chief's Court and altered the 
judgment to one for defendant with costs. 

Plaintiff has now noted an appeal to this Court on the 
grounds (I) that the Native Commi~sioner erred in giving judg­
ment against him contrary to the decision of the N:ttive Chief 
whose judgment was in co nfo rmity with the law :tnd custom; 
(2) that the judgment was ag:tinst the weight of evidence. 
After the Native Commissioner had filed his reasons for judg­
ment, additional grounds of appeal were filed. These additional 
grounds :tre headed: " Rebutting Native Commissioner's Reasons 
for Judgment" and will be de:tlt with at :t later stage in this 
judgment. 

From the evidence it is clear, and not seriously disputed, that­
(l) Defendant is the eldest son and heir of the late Willie, who 

w:ts the younger brother of the plaintiff; 
(2) Willie had two wives. viz .. Rhoda and Lesiah. The defen­

dant is the eldest son by the first wife. Rhoda. During 
Willie's lifetime Lesiah bore him a daughter by the name 
of l\tantshakazana and after Willie's death his widow, 
Lesiah, was "ngenaed" by Willie's brother, Piet; as the 
result of this "ukungena" union, l\luntu was born, who 
then became the heir of that house. 

The plaintiff and his late brother, Willie, all lived at the kraal 
of their late father, but after Willie's death the plaintiff estab­
lished his own kraal and the defendant and l\funtu remained at 
the kraal where they had previously lived. Defendant then 
became the head of that kraal where Muntu continued to live 
with him. The cattle which were paid as lobolo for the girl 
Mantshakazana also remained at this kraal. Subsequently the 
defendant removed his kraal and took the lobolo cattle in question 
with him. l\luntu later went and lived with his mother's people. 
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It also emerges from the evidence that M untu and his half­
brother the defendant, quarrelled. From what can be gathered 
from the evidence, the quarrel was due to the .fact that defe?­
dant took three of the lobolo cattle he had recetved for the gtrl 
Mantshakazana and used them for his own purposes. The 
defendant admits this and states that he knows he is liable to 
refund those cattle to Muntu when the latter comes of age, but 
his defence is that plaintiff is not entitled to have the cattle in 
his possession. 

The additional grounds of appeal filed by the plaintiff are to 
the effect that after the death of the defendant's father, the 
plaintiff became the guardian of the defendant and Muntu until 
the defendant married; he (plaintiff) then remained and still is 
the guardian of Muntu and the defendant used all the lobolo 
cattle received for the girl, Mantshak:azana, which belong to the 
kraal of Muntu; plaintiff only instituted the proceedings at the 
request of Muntu and he did so for the purpose of protecting 
his interests, Muntu being his ward. 

Muntu, at the time of this action, was actually living at the 
kraal of his late mother's people and it is not correct for the 
plaintiff to allege that he is the guardian of Muntu. During 
the minority of Muntu, there can be no doubt that the defendant 
is his guardian and if there is a dispute between them, then 
it is not competent for another member of the family to sue 
the guardian in his own name or even to sue on behalf of the 
minor, unless, in terms of Section 50 (2) of the Code, the Court 
has so directed. Section 50 (2) reads as follows:-

"Any person who i~ a subject of guardianship in respect 
of either his person or his property may bring an action 
against his guardian without the assistance of a curator ad 
litem unless the Court otherwise directs." 

I interpret this section to mean that the minor need not be 
assisted in an action of this nature unless the Court considers 
it necessary that a curator ad litem should be appointed, and so 
directs. 

While Muntu may have a good claim against the defendant, 
I do not see how the plaintiff, who is an uncle of the defendant 
and of Muntu, could intervene and take action in his own name. 
It is true, in the body of his claim, he states he is suing on 
behalf of Muntu, yet if we read the judgment of the Chief, this 
judgment was in favour of the plaintiff personally, and this would 
certainly not be correct. In any event there is nothing to indicate 
that the plaintiff was, at the direction of the Court, appointed 
as curator ad litenz in this action. Muntu is still at liberty to 
sue his half-broher, the defendant, as the judgment given by the 
Native Commissioner cannot be pleaded as res judicata in case 
the defendant refuses or neglects to hand the cattle over to Muntu. 

In my opinion the appeal should be dismissed with costs. 

I wish to draw the Native Commissioner's attention to the 
fact that it has been held by this Court on numerous occasions 
that when the Court below hears an appeal from the Chief's 
Court the use of the words "Appellant " and " Respondent " 
should be avoided. These terms only lead to confusion when 
the case eventually comes before this Court on appeal. The 
present case is a good indication of how confusing these terms 
~re. The person who wa~ the appellant from the Chief's Court 
ts actually the respondent in this Court, and vice versa, and I 
personally found it very difficult, when reading the record and 
the Native Commissioner's reasons, to follow the matter intel­
ligently, and it was only after I made the necessary alterations 
thlt I was able to follow the evidence. 

Balk and Thompson concurred. 
Appellant in person. 

For Respondent: Mr. J. F. du Toit, i/b H. T. W. Tramp, Esq., 
Utrecht. 
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NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 136 OF 1951. 

BUTELEZI v. i\ITETWA. 

VRYHEJD: 8th January, 1952: Before Stecnkamp, President; 
Balk and Thompson, Members of the Court. 

ZULU CUSTOM. 
Native Law and Custom-.\1heko heast. 

Practice am/ Procedure: Available w;tncss not caned by party 
in Court a quo-in public interest that finality in litigation 
should be reached. 

The facts appear from the judgment. 
Held: That there is no doubt that it is a well-established 

custom for a father of a girl to gift an " mbeko " beast to 
the bridegroom's kraal, which beast then becomes the 
property of the house established. 

Held further: That this Court, not being a Court of record, 
may not hear any evidence and though it is empowered to 
return a record for further evidence if it considers such a 
course de<;irable. it is in the public interest to reach finality 
in litigation, and in view of the fact that appellant was 
legally represented in the Court below, and his case having 
been closed. this Court was not prepared to return the 
record for further evidence as suggested by appellant. 

Cases referred to:-
Ntamanc v. Nkosi, 1935, N.A.C. (T & N) 20. 
Masikane \', Masikane, 1936, N.A.C. (T & N) 63. 
Vilakazi v. Nkambule, 1944, N.A.C. (T & N) 57. 
Mtshali v. Mhlongo, 1944, N.A.C. (T & N) 71. 
Ngcobo \', Ngcobo, 1928 N.H.C. 8. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Vryheid. 
Stecnkamp (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
In the Native Commissioner's Court the plaintiff sued the 

defendant for the return of twcntv head of cattle or their value 
£200. In his summons he avers 'that the twenty cattle arc the 
progeny of a certain cow and calf belonging to the house of 
his mother and "sisaed " to defendant by plaintiff's late father. 
Defendant's plea is a denial that plaintiff's late father "sisaed " 
any cattle to him and puts plaintiff to the proof thereof. 

The Native Commissioner gave judgment for defendant with 
costs and against that judgment an appeal has been noted by the 
Jllaintitf on the following grounds:-

" I. The general heir of my late father was present outside 
the court to-day but my attorney did not call him. 

2. He. the general heir, drove the 'mbeko' beast, the 
'sisa ' beast, to defendant's kraal. 

3. I note an aooeal against the judgment of the Court 
because the Court· gave a wrong decision on the facts before 
it." 

Defendant also filed. within the period prescribed for noting 
an appeal, the following statement:-

"I say what :vlpascni Mtetwa said in front of the Native 
Commissioner is not true. It is not what we S!JOke at his 
kraal, at the Chief's Court and finally at the dipping tank. 
Even his witnesses, it is not the truth that a person can 
' bckela ' his daughter before she gets married. and further 
that he 'bekas' with a heifer or a cow. One 'bekas' 
with an ox and that ox is slaughtered and the wives of that 
man do not eat the meat of this ox. A goat is slaughtered 
for the wives. 
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Mpaseni said to Mr. Moolman, cattle in ditpute belonged 
to my father and why at this stage deny these cattle belong 
to me? 

Finally I like to stress that these cattle are the progeny 
of a black heifer which was placed on · sisa ' by my father 
to my sister Bapetile for milking purposes." 

It is common cause that the defendant, about 25 years ago, 
entered into a customary union with one Bapetile, sister of the 
plaintiff in another house. Their !ather was then stiJ! alive 
and it is common cause that he died about 1939. It Is also 
common cause that at the time when Bapetile and defendant 
got married, or soon threafter a cow was delivered to his kraal. 
The plaintiff states that the cow was "sisaed " to the defendant 
whereas defendant states that it was an "mbeko " gift. 

Recently Bapetile and defendant were divorced and the plain­
tiff is now claiming the return to him of the progeny of the 
cow in question. 

The case resolves itself to a question of fact as to whether 
the cow was a gift or whether it was "sisaed ". 

The Native Commissioner in his facts found proved found 
that the cow was an " mbeko " beast and with this finding I am 
entirely in agreement, as the evidence abundantly supports this. 

An "mbeko" beast is defined in the case of Mtshali v. 
Mhlongo, 1944, N.A.C. (T & N) 71, as being "an out and out 
unconditional gift sent by the bride's father to the bridegroom's 
kraal. It goes with the bride." In that case the "sigodo " 
beast is also mentioned. Braatvedt (P.) is reported to have 
stated that as far as he knows this is a beast to be slaughtered, 
and the " mbeko" is to provide the woman with sustenance. 

1 consulted the following cases:-
Ntamane v. Nkosi, 1935, N.A.C. (T & N), page 20; 
Masikane v. Masikane, 1936, N.A.C. (T & N), 63; and 
Vilakazi v. Nkambule, 1944, N.A.C. (T & N), 57. 

In all these cases and also in the case of Mtshali v. Mhlongo, 
(supra), there is no doubt that it is a well-established custom for 
a father of a girl to gift an "mbeko" beast, which becomes the 
property of the house established. 

In the case of Ngcobo v. Ngcobo, 1928, N.H.C., 8, quoted 
in the case of Ntamane v. Nkosi (supra), Mr. Justice Leslie 
referring to gifts of cattle to a woman on her marriage, stated:-

"This custom is so universally followed that there is a 
strong presumption in favour of the appellant's case that the 
cow was a free gift made outright to appellant's mother's 
hut and it is for respondent to disprove that presumption 
with the clearest evidence; this he signally failed to do." 

In the present appeal this beast was handed over to the 
defendant 25 years ago and with the exception, according to the 
plaintiff's evidence, that he went and looked at the cattle for the 
first time about eight years ago, there is no evidence that either 
the plaintiff or his late father ever exercised any ownership over 
the cattle. The presumption is strongly in favour of the defen­
dant, and, ::ts pointed out by the Native Commissioner in his 
reasons for judgment, the evidence adduced on behalf of the 
plaintiff was so unsatisfactory that he could not accept it as being 
the truth. 

Appellant (plaintiff) has indicated in his grounds of appeal and 
als_o stres~ed it in this Court, that his eldest brother, the general 
heir of his late father, should have been called as a wi tness to 
testify that the beast had been "sisaed " and not gifted as an 
"mbeko" beast. 

This Cour t, not being a Court of record, m:~v not hear any 
evidence but is, of course, empowered to return a record for 
further evidence if it considers such a course desi rable. The 
appellant was legally represented in the Court below and his 
case was closed. It is in the nublic interest tha t finality in 
litigation should be reached and- I am not nrcnared to return 
the record for further. evidence as suggested- by the appellant. 
Such a course lends Itself to a nossibility of evidence being 
fabricated. · 
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In my opinion the appeal should be dismissed with costs. 
Balk (Permanent Member): I concur. 
Thompson (Member): I concur. 
Appellant in person. 
For Respondent: Mr. H. L. Myburgh of Messrs . Bennett & 

Myburgh, Vryheid. 

NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 127 OF 1951. 

DHLAUSA v. l\IDHLALOSE. 

VRYHEID: 9th January, 1952: Before Steenkamp, President. 
Balk and Thompson, Members of the Court. 

ZULU CUST0.!\1. 
Children-Paternity-Evidence of mother of child essential. 

The facts emerge from the judgment. 
Practice a11d Procedure: Person entitled to seduced girl's 

lobolo must sue for damages. 
Held: That as the mother of the child was not called as a 

witness and the alleged father of the child havin~ denied 
paternity on oath, the plaintiff could not succeed in her 
claim. 

Held further: That in Native Law the proper person to sue 
for damages for seduction in a case such as the present 
one, is the person entitled to the seduced girl's lobolo. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Nqutu. 
Balk (Permanent Member), delivering the judgment of the 

Court:-
This is an appeal against the judgment of a Native Commis­

sioner's Court, dismissing with costs an appeal by the defendant 
against the judgment of a Chief's Court given in favour of the 
plaintiff for one beast and costs in an action in which one 
beast was claimed as damages from the defendant for having 
rendered the plaintiff's daughter, Qondeni, pregnant. 

The defendant was not represented by a legal practitioner in 
the Native Commissioner's Court, and his appeal to this Court 
is based on the grounds "that the judgment is against the weight 
of the evidence and the law there arising". 

To my mind the judgments of both the Courts below are wrong 
for the following reasons:-

In the first place it emerges from the plaintiff's evidence that 
Qondeni had already had a child by a previous lover during the 
year 1949, so that to succeed in her action, the plaintiff had to 
prove that the defendant was the father of Qondeni's second 
child born on the 2nd April, 1951. 

The defendant in his evidence admitted having had sexual 
intercourse with Qondeni, but denied paternity of the child con­
cerned. Qondeni was not called by the plaintiff as a witness, 
the only evidence for the plaintiff being that given by herself, 
which does not establish that the defendant is the father of the 
child; that being so and as the defendant denied paternity on 
oath, the plaintiff was not entitled to succeed in her claim. 

Secondly the plaintiff is the mother of Qondeni, her (plain­
tiff's) husband is dead and she was assisted by her guardian in 
the present action, in which Native law was properly applied. 
As in Native law the proper person to sue for damages for 
seduction in a case such as the present one, is the person 
entitled to the seduced girl's lobolo and, as in the instant case, 
the person entitled to Qondeni's lobolo is obviously her male 
guardian and not her mother, the plaintiff, the latter has no locus 
standi. 
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I am therefore of optmon that the appeal should be allowed 
with costs and that the Native Commissioner's judgment should 
be altered to read as follows:-

"Appeal sustained with costs and the Chief's judgment 
altered to one dismissing the claim with costs." 

Steenkamp (President): I concur. 
Thompson (Member): I concur. 
Appellant: In person. 
Respondent: In person. 

CENTRAL NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 23 OF 1951. 

KHABANE v. KHABANE. 

KROONSTAD: lOth January, 1952. Before Marsberg, President; 
Warner and Groenewald, Members of the Court. 

ADMINISTRATION OF ESTATES. 

Estate enquiry held in terms of Government Notice No. 1664 of 
1929-Act No. 38 of 1927, Section 22 (7). 
Summary: In an enquiry held in terms of Government Notice 

No. 1664 of 1929, the Native Commissioner appointed the 
widow of the deceased as executrix and sole heir to the 
estate. The appeal was brought against that judgment by 
a son of a customary union of the deceased. 

Held: That the Native Commissioner did not have the provi­
sions of Section 22 (7) of Act No. 38 of 1927, in contempla­
tion when he gave his decision and the matter should be fully 
investigated. It is ordered that the certificate of appointment 
of the Native Commissioner of Kroonstad, dated 12th 
February, 1951, be set aside, that the inquiry should be 
re-opened and that all interested parties be afforded an 
opportunity to be heard. 

Cases referred to:-
Domane v. Domane, 1944 (C. & 0.), page 84. 

Statute referred to:-
Government Notice No. 1664 of 1929, Section 22 (7) of 

Act No. 38 of 1927. 
Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Kroonstad. 
Warner (Permanent Member), delivering the judgment of the 

Court:-
This is an application for the condonation of the late noting 

of an appeal against the finding of the Native Commissioner, 
Kroonstad, in an estate enquiry held in terms of Government 
Notice No. 1664 of 1929. 

A native named Sello Khabana died on the 28th December, 
1950. On the 1st February, 1951, the matter was reported to 
the Native Commissioner, Kroonstad, by the Manager, Native 
Administration Department, Kroonstad Municipality, who 
reported that deceased was married by customary union and later 
contracted another marriage by civil rites, that two children had 
been born as a result of the customary union but there had been 
no issue of the civil marriage. 
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On the 12th February, 1951, the Native Commissioner, Kroon­
stad, held an enquiry which was attended by Mpuleng Khabane, 
widow of the civil marriage. After taking her statement, the 
Native Commissioner gave the following finding:-

.. Mpuleng Khabane appointed executrix to administer the 
estate and she is also declared to be the sole heir to the 
estate." 

Applicant is Ent Khabane who claims to be the guardian of 
Klaas Khabane, a Native male minor, who is stated to be the 
eldest son of deceased Sello Khabane by his customary union 
with Mina Khabane and to be the heir in the estate. 

Applicant states that he was not notified of the holding of the 
enquiry and it was held in his absence. He appears to have 
become aware of it immediately afterwards, however, for on the 
15th February, 1951, he issued summons in the Native Com­
missioner'~ Court, Kroonstad, against Mpuleng Khabane, claiming 
the property in the estate and the setting aside of the order 
appointing her as executrix and heir in the estate. He did not, 
however, appeal against the order. 

On the 20th March, 1951, the Native Commissioner dismissed 
the summons holding that, as Government Notice No. 1664 of 
1929, provides for the noting of an appeal against a finding of 
a Nattve Commissioner in an estate enquiry, a Native Com­
missioner's Court has no jurisdictiion to set aside such a finding. 
Applicant has accepted this ruling and desires to note an appeal 
against the finding given on the 12th February, 1951, and 
applies for condonation of the late noting. 

From the application, it would seem that the delay was due 
to applicant's action in adopting the wrong procedure and, in the 
ordinary course, we could not be disposed to grant him indulgence 
but as we consider that the Native Commissioner gave a wrong 
finding, the application is granted in view of the provisions of 
Section 15 of Act No. 38 of 1927, and the reasons embodied in 
the judgment of the President which follow. 

t\larsbcrg (President):-

Following the directions given in our judgment of 24th April, 
1951. the Native Commissioner of Kroonstad has now forwarded 
the missing record of the inquiry with the distribution of the 
estate ot t11e late Sello Khabane. 1 he facts of the dispu:e between 
the parties were detailed in our judgment of 24th April, 1951, 
and we will not repeat them. 

In regard to the first ground of appeal the Native Commissioner 
io his reasons for judgment states:-

" It will be noticed that the matter was referred to me by 
the Manager of the Location in his letter of the I st February, 
1951. I have a recollection that between that date and the 
12th February the alleged guardian was given an opportunity 
to produce the son and that on the 12th only one person 
appeared and that being the wife of deceased." 

On this ground the appellant has attacked the Native Com­
missioner with having acted irregularly and in breach of his 
duties as Commissioner with ~ross unreasonableness and in 
breach of the principles of natural justice failed to call appellant 
or hear him. 

It would be unwise to assume that the Native Commissioner 
acted or would have :acted in this grossly improper manner. It 
is unnecessary to pursue this aspect of the case because on the 
view which we shall take the matter can be disoosed of under 
the second ground of appeal, viz.:- · 

"2. That the said Klaas Khabane, a minor, is bv Native 
Law and custom the heir at law of the said Scllo Khabane 
and is entitled to the estate of the said Sello Khabane 
and that his rights as such are specifically preserved to him 
by Section 22 (7) of the Native Administration Act, No. 
38 of 1927." 
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It is common cause that the late Sello Khabane first married 
by Native custom a woman Mina and that Klaas Khabane is the 
son of that union. Thereafter Sello married by civil rites on 
16th November, 1935, one Mapuling Lephuthing with community 
of property excluded. Appellant alleges that Sello married 
Mpaleng during the subsistence of his customary union with 
Mina. That is an allegation which requires to be proved, because 
the solution of this dispute turns on the question whether or not 
the union between Sello and Mina was subsisting when he entered 
into the civil marriage with Mpaleng. If the customary union 
was subsisting at the time of the civil marriage then the Native 
Commissioner could not lawfully have declared Mpaleng to be 
the sole heiress. If the customary union had been dissolved 
as alleged by Mpaleng then the Native Commissioner may have 
had to take other factors into consideration. In his reasons for 
judgment the Native Commissioner remarks on this matter:-

"The wife (Mpaleng) produced a marriage certificate as 
proof that her marriage to deceased was according to civil 
rites. This fact, in my opinion brings this estate to be 
dealt with according to Civil Law and consequently I 
decided that wife was sole heir." 

Section 2 (c) of Government Notice No. 1664 of 1929 prescribes 
that the estate of a deceased Native who was married in com­
munity of property or by ante-nuptial contract shall devolve as 
if he were an European. But we have seen that the civil 
marriage was not in community of property and Section 2 (c) of 
Government Notice No. 1664 of 1929 cannot be invoked. The 
Native Commissioner could not therefore have applied Common 
Law. 

Section 2 (d) ibid. has been relied on by Mr. Dreyer for 
respondent but this section must be read in relation to Section 
22 (7) of Act No. 38 of 1927. At this stage it would be well 
to refer to the Native Administration Act, No. 38 of 1927. 
There will be found Section 22 (6) and (7) which reads:-

" (6) A marriage between Natives, contracted after the 
commencement of this Act, shall not produce the legal 
consequences of marriage in community of property between 
the spouses: Provided that in the case of a marriage con­
tracted otherwise than during the subsistence of a customary 
union between the husband and any woman other tlwn the 
wife it shall be compe:ent for the intending spouses at any 
time within one month previous to the celebration of such 
marriage to declare jointly before any magistrate, Native 
Commissioner or marriage officer (who is hereby authorised 
to attest such declaration) that it is their intention and 
desire that community of property and of profit and loss 
shall result from their marriage, and thereupon such com­
munity s~all result. from their marriage except as regards 
any land m a location held under quitrent tenure such land 
shall be excluded from such community. (This section does 
not apply to this case.) 

(7) No marriage contracted after the commencement of 
this Act during the subsistence of any customary union 
between the husband and any woman other than the wife 
shall in any way affect the material righ:s of any partner 
of such union or any issue thereof, and the widow of any 
such marriage and any issue thereof shall have no greater 
rights in respect of the estate of the deceased soouse than 
she or they would have had if the said marriage had been 
a customary union." 

Community of property can be contracted lawfMlly only 
between-

( a) the husband and wife of a customary union who intend to 
enter into a "marriage" and desire community to ensue; 

(b) a man not being a partner to a subsisting customary union 
an~ a woman who intend to enter in~o a " marriage " and 
desire community to ensue. 
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There is prima facie proof that the late Sello was married by 
Native custom to Mina and subsequently by civil rites to Mpaleng. 
There is an allegation that the Native customary union was sub­
sisting at the time of the civil marriage. Now, certain questions 
would have to be answered before the Native Commissioner 
could arrive at a decision. 

Was the customary union in fact subsisting at the time the 
civil marriage between Sello and Mpaleng was contracted? If 
it was, then, the provisions of Section 22 (7) apply, and from 
them we see that Mpaleng had no 2reater riJ:hts than would 
arise from a customary union. She could not be declared sole 
heiress. 

Was the customary union between Sello and Mina dissolved 
(as alleged by Mpaleng) before the civil marriage was contracted? 

This is a question for proof. If it was in fact dissolved, then 
Klaas would have no claim' on his father's estate merely as heir 
but the Native Commissioner would have to consider the 
equities and the provisions of Section 2 (d) of Government 
Notice No. 1664 of 1929, might apply. 

Klaas and Mpaleng would require to show why both or one 
or other of them, on grounds of equity, should succeed to the 
estate. 

If the customary union between Sello and Mina had not been 
dissolved, Mpaleng could not succeed because her rights are 
those prescribed by Section 22 (7), being no greater than would 
flow from a customary union. 

We are of opinion that the Native Commissioner did not have 
the provisions of Section 22 (7) of Act No. 38 of 1927, in con­
templation when he gave his decision and we are of opinion that 
the matter should be fully investigated. We order therefore that 
the certificate of appointment of the Native Commissioner of 
Kroonstad, dated 12th February, 1951, be set aside in which 
Mpaleng Khabane was appointed executrix to administer the 
estate and in which she was declared to be the sole heir to the 
estate. The Native Commissioner should re-open the inquiry and 
should afford all interested parties an opportunity to be heard 
and state their case. 

The appeal is allowed. Applicant is ordered to pay the costs 
of appeal. 

For Appellant: Mr. J. L. D. van Reenen, P.O. Box 24, 
Kroonstad. 

For Respondent: Mr. J. N. Dreyer, Hill Street, Kroonstad. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. I /52. 

:\1NYATAZA 1·. :\IACASA. 

BUTTERWORTII: 14th January, 1952. Before Sleigh, President, 
Cornell and Potgieter, Members of the Court. 

COMMON LA ,V. 
Native Appeal Case-Adultery-Proof of-Specific acts must be 

proved--catch-Not justifying inference that adultery had 
taken place-Serves only as corroborative evidence of woman's 
story. 
Summary: Defendant was caught hiding in a hut at plaintiff's 

kraal during the latter's absence at work, by plaintiffs 
brother, who had left plaintiff's wife at a beerdrink. 

Plaintiff sued defendant for damages for adultery under 
Common Law. 
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Held: 
(1) That there must be proof of specific acts of adultery. 
(2) That a "catch" which does not justify an inference that 

adultery had been committed is only evidence aliunde 
in support of the woman's testimony. 

(3) That on the evidence there is no proof of specific acts 
of adultery for defendant to deny. 

·Cases referred to: 

Bekizulu Ka Tshingitshana v. Mkonywana, 4, N.A.C., 11. 
Mayibade v. Mclongwana, 1, N.A.C., 150. 
Velebayi v. Menziwa, 5, N.A.C., 10. 
Raji v. Silongalonga, 4, N.A.C., 12. 
Dumalisile v. Mqananango, 1931, N.A.C. (C. ,& 0.), 8. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Tsomo. 

Cornell (Member), delivering the judgment of the Court:­

Plaintiff sued defendant for £40 damages for adultery, 
committed by defendant with plaintiff's wife, and costs. He 
avers in his summons that he was married by Christian Rites to 
his wife Sarah lane and that this marriage still subsists. He 
continues that "From about the month of August, 1950, until 
April, 1951, and at plaintiff's kraal in Pukwana's ward, defendant 
on divers occasions committed adultery with plaintiff's said wife 
Sarah 1 a ne ". 

Defendant, while admitting the subsistence of the marriage 
between plaintiff and Sarah lane, denies, in his plea, that he 
committed adultery with her. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner gave judgment in favour 
of plaintiff for £24 damages and costs and it is against this judg­
ment that defendant has appealed on the grounds that the 
judgment is against the weight of evidence and the probabilities 
of the case. 

The claim is based on, and the damages have been awarded 
according to, Common Law, and with this there can be no 
quarrel, but Mr. Mahoud (for plaintiff) rightly declined to 
support the judgment in view of the decision of this Court in 
Bekizulu Ka Tshingitshana v. Mkonywana, 4, N.A.C., 11, Raji 
v. Silongalonga, 4, N.A.C., 12, Velebayi v. Menziwa, 5, N.A.C. 
10, and Noko Mayibade v. Ngcangotshana Mcolongwana, 1, 
N.A.C. (S), 150. This Court is, for the following reasons, fully 
in accord with this attitude. 

The facts, briefly, are that plaintiff returned unexpectedly from 
work in May, 1951, and on receiving certain information, issued 
a demand on 22nd idem for £20 damages for trespass, which was 
replaced by a demand, dated 29th idem, for £40 damages for 
adultery. Plaintiff himself knows nothing of the alleged adultery, 
but his brother, Transkei Macasa, who was in charge of plaintiff's 
kraal during his absence at work, relates how, during the evening 
of 25th April, 1951, he went to plaintiff's kraal from a wedding 
beerdrink, at which he left plaintiff's wife, and found in a hut 
at plaintiff's kraal, a person hiding therein and who only 
disclosed himself to be defendant when other men and plaintiff's 
wife had been called, the latter from the beerdrink. Transkei 
and these men took defendant's blanket and overalls from him, 
allowing him to leave the kraal naked. Defendant's explanation 
was that he had gone to that kraal to look for beer, and that he 
had sent plaintiff's two younger children to call plaintiff's wife. 
He stated that he was drunk. Before plaintiff's wife arrived 
he was discovered by Transkei. There is no doubt that in 
Native Custom a "catch" of defendant had taken place. It 
need hardly be added that defendant's explanation does not ring 
true and is not believed by this Court, to whom there is no 
doubt that his purpose in going there was immoral. 
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Plamtiff's wife in her evidence says, "He proposed love to 
me last year ..... I accepted him and he visited me at my 
home. My husband was away at work". She then continues to 
state that he came at night, that he slept in the hut with her 
and her three children and that he had intercourse with her. 
Her only reference to a date was when he proposed love and 
that date "last year" was indefinite enough to be of no value. 
Her testimony does not reveal how often he visited her, when 
the first or the last visit took place and is generally in vague 
and unspecific terms. The evidence of her son, Berrington, a 
youth of ten years, goes no further towards attaching to any act 
of adultery a fixed time or place. Apart from the allegation 
in th.! summons when the period August. 1950, to April, 1951. 
is mentioned. and Sarah Jane's statement that defendant proposed 
love to her last year, the only other act, fixed in point of time 
in the whole case is the "catch" on 25th April, 1951. 

Now, in Velebayi v. Menziwa supra, quoted with approbation 
in Mayibade v. Mcolonkwana supra, the Court followed Bekizulu 
Ka Tshingitshana v. Mkonywana supra that there must be 
evidence of specific acts of adultery. A "catch" which does not 
justify an inference that adultery has been committed, as is the 
case in this matter, is only evidence aliunde in support of the 
woman's testimony [Dumalisile v. 1\lqanango, 1931, N .A.C. (C. 
& 0.), 8]. 

The wife's testimony being vague and unspecified , is only 
corroborated by the "catch" as to suspicion and the defendant 
is left with nothing specific to deny. The Assistant Native 
Commissioner erred in giving judgment for plaintiff. The appeal 
is therefore allowed with costs and the judgment of the Court 
below is altered to absolution from the instance with costs. 

For Appellant: Mr. Dold, Willowvale. 

For Respondent: Mr. 1\fahoud. Butterworth. 

NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 109 / 51. 

~XU:\IALO V. GASA. 

PJETERMARITZBURG: 21st January, 1952: Before Steenkamp. 
President; Balk and Wessels, Members of the Court. 

C0Mlv10N LA \V. 
Practice a!Ul Procedure--Calling of witnesses by Court-Rule 

53 (13) of Nmive Commiss~oners' Courts Rules, published 
under Government Notice No. 2886 of 1951-Procedure where­
by defendanJ is called on to give evidence immediately after 
plaintiff, before the latter has closed his case, must be discon­
tinued-Rule 53 (7) to (9) of Native Commissioners' Courts 
Rules published under Government Notice No. 2886 of 1951. 

Held: 
(I) That under the "Old Rules" for Native Commissioners• 

Courts it was not competent for the Court to call 
witnesses for either plaintiff or defendant without the 
consent of both parties. 

(2) Further, that under Rule 53 (13) of the "New Rules,. 
published under Government Notice No. 2886 of 1951, 
it will be competent for the Court suo motu to call a 
witness not called by either party if it thinks his evidence 
is necessary in order to elucidate the truth or the solution 
of the que~tion before it. 
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(3) Further that under Rules 53 (7) to (9) of the " New 
Rules,; published under Government Notice No. 2886 
of 1951 the party on whom the burden of proof rests 
must fi;st adduce his evidence, and that the procedure 
followed in some cases in Natal, whereby the plaintiff 
first gives his evidence, and the defendant is thereupon 
called to give his evidence, and on the conclusion of the 
latter's evidence, plaintiff calls his witnesses and then 
closes his case, must cease. 

Cases referred to: 
Mdhlalose v. Xaba, 1940, N.A.C. (T. & N.), 46. 

Statutes, etc., referred to: 
Rules 53 (7) to (9) and (13) of the Rules for Native Com­

missioners' Courts, published under Government Notice 
No. 2886 of 1951. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, New 
Hanover. 

Wessels (Member), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
In passing I would like to say that it is observed from the 

record that plaintiff closed his case after he and his daughter, 
Jeanette, had given evidence, but the Court suo motu called 
Pontshana Gasa, son of plaintiff, as a witness on behalf of 
plaintiff, and one Nduma Sikakane on behalf of defendant. 
There is no indication that both plaintiff and defendant consented 
to these two witnesses being called by the Court. While this 
procedure of the Court is in order under the new rules which 
are now in force, vide Section 53 (13) of Government Notice No. 
2886 of 1951, it definitely was not competent for the Court to 
have done so at the time the case was tried. However, as 
neither of these witnesses was able to testify as to what had 
happened outside and neither party appeared to have suffered 
any substantial prejudice by this procedure, this Court does not 
wish to pursue the matter further. 

It is also noted from the record that plaintiff first gave his 
evidence; defendant then gave his evidence, and on the conclusion 
of his evidence, plaintiff called his witness and then closed his 
case. While this Court is aware that this procedure of doubtful 
propriety has been followed in Natal in some cases in the past, 
and while this Court is also not unaware of the dictum of 
Braadtvedt (P) in Mdhlalose v. Xaba, 1940, N.A.C. (T. & N.), 46, 
this type of procedure will, in the future, have to be discontinued 
as, according to Section 53 (7) to (9) of the Native Commissioners' 
Courts Rules published under Government Notice No. 2886 of 
1951, the party on whom the burden of proof rests must first 
call his evidence. 

For Appellant: Mr. Manning of Messrs. McGibbon & Broken­
sha, Pietermaritzburg. 

For Respondent: Adv. J. H. Niehaus, i/b Messrs. Stewart, 
Smith & Howard, New Hanover. 

NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 98/51. 

PUTINI AND ANOTHER v. CELE. 

PIETERMARITZBURG: 22nd January, 1952. Before Steenkamp, 
President, Balk and Wessels, Members of the Court. 

COMMON LAW. 
Land-Sale of-Purchaser's right to obtain transfer of land 

purchased by him from former purchaser, who has not yet 
obtained transfer in his own name-Agreement, executed sub­
sequent to attachment of former purchaser's rights to the land, 
purporting to cancel such former sale, invalid. 
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Practice and Procedure: Attachment by Messenger of the Court 
in terms of Section 67 (3) of Act No. 32 of 1944 of rights of 
execution debtor in immovable property, which was sold 
subject to suspensive condition. 
The facts are extensively quoted in the judgment. 
Held: That as the first defendant had disposed of his rights to 

the property to the second defendant, any person who has 
acquired those rights, either direct from the first defendant 
or from any other person who had acquired them, assuming 
that there had been a proper cession in the latter event, is 
entitled to obtain transfer and it is not necessary that there 
should be any other contract between them. 

Held further: That as second defendant's rights to the land had 
already been attached by the Messenger of the Court when 
the cancellation of the sale between first and second defen­
dants was signed, the second defendant was not in a position, 
nor had he the right, to agree to the cancellation of the sale. 

Held further: That the sale by the first defendant to second 
defendant was subject to a suspensive condition and there­
fore second defendant's rights therein were attachable under 
the authority of Section 67 (3) of Act No. 32 of 1944, read 
with rule 35 of the Native Commissioners' Courts Rules. 

Cases referred to: 
Zeiler v. Rosseau, 1879, K. 35. 
Ex parte Roberts, 3. S.C .• 208. 
Andrew v. Muscott, 1923, E.D.L., 434. 
Kathrada Brothers v. Find lay & Sullivan, 1938, N .P.D. 321. 
Estate Guruvadu v. Thasary, 1938, N.P.D .. 513. 
Blaikie & Co. v. Lancashire, N.O. 1951 (4), S.A. 571 (N.P.D.). 
Parsons v. Modern Publicity, Ltd., 1951 (2), P.H.-A. 59. 

Stallltes. etc. re/erred to: 
Native Commissioners' Courts Rules Nos. 10 and 35. 
Magistrates' Courts Rule No. 39 (2). 
Section 13 (I) of Act No. 5 of 1910. 
Section 57, Chapter Vlll of Act No. 32 of 1917. 
Section-; 67 and 68 of Act No. 3 2 of 1944. 

App::al from the Court of the Native Commissioner, lxopo. 
Steenkamp (P):-
The facts of this case are that on the 30th August, 1947, the 

plaintiff and the second defendant (who has not appealed, the 
first defendant being the only appellant), entered into a written 
agreement of sale (hereinafter referred to as Agreement "A ") 
whereby the plaintiff. for the sum of £250, purchased from the 
second defendant "50 acres 3,074 square feet of subdivision A 
of South Slopes No. 5664, in the County of Pictermaritzburg, 
being a portion nearest figures A and B of the diagram prepared 
of the said subdivision A by R. C. Wilson, Land Surveyor, 
in September, 1929 ". The full extent of that subdivision was 
100 acres 6.148 square feet, so that the plaintiff purchased half 
of it from the second defendant under Agreement "A". At the 
time Agreement "A" was entered into, the second defendant 
was not the owner of the 100 acres 6,148 square feet of land in 
question (hereinafter referred to as "the land", in that, although 
the second defendant had then already purchased it, he had not 
received transfer thereof. The position then obtaining, and which 
still obtained at the time of the trial of the present action, was 
that the second defendant had purchased the land from the first 
defendant under a written agreement of sale (hereinafter referred 
to as Agreement " B "), which was concluded on the 30th 
January, 1947; the first defendant was also not the owner of the 
land as it had not been transferred to him from his late father's 
estate to which he was heir; nor had the land been transferred to 
that estate; the first defendant's late father had purchased the 
land but had not received transfer thereof from his nephew, 
Mandata, who had inherited it from his paternal grandfather. 
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Hamu who was also the paternal grandfather of the first defen­
dant. 'The latter admitted in his evidence, under cross-examina· 
tion that he could obtain transfer of the land if he made avail­
able' sufficient funds to cover the costs of the transfers involved. 

The plaintiff paid the second defendant £150 on the 30th 
August, 1947, in terms of Agreement "A"; the balance of the 
purchase price had, in terms of Agreement "A " to be paid in 
two equal instalments of £50 each, the first such instalment being 
due on or before the 31st August, 1948, and the final one on 
or before the 31st August, 1949. On the 4th February, 1949, 
the present second defendant sued the present plaintiff in the 
Native Commissioner's Court at lxopo, inter alia, for the 
cancellation of Agreement "A", averring in his claim that the 
£50 due to him thereunder on the 31st August, 1948, had not 
been paid. The present plaintiff defended that action (Case No. 
13 I 49) and counterclaimed £268 in respect of damages he had 
suffered as a result of second defendant's interference with his 
rights of occupation. In his plea in that action the present plaintiff 
averred that by agreement between him and the present second 
defendant £75 of £150 damages awarded to the latter against the 
first defendant in a prior action, concluded on the 27th April, 
1948, had been set off against the £100 balance of the purchase 
price due under Agreement" A", and that on the 17th July, 1948, 
he (present plaintiff) had paid the present second defendant's 
attorneys the sum of £24, and on the 26th July, 1948, the sum 
of £1, thus timeously liquidating the whole of the balance of 
£100 due under Agreement "A". The Court in Case No. 13/49 
entered judgment on the I 2th August, I 949, for the present 
plaintiff (then defendant) with costs on the claim in convention 
and for him in the sum of £76 (damages), with costs, on the 
counterclaim. It follows that when the present action was 
instituted on the 30th November, 1950, the plaintiff had already 
discharged his liability to the second defendant under Agreement 
"A" in full and was entitled to have the latter's reciprocal 
obligations thereunder performed by him, i.e. to have half of the 
land transferred to him by the second defendant. 

In the present action the plaintiff sued the first and second 
defendants for an order of Court compelling them to transfer 
the land (i.e. the whole 100 acres 6,148 square feet) to him. 

It has already been mentioned that the second defendant 
purchased the land, i.e. the whole 100 acres 6, I 48 square feet, 
from the first defendant, but it is necessary to go into this trans­
action in detail. 

On the 30th January, 1947, when the first defendant and the 
second defendant entered into Agreement "B ", whereby the 
second defendant purchased subdivision A of South Slopes 
No. 5664 in the County of Pietermaritzburg in extent 100 acres 
6,148 square feet from the first defendant for £500, the conditions 
of payment were that £300 had to be deposited on or before 
the 31st August, 1947, and the balance was to be paid in two 
instalments-one of £100 on or before 3 I st August, I 948, and 
the other of £100 on or before 31st August, 1949. The £300 
was duly paid as agreed upon, and according to the pre-trial 
admissions by the first defendant £150 was set off by virtue 
of the said judgment given on the 27th April, 1948, in favour of 
the second defendant against him (first defendant), and that on 
the 26th August, 1949, the plaintiff on behalf of and at the 
request of the second defendant tendered the balance of £50 
which the first defendant refused to accept. When plaintiff issued 
summons in the present action on the 30th November, 1950, 
he paid into Court the amount of £50 which the first defendant 
had previously refused to accept. 

We have now reached the stage where the second defendant 
had acquired the right, as against the first defendant, to have 
the whole of the land of 100 acres 6,148 square feet described 
above, transferred to him, seeing that the full purchase price of 
£500 had been paid in cash and by means of set-off and tender. 
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The whole of the second defendant's interest in his remammg 
portion of the land, i.e. the portion not sold by him to the 
plaintiff, was attached by the Messenger of the Native Commis­
sioner's Court at lxopo in a case (No. 16/ 1950) between one 
Ben Dhlamini and the second defendant, and was sold by him 
(the Messenger) in execution on the 13th May, 1950, to the 
plaintiff for £270. On the 27th March, 1951, the Me~senger of 
Court ceded and assigned to the plaintiff all the second defen­
dant's right, title and interest in and to the said portion of the 
land in question in pursuance of the said sale in execution. 

Plaintiff took steps by way of the present claim to have the 
land registered into his name. The first defendant defended 
the action but the second defendant was in default. 

The first defendant tendered a verbal plea which reads as 
follows:-

1. Plaintiff is not entitled to transfer from the first defendant. 
2. First defendant had cancelled the sale to the second defen-

dant (Agreement " B "). 
3. First defendant had no contract with plaintiff. 
4. First defendant resists plaintiff's claim. 

The Native Commissioner entered the following judgment:­
" For plaintiff with costs and the Court orders that-

( I) first defendant or a person on his behalf do all such 
acts as are necessary to effect transfer of the property 
known as subdivision A of South Slopes No. 5664 
from him to second defendant; and 

(2) that second defendant or a person on his behalf do in 
turn effect transfer to plaintiff; 

(3) in so far as the half sold by the Messenger in execution 
is concerned transfer may be effected according to 
law. 

The judgment against second defendant is by 
default and the order as to costs is joint and several, 
the one paying, the other to be absolved." 

The appeal noted by the first defendant to this Court is on the 
following grounds: -

" (1) The learned Additional Native Commissioner erred in 
holding that the plaintiff (respondent) acquired the right 
to one half of the property in question by virtue of the 
sale in execution at lxopo on the 13th May, 1950. It 
is respectfully submitted that plaintiff (respondent) 
bought only a 'spes' and that as at the 13th May, 
1950, the evidence shows that the 'spes' was 1101 the 
right to one half of the property but something consider­
ably less, which was subject to determination in Case 
No. 10 / 1950 in the Durban Native Commissioner's 
Court. 

(2) The Messenger's sale at lxopo on the 13th May, 1950, 
was irregular in that no notice of attachment and a 
copy of a Writ of Execution were served upon first 
defendant (appellant) in terms of Rule 35 of the Native 
Commissioners' Courts Rules. The Agreement of Sale, 
Annexure • C ' of the summons shows -

(a) the property was leased; 
(b) that there was a suspensive condition in that there 

could be no transfer to plaintiff (respondent) till 
the purchase price had been paid in full and the 
agreement, let alone transfer, could be cancelled if 
plaintiff defaulted. 

(3) The learned Native Commissioner erred in holding that 
the Messenger's Sale at lxopo divested second defendant 
(Johannes Magoso) of his rights because the sale was 
irregular. 
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(4) On the evidence the positiOn between first defendant 
(appellant) and second defendant as at 31st August, 1949, 
was that second defendant owed first defendant £50 plus 
the damages to his mealies (fixed later at £146) and the 
tender by second defendant (through plaintiff) was not 
adequate. 

(5) It is respectfully submitted that the judgment of the 
learned Additional Native Commissioner is incomplete 
in that-

(a) it does not mention the £50 tender rejected by 
first defendant and paifl into Court by plaintiff 
(respondent) which must go to first defendant 
(appellant); 

(b) it does not mention the provision by plaintiff 
(respondent) of the cost of transfer into his name 
as a pre-requisite to the signing of the necessary 
documents to effect such transfer." 

In so far as ground (5) is concern :!d, I agree that the judgment 
is not complete, but as the omissions concerned are of a minor 
nature and do not appear to have prejudiced the appellant as 
will be apparent from the reasons given later in this judgment, 
they cannot be said to affect the appeal on the merits and I 
am therefore of opinion that ground (5) of the appeal fails. 

Dealing with paragraphs (1) and (3) of the plea, once the Court 
is satisfied that the first defendant had disposed of his rights 
to the property to the second defendant, as is apparent from 
Agreement "B ", then any person who has acquired those rights, 
either direct from the first defendant or from any other person 
who had acquired them, assuming that there had been a proper 
cession in the latter event, is entitled to obtain transfer, and it 
is not necessary that there should be any other contract between 
them. 

In so far as concerns the cancellation of the sale (Agreement 
" B ") between the first and second defendants, mentioned in 
paragraph 2 of the plea, it is averred that as a result of an 
action instituted by the first defendant against the second defen­
dant during January, 1950, the parties, on the 1st June, 1950, 
signed a document entitled "Terms of Settlement". In this 
document the second defendant, who was defendant in that case, 
consented to cancellation of the Deed of Sale and Purchase 
dated the 30th January, 1947 (Agreement "B "). and undertook 
to vacate the property on the 30th June, 1950. When this 
cancellation of sale was signed, the Messenger of the Court had 
already attached and sold in execution the second defendant's 
rights to the said half of the land, and it follows that the second 
defendant was not in a position, nor had he the right to agree 
to the cancellation of the sale (Agreement " B ") on the 1st 
June, 1950. The first defendant knew that the right to the 
property had been attached by the Messenger of the Court, who 
gave evidence on behalf of plaintiff. The Messenger states:-

"A few days before the sale took place he (meaning first 
defendant) asked me when the sale was to take place. 
told him." 

There was no question that the second defendant did not 
know of the attachment as he was served with a proper notice of 
attachment. 

The Native Commissioner found proved, and this is borne out 
by the evidence, that the first defendant became aware of the 
plaintiff's interest before the 31st August, 1949, and at the latest 
by the 13th May, 1950, and that he did not intervene in the 
sale in execution on the latter date. It is therefore to be taken 
that he acquiesced in the sale, and if a person stands by while 
his property is being sold, he cannot be heard to complain 
afterwards. 

7010-3 
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The agreement to cancel the Agreement " B" would appear 
to have been done with the object of depriving the plaintiff of 
certain rights he had already acquired, to the knowledge of both 
defendants. There could have been no other object. 

The first defendant has made an attempt to show that at the 
time £150 was set off he had a claim against the second 
defendant for damages, but he cannot be heard where he tenders 
such evidence as, according to the pre-trial admissions made by 
him in the present case, the amount of £150 was set off against 
the £200 still owing under Agreement " B" by the judgment given 
in favour of second defendant for the £150 in question in the case 
between them. An unliquidated claim cannot be used as a set 
off. 

Dealing with paragraph (I) of the notice of appeal, I fail to 
see how the first defendant can term rights to specific immovable 
property a "spes" when defendants by the two respective Deeds 
of Sale (Agreements "A" and " B ") had sold the land in 
question. There was no such condition attached to the sale 
and while both sellers did not have title to the property, they 
are nevertheless not prevented by law from selling property 
of which they are not yet the owners; only a person other than 
the two defendants may impeach their contracts of sale. 

Grounds (2) and (3) deal with the same aspect, viz., that as 
the first defendant was not given notice of attachment, the attach­
ment is not valid. The first defendant was not the owner of the 
property and I do not think it was ever the intention that notice, 
if such notice were necessary, should be given to a person who 
might have an incorporeal right in the property. How can a 
Messenger possibly know that there are persons other than the 
registered owners sufficiently interestetd in the property Jo expect 
notice of attacthment. There might be numerous such persons 
whose names are not apparent from information available ~o the 
Messenger. 

Ground (4) is without substance as the second defendant made 
a pre-trial admission in the present action in the Court a quo 
that an amount of £150 was set off against the amount still 
owing on the purchase price due under Agreement "B ". He 
cannot be heard afterwards to say that at that time he also 
had a claim in a Court of law against the second defendant. 
The set-off was automatic and while I concede the payment of 
the £150 was not yet due on the purchase price of the property 
at the time the first defendant incurred the judgment debt, he 
has nevertheless accepted the position that there had been a set 
off. It would be more correct to state that of the £150 judgment 
of a competent Court. an amount of £100 thereof was used on 
the 31st August, 1948, to pay the instalment due on that date and 
£50 towards the instalment due on 31st August, 1949. 

Reverting to ground (5) of the appeal: As pointed out by 
the Presiding Officer in the Court a quo in his judgment, the 
appellant (first defendant) is obviously entitled to the £50 tendered, 
i.e. against transfer by him of the land to the second defendant, 
and the omission to make mention thereof in his judgment cannot 
therefore be said to prejudice the first defendant in any way. 
First defendant must pay the costs of the transfer of the land 
to him, as provided by clause 4 of Agreement "B ". The costs 
of the subsequent transfers involved, i.e. from first defendant to 
second defendant and from the latter to the plaintiff are, in the 
absence of any provision thereanent in Agreements "A " and 
"B ", in law, payable by the respective sellers, see "Principles 
of South African Law", Wille (Third Edition), at page 372; so 
that there also cannot be said to be any prejudice to the first 
defendant from the omissions in this respect. 
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In the result the appeal should, in my opm1on , be dismissed 
with costs, but in order that the judgment of the Court a quo 
may be definite and complete in all respects, that judgment 
should be altered to read as follows:-

"For plaintiff with costs and it is ordered that-
(1) the following sales, relative to the immovable proper~y 

described below, be and are hereby confirmed:-
(a) The sale by Mzingelwa Putini (first defendant) to 

Johannes Magoso (second defendant) of the whole 
of the said immovable property as per Deed of 
Sale dated the 30th January, 1947 (Exhibit 'A'); 

(b) the sale by Johannes Magoso (second defendant) 
to Prince Cele (plaintiff) of a certain half of the 
said immovable property as per Deed of Sale 
dated the 30th August, 1947 (Exhibit 'D '); 

(c) the sale on the 13th May, 1950, by the Messenger 
of the Native Commissioner's Court at lxopo to 
Prince Cele (plaintiff) of all the interest held by 
J ohannes Magoso (second defendant) in the 
remaining half of the said immovable property, 
in respect of which sale the said Messenger gave 
the cession dated the 27th March, 1951 (Exhibit 
• E '); 

Description of Property: Subdivision A of South Slopes 
No. 5664, situate in the County of Pietermaritzburg, Natal, 
in extent 100 acres 6,148 square feet; 

(2) within a period of twelve (12) months from the date of this 
judgment, Mzingelwa Putini (first defendant) shall, at his 
expense, as provided by clause 4 of the Deed of Sale 
dated the 30th January, 1947, referred to above, obtain 
transfer to his name of the whole of the said immovable 
property and shall also sign all the necessary documents 
required to give effect to the transfer of that immovable 
property from him to Johannes Magoso (second defendant), 
the cost of lastmentioned transfer to be paid by the said 
Mzingelwa Putini (first defendant); 

(3) within the said period J ohannes Magoso (second defendant) 
shall sign all the necessary documents to give effect to the 
transfer of the certain half of the said immovable property 
specified in sub-paragraph (1) (b) above from him to 
Prince Cele (plaintiff); the costs of this transfer to be paid 
by J ohannes Magoso (second defendant); 

(4) the remaining half of the said immovable property shall 
be transferred to Prince Cele (plaintiff) in terms of the 
said cession (Exhibit 'E '); 

(5) in the event of the first and second defendants failing to 
perform all the said acts as are required by them to have 
the transfers specified in sub-paragraphs (2) and (3) a hove 
effected within the period stipulated in those sub-para­
graphs, the Clerk of the Native Commissioner's Court at 
lxopo is hereby authorised to perform all such acts on 
their behalf and to sign all the necessary documents 
required to give effect to all the transfers involved, pro­
vided that the costs of such transfers are paid by Prince 
Cele (plaintiff) without prejudice to his rights to recover 
such costs from the defendants; 

(6) the £50 tendered and paid into Court by Prince Cele (plain­
tiff) shall be paid to Mzingelwa Putini (first defendant) 
against the transfer of the whole of the said immovable 
property from him to J ohannes Magoso (second defendant). 
The judgment against the second defendant is by default 

and the order as to costs of this suit against the first and 
second defendants is joint and several, the one paying, the 
other to be absolved to the extent of such payment, but 
without prejudice to the former's right to recover from the 
latter any portion of the half share of the total costs payable 
by the latter. 
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Date of this (Additional Native Commissioner's) judgment: 
25.7.1951." 

Balk (Permanent Member): 
The facts of this case emerge from the learned President's 

judgment which also sets out the grounds of appeal. 
The first defend:mt was represented by a legal practitioner in 

the Court a quo and therefore in terms of Rule 10 of the Rule<; 
of this Court published under Government Notice No. 2254 of 
1928, he i~ restricted to the grounds specified in his notice of 
appc:.Il. Those grounds arc confined to one aspect of the case, 
viz., the plaintiff's claim only in so far as it is based on his 
purchase of the second defendant's interest in the remaining half 
of the land at the sale in execution. It follows that it is unneces· 
sary for this Court to consider questions arising out of the sale 
concluded under Agreement " A " in so far as these may affect 
the first defendant. i.e. whether there was privity of contract 
between him and the plaintiff as regards that transaction; whether 
that transaction amounted to a proper cession to the plaintiff 
of the right to half of the whole land acquired by the second 
defendant from the first defendant under Agreement " B ", and, 
if so, whether such cession was effective against the first 
defendant in the absence of the latter's prior consent thereto. 
seeing that the second defendant had, under Agreement "A" 
disposed of only half of his right against the first defendant. see 
Blaikic & Co. Ltd. v. Lanca<;hire, N.O. 1951 (4). S.A.. 571 
(N.P.O.); whether the absence of such prior consent had been 
cured by the first defendant's acquiescence in Agreement "A" 
in the circumstances disclosed in the plaintiff's evidence; in other 
words, whether the first defendant should be held in those 
circumstances to have ratified the cession in question; if not. 
whether the absence of such prior consent was cured by the 
subsequent attachment and sale in execution of the second 
defendant's interest in the remaining half of the land and the 
Mes>enger of the Court's cession of that interest to the plaintiff 
in pursuance of that sale 

Coming to a consideration of the grounds of appeal: As 
pointed out by the learned President in his judgment. the 
Messenger of the Court attached and sold in execution on the 
13th May, 1950, not a "spes" but a specific right already 
acquired at that time by the second defendant from the first 
defendant by virtue of Agreement " B ". viz., the right to the 
transfer of the land once he (second defendant) had discharged 
his reciprocal obligations under that agreement. i.e. the payment 
of the stipulated purchase price within the period agreed upon. 
a<; in fact he did as is apparent from the learned President's 
judgment; the right so sold, in execution. assuming that that sale 
was valid. could obviou<;ly not be affected by another pending 
action between the defendants in connection with quite a different 
matter, i.e. for an unliquidated cbim for damag-:s. sec Parsons 
v. Modern Publicity, Ltd., 1951 (2) P.H., A. 59; nor bv the 
arrangement entered into between them, without plaintiff's 
consent and suhscquent to tlte attachment and sale in execution 
in que~tion whereby the cancella:ion of Agreement " B" formed 
part of the terms of settlement in such other action, vide Andrew 
v. 1\fuscott, 1923, E.D.L. 434. This leads to a consideration of 
the second and third grounds of appeal. 

If, as found by the presiding officer in the Court a quo, Agree­
ment " B" was not a sale under a suspcnsive condition; then_it 
seems to me that the sale in execution was invalid. This will 
be apparent from what follows. 

Section 35 of the relevant regulations in respect of Courts of 
Native Commissioners, published under Government Notice No. 
2253 of 1928, as amended, extended to those Courts the provisions 
of Chapter Ylll of the Magistrats' Courts Act, 1917 (Act 
No. 32 of 1917), and any amendment thereof, together with the 
relative Orders d:!aling with the execution of dvil judgments. 
Section 68 of the present Magistrates' Courts Act, 1944 (No. 
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32 of 1944), by which Section 57 in Chapter VIII of Act No. 
32 of 1917 was superseded [see Section 13 (1) of Act No. 5 
of 1910], authorises the attachment and sale in execution of 
the interests of an execution debtor in immovable property 
only if such property had been sold to him under a hire purchase 
contract or under a suspensive condition. It follows that if any 
immovable property was sold to a judgment debtor otherwise 
than under a hire purchase contract or a suspensive condition, 
the attachment of his interest therein is invalid since it is not 
one of the incorporeal movables expressly enumerated in the 
said Section 68, see Kathrada Brothers v. Findlay & Sullivan, 
1938, N.P.D. 321, Estate Guruvadu v. Thasary, 1938, N.P.D., 
513, and the authorities referred to therein. 

To my mind the presiding officer in the Court a quo was 
wrong in his finding that the sale entered into between the 
defendants in terms of Agreement "B " was not subject to a 
suspensive condition in that the last clause of that agreement 
gave the seller the right to cancel the contract immediately 
should the purchaser fail to meet any of the instalments on 
account of the purchase price on due date, and further thereupon 
to eject the purchaser from the land and to claim from him 
any damages that may have been sustained. It seems to me 
that this clause clearly indicates that the intention of the parties 
was t!lat transfer of the land was not to be given to the purchaser 
until such time as the seller had paid the whole of the purchase 
price within the period stipulated in the agreement; in other 
words, it seems clear that what was contemplated by the parties 
was that, although credit was given, the ownership in the land 
was not to be passed to the purchaser until he had paid the 
purchase price in full in terms of Agreement "B ". That being 
so, the sale appears to be subject to a suspensivc condition. In 
this connection it must be mentioned that the view advanced by 
the learned author in "The Law of Sale of Goods in South 
Africa" (Mackeurtan) (3rd Edition), at pages 59 and 60 has not 
been lost sight of, VIZ., his view that a clause in an agreement 
of the nature in question which altered the normal effect of 
delivery, did not have the effect of suspending the sale, but 
formed a pactum adjectum. As conceded by him, however, in 
Note 13 at the foot of the pages referred to above, the general 
trend of the decisions by our Supreme Courts has been to regard 
such a clause as a suspensive condition. It is therefor only 
reasonable to suppose that when the Legislature enacted Section 
67 of Act No. 32 of 1944, it held the same view. In any event 
there is authority for the proposition that an agreement containing 
a clause of the nature in question is regarded as a hire purchase 
contract, see footnote 13 referred to above, and Wille & Millin's 
Mercantile Law of South Africa (11th Edition) at pages 134 
et seq. It follows that the second defendant's rights under 
Agreement ', B" were attachable -under the authority of Section 
67 (3) of Act No. 32 of 1944, read with Section 35 of the 
Regulations referred to above. 

The irregularity specified in the second ground of appeal now 
falls to be examined to ascertain whether or not its effect was 
to render the sale in execution invalid. In Zeiler v. Rosseau 
(1878) K. 35, it was held that owing to the irregula rities in 
the execution, the sale was invalid, but in that case, apart from 
the fact that the execution creditor was wrongly named in the 
writ, there was no return of nulla bo11a as to the execution 
debtor's movables and the attachment of his immovable property 
under that writ was contingent upon there being insuffic·e:1t 
movables to attach for the purpose of meeting the judgment debt. 
The lastmentioned irregularity was therefore a serious one as 
in the absence of a nulla bona return regarding the movables 
there was no authority under the writ to attach the immovable 
property. The circumstances in Zeiler's case are, however, quite 
different from those .in the present case. Here the Messenger 
of the Court concerned, did not exceed his authority under 
the writ and he effected proper service of the notice of 
attachment on the judgment debtor (second defendant). What 
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he (the Messenger) failed to do was to serve the notice of attach­
ment on the first defendant in the manner required by Rule 
of Court 39 (2) published under Government Notice No. 814 
of 1945, which was corrected by Government Notice No. 1127 of 
1945. It is clear from the evidence of the Messenger of the 
Court concerned that he advised the first defendant a few days 
before the sale in execution in question took place, when it 
would take place; so that in fact the first defendant was given 
informal notice of attachment and he could have applied to the 
Court for an order interdicting the Messenger of the Court from 
holding the sale if he considered that he had been prejudiced 
in not having received formal notice of attachment; or he could 
have attended the sale and bid for the property. He failed to 
adopt either of these courses and it therefore seems to me that the 
irregularity in question falls to be regarded as not being of 
sufficient importance to vitiate the sale in execution, see Ex parte 
Roberts, 3 S.C., 208, and 1\fackeurtan's publication referred to 
above at page 48. 

Counsel for appellant contended that the attachment referred 
to above was affected by the lease of the land, but to my mind 
there is no substance in this contention, since the only lease 
concerned appears to be that referred to in paragraph 2 of Agree­
ment " B" and according to that paragraph that lease expired 
long before the attachment in question was effected. 

In my view therefore the sale in execution in question falls 
to be regarded as valid and accordingly the first three grounds of 
appeal fail. 

I am also of opinion that there is no substance in the remain­
ing two grounds of apeal for the reasons given by the learned 
President in his judgment. 

I therefore agree that the appeal should be dismissed with 
costs; further that the judgment of the Court a quo should 
be altered as indicated in the learned President's judgment for 
the reasons given therein. 

Wessels (Member): I concur. 
For Appellants: Mr. H. R. Law of Messrs. Pullin & Law, 

Durban. 

For Respondent: Adv. J. H. Niehaus, i/b Messrs. Raulstone 
& Co., Pietermaritzburg. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 2/52. 

l\IPA~TSHA v. ~GOLONKULU AND A~OTIIER. 

PoRT ST. J OHNS: 22nd January, 1952. Before Sleigh, President, 
Wilbraham and Midgley, Members of the Court. 

NATIVE CUSTOM. 
Native Appeal Case-- Marriage by Native Custom-Mother giving 

her daughter in marriage acts for gaurdiar..-Dowry-Fines 
merge in-Property acquired by wife belongs to Iter house and 
under control of Iter husband-Practice and Procedure-Actions 
in connection with union should be brought against guardian 
and not the mother of the wifie. 

Summary: Plaintiff married second defendant according to 
Native custom and paid 4 cattle and 10 sheep as dowry to her 
mother the first defendant; four children were born of the 
sa!d union; seco!Jd defendan_t deser!ed plaintiff's kraal talking 
wtth her the chtldren, certam furntture and effects. Plaintiff 
now claims the return of his wife failing which restoration 
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of dowry; return of his children, return of furniture and 
effects. Defendants deny the alleged customary union. They 
plead that cattle and sheep were paid as fine for the seduction 
and pregnancy of second defendant. Second defendant admits 
removing the furniture but avers she purchased same with 
her own money which she earned. The Assistant Native 
Commissioner entered judgment for dS!fendants. Plaintiff now 
appeals. 

Held: 
(1) That on the evidence the cattle were paid as dowry, but 

in any case the fine merged in dowry as soon as the 
union was consummated and a valid customary union 
consequently exists, between plaintiff and second defen­
dant. 

(2) That if the furniture was acquired by second defendant 
with her own earnings, it belongs to her house and is 
under the control of plaintiff. 

(3) That if a woman gives her daughter into marriage 
according to Native custom she acts as agent for the 
guardian of the daughter who should be sued in any 
action in connection with the union and not the mother. 

(4) That i~ is contrary to the decisions in this Court for a 
tnan to join his wife in an action claiming her return 
or restoration of dowry. 

(5) That there should be no order as to costs. 

Cases referred to:-
Ponya v. Sitate, 1944, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 13. 
Kwezi v. Raji, 4 N.A.C., 65. 
Sixakwe v. Nonjoli, 1, N.A.C., 11. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Bizana. 
Sleigh (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:-
It is common cause that first defendant is the mother of 

second defendant. In the particulars of claim it is alleged that 
plaintiff married second defendant according to native custom and 
paid four cattle and 10 sheep as dowry to first defendant, that 
four children were born of the said union, that on 11th June, 
1951, second defendant deserted plaintiff's kraal taking with her 
the three surviving children, certain furniture and effects to the 
value of £59. 14s. and £35 in cash. He claims-

(a) the return of his wife failing which restoration of one 
beast or payment of its value £8, and the return of the 
said three children; 

(b) return of the cash and the furniture and effects or pay­
ment of their value; 

(c) alternative relief. 
Defendants in their plea deny the alleged customary union. 

They plead that the cattle and sheep were paid as fine for the 
seduction and pregnancy of second defendant, and that as plain­
tiff offered marriage, first defendant demanded two oxen, a 
horse and a saddle and bridle as lobola, but plaintiff failed to 
pay these ano consequently no marriage took place. They admit 
that plaint iff and second defendant cohabited in Johannesburg 
for a number of years and that she bore him four children, but 
they maintain that as no fine was paid in respect of the three 
children they belong to defendant's people. In regard to cbim 
(b) second defendant denies laking the £35 cash. She admits 
removing the furniture and effects, but she avers that she acquired 
these with her own earnings while working on the Rand. She 
alleges further that there are still in plaintiff's possession a 
wardrobe valued at £6. 10s., two chairs valued at £1 and a t'lble 
valued at £3. She counterclaims for the delivery of these articles 
or payment of their value, and also for the sum of £48 which she 
alleges, she handed to plaintiff on the Rand for the purpose of 
purchasing property for her and which he failed to do. 
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The Assistant Native Commissioner, after hearing evidence from 
both sides entered judgment for defendants with costs on the claim 
in convention and dismissed the counterclaim with costs. Plain· 
tiff now appeals against the judgment on the claim in convention. 

The grounds of appeal are to a large extent a detailed review 
of the evidence and the attention of the appellant's attorneys is 
invited to the remarks in Molatu Ponya v. Kekitla Sitate [1944, 
N.A.C. (C & 0). 13]. 

It is perfectly clear from the evidence of defendants themselves 
that plaintiff married second defendant according to native cus­
tom. They state that plamtiff IU"a/aed second defendant, that the 
twala was reported to first defendant and marriage offered, that 
plaintiff paid four cattle and ten sheep, that first defendant 
demanded additional dowry and allowed second defendant to 
remain at plaintiff's kraal as his wife, and that she lived with him 
for nine years. Further, second defendant admits that she told 
the magistrate that she was plaintiff's wife. Moreover, there is 
evidence, which might well be true, that second defendant became 
pregnant after the elopement had been reported and marriage 
offered. In that case the cattle and sheep could not have been 
paid as fine for pregnancy. But even if she was pregnant at the 
time of the elopement. it is common cause that marriage was 
offered before plaintiff was charged with the pregnancy. In such 
circumstances it is noj usual to demand a bopa beast before dis­
cussing the payment of dowry [see assessors' opinion in Sakkanka 
v. Totsholo, 1945, N .A.C. (C. & 0.). 11]. But even if the cattle 
and sheep had been paid as fine, that fine merged in dowry as 
soon as the union was consummated, and there can be no doubt 
that it was consummated when first defendant accepted the stock 
and allowed second defendant to remain with plaintiff (see Kwezi 
v. Rlji, 4, N.A.C., 65). The fact that plaintiff did not pay the 
additional dowry demanded does not affect the position. Pay­
ment could have been enforced by the teleka of second defen· 
dant. All the essentials of a customary union are present in 
this case and the Native Commissioner consequently erred in 
holding that plaintiff and second defendant were not legally 
married. 

Having come to the conclusion that a valid union exists between 
plaint!ff and second defendant, it is unnecessary to decide whether 
or not the articles in question were purchased with her earnings. 
They will, in any event, belon; to her house and will be under 
the control of plaintiff (Sixakwe v. Nonjoli, I, N.A.C. 11). 

In so far as the claim for £35 is concerned, we agree with the 
Native Commissioner that plaintiff has not proved that second 
defendant took possession of the cash. 

The appeal consequently succeeds, but it is clear that this action 
was brought and defended under Native custom. If a woman 
gives her daughter in marriage she acts as agent for the guardian 
of the daughter according to native custom, and in an action in 
connection with the union the husband must demand the return 
of his wife from her dowry holder. First defendant states that 
she has a son. He should have been sued. In any event it would 
be utterly futile to order her to restore the wife or dowry as the 
dowry holder would not be hound by whatever she did. Nor 
would she be liable for the restoration of the articles, which she 
!'ays are in second defendant's control, as she is not the head of 
the kra:tl. 

The result is that plaintiff is entitled under the claim for alter­
native relief to a declaratory order that a valid union exists 
between him and second defendant and that he is entitled to the 
custody of the three children. He is also entitled as against 
second defendant to the return of the articles claimed. 
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On the question of costs in the court below, Counsel agree that 
there should be no order. Although it is customary to pay 
dowry to the head of the kraal where the girl is found, and 
although (he husband is entitled to demand restoration from the 
head of that kraal if the latter has not accounted for the dowry 
to the owner, the first defendant in this case is no! the head of 
the kraal and should not have been sued. Moreover, she should 
have excepted to the summons. Plaintiff and first defendant are 
therefore equally to blame for the inconclusiveness of these pro­
ceedings. Further, it is contrary to the decisions of this Court 
for a man to join his wife in an action claiming her return or the 
restoration of dowry. And it is futile for plaintiff to pray for 
costs against second defendant, for he is himself liable to pay 
costs incurred by her. We consequently agree that there should 
be no order as to costs in the Court below, 

The appeal is allowed with costs and the judgment on the claim 
in convention in the Court below is altered to read:-

Second defendant is declared to be the customary wife of 
plaintiff and the latter is entitled to the custody of the three 
children, the issue of the union. Second defendant is 
ordered to restore the articles removed by her. Absolution 
from the instance in regard to the claim for £35. There will 
be no order as to costs. 

For appellant: Mr. Birkett, Port St. Johns. 

For respondent: Mr. C. Stanford, Lusikisiki. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 3/52. 

NAMPETSHWA v. KAMBULA. 

PoRT ST. JOHNS: 22nd January, 1952. Before Sleigh, President, 
Wilbraham and Midgley, Members of the Court. 

NATIVE LAW AND CUSTOM. 
Native Appeal Case-Native custom- Dowry-Refund of engage­

ment cattle-Misconduct on part of girl-Marriage of girl to 
another man-On principle a man cannot hold two dowries in 
111!spect of same woman. 

Summary: At the beginning of 1936, M, the brother of appel­
lant became engaged to N, the daughter of respondent, and 
paid five cattle, a horse and £3 in cash on account of dowry. 
In March, 1936, M was arrested for killing a man. He was 
released in April, 1936, and in July went to work on the 
mines. He has not been heard of and it is unknown if he 
is still alive. N gave birth to an illegitimate child by one 
Mpikwa between 1936 and 1940. I_n 1940 she married 
Nyeleswa who paid dowry for her. Appellant, in his capacity 
as representative of M, claims refund of ~he dowry paid on 
behalf of M or payment of their value £35. The Assistant 
Native Commissioner held that M had rejected N thereby 
forfeiting the dowry paid. Appellant appeals. 

Held: 
(1) That misconduct by an engaged girl is a ground for can­

cellation of the engagement and recovery of the engage­
ment cattle. It does not automatically cancel the engage­
ment. 

(2) That an unsuccessful suitor is entitled to restoration of the 
dowry paid in resp~ct of a proposed marriage, provided 
he was not responsible for breach of the agreement to 
marry. 
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(3) That since M did not renounce the engagement on account 
of N's misconduct and since he has absconded, it was 
he who was responsible for the failure of the contem­
plated marriage and consequently the dowry paid on his 
behalf became forfeited. 

(4) That the principle that a man cannot f!old two dowries 
in respect of the same woman is not applicable in this 
case as the dowry paid on behalf of M. became forfeited 
to respondent. 

Cases referred to: 
Nombombo v. Stofile, 1902, S.C., 253. 

Mgadi v. Nogwaza, 1943, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 14. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Bizana. 

Sleigh (P), delivering the judgment of the Court:-
The facts in this case are as follows:- At the beginning of 1936 

Macebo 1\lpetshwa, the brother of appellant, became engaged to 
Nobelungu, the daughter of respondent, and appellant paid five 
cattle, a horse and £3 in cash on account of dowry. The marriage 
was to be by Christian rites. In March, 1936, Macebo was 
arrested for killing a man. He was released in April, 1936, and 
in July went to work on the mines. He has not been heard of 
again and it is not known if he is still alive. Retween 1936 and 
1940 Nobelungu gave birth to an illegitim.1te child by one 1\lpikwa 
and in 1940 she m.1rried Nyelezwa who paid dowry for her. 

In this action appellant, in his capacity as representative of 
1\lacebo, claims refund of the dowry paid on behal[ of Macebo 
or payment of its value £53. The Assistant Native Commissioner 
held that l\lacebo had rejected Nobelungu thereby forfeiting the 
dowry already paid. He entered judgment for respondent and 
appellant now appeals on the ground that the judgment is bad 
in Jaw and contrary to native custom and that appellant is entitled 
to a refund of the dowry either on the ground of Nobelungu's 
misconduct with 1\lpikwa, or on the ground of her marriage to 
Nyelezwa, or on the ground that respondent cannot hold two 
dowries for the same woman, or on all three of the said grounds. 

It is correct that 1\lacebo could have renounced the engagement 
and claimed refund of the dowry paid when Nobelungu became 
pregnant by another man, but the fact remains that he did not 
do so, a nd misconduct by an engaged girl is no bar to her marriage 
to the man to whom she is engaged. If the evidence of plaintiff's 
witness Nobelungu is to be believed, Macebo did not regard her 
misconduct as sufficient cause for repudiating the engagement, 
because he went to work to earn additional dowry after he had 
become aware of her misconduct. 

There is more substance in the contention that appellant is 
entitled to a refund on the ground that respondent has given 
Nobelungu in marriage to another man. An unsuccessful suitor 
is entitled to the restoration of the dowry paid by him or on his 
behalf provided he was not responsible for the breach of the agree­
ment to marry [see Nombombo v. Stofile. 1902, S.C .. 353 and 
Mgadi ~·. Nogwaza, 1943, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 14]. 

The ouestion for decision is therefore whether 1\facebo was 
responsible for the failure of the contemplated marriage between 
him and Nobelungu. 

Appellant states that Macebo was recruited for the mines on 
a nine months' contract through a recruiting agent and that he 
went to work to earn the balance of the dowry. The Court must 
assume that he took up his employment because if he had failed 
to do so the agent would have been advised and the matter could 
have been brought to the notice of appellant. There are no 
grounds for believing that he_had died. He did not communicate 
with appellant or Nobelungu as one would have expected him to 
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do, nor did he remit any part of his wages so that the balance of 
the dowry could be paid. Having regard to the reason why he 
went to work one would have expected him to reHirQ _on the termi­
nation of his contract so that the proposed marriage could be 
entered into. His failure to do so supports appellant's own state­
ment to the effect that he did not intend coming home again. 
It is clear therefore that he absconded. What his reasons were 
we do not know. Now according to the opinion of the Native 
Assessors in Mgadi's case supra if an engaged man absconds it is 
taken that he rejects the girl and the dowry paid by him becomes 
forfeited to the girl's father. This is the position here. It was 
he who was responsible for the failure of the contemplated mar­
riage. 

The contention that in Native Law a man cannot hold two 
dowries for the same woman is correct only if the engagement 
has been broken off or the union dissolved through the fault of 
the woman. The principle, if one can call it such, also applies 
where a widow has re-married. When, however, the engagement 
was broken off or the union dissolved through the fault of the 
man, as in this case, he forfeits the dowry paid by him or on his 
behalf. In that case the principle does not apply. 

The appeal is dismissed with costs. 
For Appellant: Mr. Birkett, Port St. Johns. 
For respondent: Mr. C. Stanford, Lusikisiki. 

NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 128/51. 

MAHLOBO v. LUVUNO. 

PIETERMARITZBURG: 23rd January, 1952. Before Steenkamp, 
President; Balk and Wessels, Members of the Court. 

(1) COMMON LAW. (2) ZULU CUSTOM. 
Seduction-Parentage-Once intercourse is admitted, the girl's 

word as to who the farher of lzer illegitimate child is, is to be 
accepted, subject to certain qualifications. 

Maintenance-The father of an illegitimate Native clzild is not 
liable for its maintenance in Na~al. 
Summary: Plaintiff sued defendant for damages for seduction 

of plaintiff's daughter, Gladys. Defendant, whilst admitting 
that he has had intercourse with Gladys, denied that he was 
the father of the child in question. 

Held: That it is trite law that if a man admits having had 
connection with a girl, but denies he is the father of the 
child, the girl will be believed as to the paternity, even though 
it is proved that other men have had connection with her, 
unless the man can show that from the date upon which 
he had connection with her and the other circumstances of 
the case, it is physjcally impossible for him to be the father, 
or unless the Court is of ooinion that the woman is not 
worthy of. belief. -

Held: Further that the Courts are not prepared to accept any 
evidence as to whether or not a child resembles a particular 
person in cases of this nature. 

Held: Further that in Native Law, as it obtains in Natal, the 
natural father of an illegitimate child is not liable for its 
maintenance. 

Cases referred to: 
Nzimande v. Phungula, 1951, N.A.C. (N.E.), 386. 
Mauzi v. Mngomezulu, 1943, N.A.C. (T. & N.), 91. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Camper­
down. 
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Steenkamp (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
Jn the Native Commissioner's Court at Campcrdown, the 

plaintiff sued tho! defendant for £to for damages he sustained as 
a result ot defendant h;.~.ving ::.educed plaintiffs daughter, Gbdys. 
He also claims £2 per month, being maintenance of the minor 
child. Defendant's plea was "denies parentage". The Native 
Commissioner entered judgment for defendant with costs and 
against this judgment an appeal has been noted by the plaintiff 
on the grounds-

.. (I) that the judgment was against the weight of evidence 
and against law; and 

(2) the defendant failed to discharge the onus of paternity." 

According to the evidence, it is common c.tuse that the defen­
dunt and G ladys had been lovers and that he had intercourse 
with her, but in hi<; evidence he states that intercourse only took 
place in July, 1950, and therefore he could not have been the 
tather of the child which was born on the :!8th January, 1951. 
Gladys, on the other hand, states that she first got to know the 
defendant when she was still at school in 1948 and that they 
became intimate. 

According to the summons the intercourse took place about 
May, 1950. It is trite law that if a man admits having had con­
nection with a girl, but denies he is the father of the child, the 
girl will be believed as to the paternity, even though it be proved 
that other men have had connection with her, unless the man 
l:an show that from the date upon which he had connection 
wtth her and the other circumstances of the case. it is physically 
impossible for him to be the father, or unless the Court is of 
opmion that the woman IS not worthy of belief. (~laasdorp, Vol. 
IV, 5th Edition, page 141.) There is the uncontroverted evidence 
uf GlatJys that defendant used to come to their home and brought 
gifts for the child. 

The Native Commissioner found proved-
()) that plaintiff's ward and the defendant had been lovers; 
(2) that intimacy did take place; 
(3) that a child w.ts born to plaintiff's daughter on the 28th 

January, 1951; 
(4) that defendant was not the father of this child. 
Fact3 Nos. (1), (2) and (3) are common cau<;e. In arriving at 

the fou !h decision the Native Commissioner states that a fact 
which weighed heavily with him is that not only did the girl 
conce.tl her pregnancy from her people, but she even concealed 
it frum her lover, i.e. the defendant, until she must have been 
111 an advanced state of pregnancy. Also, when asked by her 
guardian, i.e. plaintiff, who the man was who had rendered her 
pregnant, she remained mute, and only signified that it was 
defendant after her guardian had thrashed her. it is true that 
the girl only told the defendant after she had been pregnant 
for five months, that she was in that condition. In certain cases 
the non-divulgence timeously by the woman of her pregnancy 
to her iover is fatal to her father's claim for damages, but it 
cannot be said that this concealment is fat.tl to pl.tintiff's case 
in this instance. In the present case the girl states in her evidence 
that the defendant had informed her not to mention the fact 
that she was pregn<.~nt, and I can quite understand that when 
the girl's father questioned her about her pregnancy, she was 
thinktng more of the interests of her lover, whom she wished to 
protect, than those of her father. 

Plaintiff and the defendant and his people met when the girl 
was about eight months pregnant and it is very important to 
mention what occurred at that meeting. It is observed that the 
defendant, after being told that the girl was eight months 
pregnant, did not the re and then state that he could not possibly 
have been the father of the child to be born. What he was con­
cerned with more than a nything else is whether the child, when 
born, would resemble him. If he were not the father of the 
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child, as he wants the Court to believe, he would not have 
suggested that they should. wait until the child was born, as he 
surely must have known, if his evidence is to be believed, that 
he could not possibly be its father, seeing that she told them 
at the meeting that she was then already eight months pregnant 
and according to his evidence he had first had sexual intercourse 
with her only six months prior to that meeting. 

We have the evidence on behalf of the plaintiff that the child 
resembles the defendant. On the other hand there is the evidence 
of the defendant and his mother that the child does not resemble 
him. The Courts are not prepared to accept any evidence as 
to whether a child resembles a particular person or not in cases 
of this nature and this therefore cannot be taken into consideration 
at all. I am aware, as stated by the Native Commissioner, that 
Natives do attach considerable importance to this aspect, but that 
is only an opinion which the Courts cannot accept. 

Whilst on the pleadings the onus is on the plaintiff to prove 
that defendant is the father of the child, we cannot get away 
from the law that once intercourse is admitted, then the girl's 
word is to be accepted with, of course, certain qualifications. 

I cannot find anything in the evidence of the girl that she is 
to be disbelieved altogether, and to me it seems the determining 
factor in the whole case, is the defendant's admission that he 
had intercourse with the girl. 

Two letters, written by the defendant, were handed in. The 
first letter is not dated, but I notice from the envelope in which 
the letter was enclosed, that it was posted on the 14th July, 1950. 
This letter, it appears, is one written by the defendant, making 
an appointment with Gladys to meet him at or near a certain 
kraal after dark, so they must already have been intimate with 
each other bv that time. The second letter, written on the 11th 
January, 195L by the defendant, is an enquiry as to whether 
Gladys had given birth to a child yet. In this letter defendant 
again commits himself, i.e. that he would make his decision after 
he had seen the child. Why should he do this if he was not, 
in fact, the father of the child, since, as stated by him, intercourse 
first took place in July, 1950, and she had told him and the 
others at the meeting in December, 1950, that she was then eight 
months pregnant. 

In my opinion he has committed himself in this letter and also 
in the statement he made at the family gathering that he could 
have been the father of the child. 

Then there is also the conflict between the evidence of the 
defendant and that of his mother, who was his only witness, as 
regards what was said by Gladys at the family meeting. 

In my view the plaintiff should succeed in the action and is 
entitled to £10 damages. The other claim is for maintenance 
of the child, but as laid down by this Court in the case of 
Nzimande v. Phungula, 1951 N.A.C. (N.E.) 386 (not yet reported), 
the plaintiff cannot succeed. See also the case of Mauzi v. 
Mngomezulu, 1943, N.A.C. (T. & N.), 91. 

I am of opinion therefore that the appeal should be allowed 
with costs and that the Native Commissioner's judgment should be 
altered to read: -

"For plaintiff for £10 with costs on the first claim. For 
defendant on the second claim." 

Balk (Permanent member): I concur. 

Wessels (Member): I concur. 

For Appellant: Adv. R. W. Cowley, i/b Messrs. Cowley & 
Cowley, Durban. 

Respondent in default. 
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NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
CASE No. 133 OF 1951. 

1\lABELE v. PUNGULA AND OTHERS. 

PJETERMARITZBURG: 23rd January, 1952. Before Steenkamp, 
President; Balk and Wessels, .Members of the Court. 

COMMON LA \V. 
Land: Purchase of in Natal-Sections I and 2 of Law 12 of 

1884 (Natal). 
Ejectment: Where based on dominium. 
Held: That in this ca<e the receipts produced do not preclude 

a reasonable conclusion that the amount reflected thereon 
formed rentals and not the purchase price, and it conse­
quently cannot be said that in this case there has been part 
performance by any party in such a way as is inconsistent 
with any other reasonable conclusion than the actual exist­
ence of such contract in the whole or in part. 

Held further: That, as the plaintiffs claim for ejectment of 
the defendants is based on dominium, and the ground in 
question has as yet not been transferred to him, plaintiff 
cannot succeed in his action at this stage. 

Casev referred to: 
Ncume v. Kula. 19, E.D.C. 338. 
Nicholas v. Wigglesworth, 1937, N.P.D. 376. 
Rasool v. Pillay & Anr. 1947 (2) S.A. 563 (N.P.D.) 
Chetty v. Bhajee, 1950 (I) S.A. 212 (T.P.D.) 

Statutes referred to: 
Sections I and 2 of Law 12 of 1884 (Natal). 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Pieter­
maritzburg. 

Ste.!nkamp (President), delivering the judgment of the Court. 
The plaintiff is suing the four defendants for an order for 

immediate ejectment from property known as Lot No. 9 of 
Lot No. 31 of Edendale in the District of Pietermaritzburg. 

In his summons plaintiff states he is the owner of this plot 
of ground and that the four defendants are unlawfully residing 
thereon and that notwithstanding due demand they fail or refuse 
to vacate it. 

Defendant No. I pleads that he is the owner of the property 
in dispute and that he bought the land from Eva .Mavimbela. 

Defendants Nos. 2, 3 and 4 plead that they are tenants of 
defendant No. I. 

The Native Commissioner gave judgment for defendants with 
costs and against this judgment an appeal has been noted to 
this Court by the plaintiff on the following grounds:-

" 1. That the judgment is contrary to law, i11ter alia contrary 
to the provisions of Law 12 of 1884 (Natal); and 

2. That the judgment is against the weight of evidence in that 
upon all the evidence led, the trial Court should have given 
judgment for the plaintiff as prayed." 

In his reasons for judgment the Native Commissioner found 
the following facts proved:-

" 1. That neither plaintiff nor any of the defendants is the 
owner of the property from which plaintiff seeks to eject 
defendants; 

2. that first defendant purcha~ed the property on which his 
house is built many years before plaintiff purported to 
purchase it; 

3. that plaintiff is therefore not entitled to eject first defendant; 
nor is he -entitled to eject any of the other defendants who 
are tenants of first defendant." 
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In g1vmg evidence plaintiff handed in a deed of sale dated the 
18th July, 1950 (Exhibit "A") signed by Eva Mavimbela as 
seller and by himself as purchaser, wherein it is agreed that 
the seller sells and the purchaser purchases certain property being 
a portion of Lot No. 9 of Lot No. 31 Edendale Settlement for 
£60. It is not necessary to set out the whole deed of sa le and 
it is sufficient to state that in so far as plaintiff is concerned, 
he purchased this property by virtue of a written agreement. 
This agreement complies wjth the requirements of Section 1 of 
Act No. 12 of 1884 (Natal) and the first question to be decided 
is whether or not the defendant No. 1 was a prior purchaser. 

The seller, Eva, gives evidence on behalf of plaintiff and she 
testifies to the effect that defendant No. 1 was a tenant of hers 
and that the other three defendants were never h'er tenants. She 
denies that defendant No. 1 ever purchased the property from 
her, but admits that he was a tenant of the ground and that he 
had erected a building thereon which she values at £1. 10s. 

Defendant No. l's evidence is to the effect that he purchased 
the ground for £30 and paid it off by instalments and that he also 
paid certain of the rates on the ground when there was jeopardy 
of its being sold to recover them. 

Defendant No. 1 admits that there was no deed of sale but 
he relies for proof that he had purchased the ground on the 
assertion that he had occupied it for some time and was able 
to produce receipts for certain of the instalments alleged by 
him to have been paid on account of the purchase price of the 
ground and others for rate > he had paid thereon. 

He produced two receipts for £3 and £2 respectively issued 
to him by one Sitole on behalf of Eva (these receipts are marked 
"B" and "G "). He also produced receipt '' C" for £1 issued 
by the Local Health Commission for rates; receipt " D" issued 
by a firm of Attorneys, C. C. C. Raulstone, for £3 for rates, Lot 
No. 31; receipt "E" by the same firm for £5 in respect of 
Edendale property; the lastmentioned receipt does not disclose 
on what account the payment acknowledged thereby was made; 
receipt "F" for £2 by the same firm of Attorneys. it not being 
indicated therein what this £2 was for. 

On receipt " B" the words " Balance £2 " appear. There 
is no other indication whether ' it was rent or purchase price. 
This receipt is dated 20. 7.1946. Receipt "G " was issued on 
11.9.1947 for £2 and the words ' ' Instalment or balance in settle­
ment" appear in the body thereof. Here too, there is no 
indication whether the instalment is in respect of rent or purchase 
price. 

Defendant No. 1 states further that he had other receipts 
which are lost. 

The Native Commissioner in commenting on these receipts, 
states:-

" These receipts suggest very forcibly tha t they refe r to 
something other than an annual rental of £2. 

He has, however, given no finding as to the full extent of the 
payments made by Defendant No. 1 to Eva . Moreover he has 
not dealt with the requirements of Act No. 12 of 1884 (Natal), 
the preamble of which reads:-

" Whereas litigation and inju tice a re occasioned by alleged 
verbal promises in certain cases being regarded as constituting 
causes of action, and it is expedi·ent to make better provi­
sions in that behalf." 

The appropriate provision in Section I of this Law reads to 
the effect that any contract for the sale, purchase, mortgage;:, 
charge or gift of or on any immovable property or any interest 
therein shall be in writing. 
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Section 2 of the same law deals with part performance and 
reads as follows:-

" 2. The foregoing section shall not apply to any contract 
in respect of which it shall appear to the Court in which 
the action shall be pending or to any Court of Appeal 
therefrom, that there has been part performance by any 
party or his representative in such a way as is inconsistent 
with any other reasonable conclusion than the actual exist­
ence of such a contract in the whole or in part. And in the 
latter case such part may be enforceable though the whole 
may not be." 

Can it be said that in the present appeal there has been part 
performance by any party in such a way as is inconsistent with 
any other rca•onablc conclusion than the actual existence of such 
contract in the whole or in part ? 

Nowhere can it be deduced from the evidence given by either 
party that defendant No. l's occupation of the property is in­
consistent with a contract of lease. 

The only act that is capable of construction as part perform­
ance in the present case is the payment by defendant No. 1 
to plaintiff of the £30 averred by him, plus the rates, and whilst 
these payments may suggest instalments on account of the 
purchase price, they do not preclude a reasonable conclusion 
that this amount formed rcnt:.ls and not the purchase price, 
particularly as it is avcrrc:d by defendant No. I in his evidence 
that he has been living on the ground for over ten years, and 
that he bought the ground between the years 1937 and 1939 and 
paid for it an initial £5 and then £I a month regularly every 
montlt and sometimes larger in .talmcnts, whereas the two 
receipts produced by him in respect of some of these instalments 
are dated the 20th July. 1946 (" B ") and the IIth September, 
1947 (" G "); the other receipts are, according to his evidence, for 
rates on the ground. 

It is clear from the judgment in the case of Rasool v. Pillay & 
Anr., 1947 (2) S.A. 563 (N.P.D.) that where a person relies upon 
the occupation of prcmisc5 as p • .ut performance. he must, to 
succeed. satisfy the Court that such occupation is inconsistent 
with any other reasonable conclusion than the existence of the 
contract averred by him, in this instance, the contract of purchase 
and sale, contended for by defendant No. I; and the same would 
apply in so far a~ the payments made by the defendant are 
concerned. As pointed out above, neither the occupation nor 
the payments by defendant No. I are inconsistent with the exist­
ence of some contrac t other than that of the purchase and sale 
alleged by him and consequently he and the other defendants 
were not entitled to a judgment in their favour on their plea. 

There remains the question as to whether plaintiff can succeed 
in his claim for ejectment, which is ba•cd upon ownership. He 
is, however, n•H the owner of the ground, as it is common cause 
that it has not been transferred to him. Defendants arc in 
possession of the ground, and not the plaintiff. As the plaintiff's 
claim is based on dominium, and the ground in que-tion has as 
yet to be transferred to him he cannot succeed in his action 
at this stage, see Ncume v. Kula. 19 E.D.C. 338; Nicholas v. 
Wigglesworth, 1937 (N.P.D.), 376, and Chetty v. Bhajee, 1950 (I) 
S.A. 212 (T.P.D.). Counsel for appellant has conceded this. 

As the plaintiff may possibly succeed in an action for the 
ejectment of the defendant~ at a later stage. i.e. after the ground 
has been transferred to him, and particularly in view of defend­
ant No. l's plea that he is the owner of the ground, I consider 
that the proper judgment by the Court below should have been: 
"Absolution from the instance with costs." In the result I am 
of opinion that the appeal should be allowed with costs and that 
the Acting Additional Native Commissioner's judgment should 
be altered to one of absolution from the instance with costs. 



51 

Balk (Permanent Member): I concur. 
Wessels (Member): I concur. 
For Appellant: Adv. J. H. Niehaus, i/b Messrs. Raulstone & 

Co., Pietermaritzburg. 
For Respondent: Mr. Manning of Messrs. McGibbon & 

Brokensha, Pietermaritzburg. 

NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 138/51. 

NZUZA v. NENE. 

PIETERMARlTZBURG: 24th January, 1952. Before Steenkamp, 
President, Balk and W esse Is, Members of the Court. 

COMMON LAW. 
Damages: Trespass-vindication of right--pecuniary loss. 
Summary: Plaintiff sued defendant for £25 damages for tres­

pass, being £5 for defendant having dug up the ground, 
£10 damage to the ground and £10 for defamation, which 
he avers he suffered as a result of defendant having con­
structed a road over his property and having used the said 
road regularly, notwithstanding plaintiff's continual objections 
to defendant's wilful and malicious action in so doing. 

Held: That as the action was not brought to vindicate a right, 
and as no pecuniary loss was proved, plaintiff could not 
recover damages. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Pieter­
maritzburg. 

Steenkamp (President):-
Plaintiff is the owner of Portion No. 30 of Lot Smeroe of 

Edendale No. 775 in the District of Pietermaritzburg. Defendant 
is the owner of Portion No. 29 of the same Lot. 

Along the south-eastern and south-western boundary of the 
plaintiff's portion there is a road twenty feet wide, which con­
tinues along the western boundaries of the plaintiff's and the 
defendant's portions. On the south-western corner of the plain­
tiff's portion there is a beacon (" E ") and it is apparent from the 
record that people travelling along the road usually cut the 
corner at beacon "E " to the extent of 28 feet along the south­
western boundary and eight feet along the western boundary. 
This has evidently become a recognised deviation and when that 
road needed repair, the defendant actually, in repairing the road, 
during the year 1950, also repaired the small portion that 
extended into the plaintiff's ground. Beacon " E " which had 
been visible when the plaintiff acquired his land, was no longer 
visible when defendant effected the repairs in question, having 
become submerged in the interim, and after plaintiff and defendant 
had some altercation as to the situation of that beacon, the 
plaintiff obtained the services of a land surveyor to locate the 
beacon. Before that beacon was located by the surveyor and 
after the encroachment in question by the defendant, the plaintiff 
erected a pole adjacent to that beacon. 

After the surveyor had located beacon "E ", the plaintiff 
sued the defendant for £25 damages which he a vcrs he suffered 
as a result of defendant having constructed a road over his 
property and having used the said road regularly, notwithstanding 
plaintiff's continual objection to defendant's wilful and malicious 
action in so doing. 
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Before the issue of summons plaintiff caused two letters to 
be written to defendant requestinQ: him to close the road and 
replace the earth as it was before such construction was under­
taken by the defendant. In giving evidence the plaintiff states 
that the £25 damages are made up as follows:-

£5 for defendant digging up the ground; 
£10 for damage to the ground; and 
£10 for defamation. 

He bases the defamation on the altercation he and defendant 
had and when defendant called him names. This Court, however, 
is not concerned with defamation and we arc only concerned 
with the £10 being the deterioration of the ground that had 
been dug up and the £5 for having dug up the ground to make 
the road. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner Q:ave judgment for plain­
tiff for ld., and ordered plaintiff to pay defendant's costs. The 
presiding Assistant Native Commissioner found proved that 
defendant frequently used the footpath, about five paces in 
length, which traverses the corner of the plaintiff's property at 
beacon "E ". The Assistant Native Commissioner has, however, 
excluded this from his assessment of the damages because plain­
tiff had made it clear in his evidence that he was not claiming 
damages for the use by the defendant of the footpath. 

The only matter which concerns this Court is whether plaintiff's 
property has deteriorated to the extent of £10 and whether plain­
tiff is entitled to damages for defendant's action in repairing the 
road. 

The plaintiff was not satisfied with the Assistant Native Com­
missioner's judgment and he has appealed to this Court on the 
following grounds:-

·· l. In as much as the Court found that a trespass had 
actually been committed, it crrcd-

(a) in awarding as damages an amount of one penny; 
(b) in failing to give judement for the amount of two 

pounds ten shillings paid to the surveyor; and 
(c) in ordering plaintiff to pay costs. 
2. The Court should have found that plaintiff had brought 

the action to vindicate a right which the defendant sought 
to invade." 

There can be no doubt that plaintiff himself was not certain 
as to the location of beacon "E ", otherwise he would not have 
obtained the services of a land surveyor to point out the beacon, 
because the land surveyor actually found the peg at the correct 
spot. What this Court has to decide is whether the defendant, in 
repairing the road, intentionally or neglieently encroached on the 
plai ntiiT's land. as, according to 1\tcKerron in his "Law of 
Delict " Third Edition, page 255, states:-

" No action will lie unless the trespass causes actual 
pecuniary loss or unless it is committed under a claim of 
right or m circumstances amounting to injuria." 

It is also stated in the same work that for the same reason 
no action will lie unless the act complained of is either an 
intentional or a negligent act. So also, within limits, is an 
inevitable mistake a good def<:nce. 

Here we have a case in which a road, regularly used, pass~s 
over a very small corner of the plaintiff's property and can tt 
be said that the person who regularly uses that road has tres­
passed intentionally in repairing that road? If, of course, 
pecuniary loss was sustained by the plaintiff, then there might 
be some substance in his claim, but he has not been able to 
prove to the satisfaction of the Court below that he suffered any 
pecuniary loss, and the presiding officer in assessing damaQ:es, 
came to the conclusion that only contemptuous damages were 
called for. 
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The plaintiff seems to have gone to considerable pains in 
asserting a right in a Court of Law. He could have asserted 
his right by fencing his property or by erecting a pole at the 
corner as in fact he did prior to beacon "E" being pointed out 
to hi~ by the surveyor and which served the desired purpose. 
It seems to me that this is one of those cases where neighbours 
are at loggerheads and to settle their petty differences, make 
abuse of the process of a Court. Such abuse is something that 
cannot be too strongly deprecated by Courts of Law. 

Accordin~r to the evidence of the land surveyor, the damage 
that might have been caused to the plaintiff's property is 
negligible. 

The presiding officer held an inspection in loco and he found 
that the portion cut away is about 6 ft. long and no more than 
6 inches wide and 9 inches deep. The only rubbish he could 
find on the spot and which plaintiff seems to have enlarged upon 
as calling for damages, are a few pieces of rusty tin and a few 
empty tins lying along the northern boundary. 

At the inspection it was also found that there were at least 
six other dwellings in the vicinity, the occupiers of which 
obviously used the road in question. It was also found that the 
surface of the alleged excavation is largely covered with grass 
and a well-worn footpath traverses the corner in question. The 
passing of vehicular traffic is effectively prevented by the sub­
stantial pole which had been planted by the plaintiff at beacon 
" E ". There is only this footpath, which evidently ~roes round 
the pole and which is being used by other people, as well as 
by the defendant. It certainly would call for damages payable 
by the defendant if he insisted on using that footpath against 
the plaintiff's wishes, but, as mentioned before, it is clear from 
his evidence that the plaintiff does not claim damages on this 
ground. The conclusion therefore is that the road constructed 
by the defendant has not caused any damage, as this portion 
is fully grown over with grass. 

In my opinion no damages having been proved, the plaintiff 
is not entitled to any, but there being no cross-appeal, there is 
no justification for disturbing the judgment of the Court below. 
The award of costs is entirely in the discretion of the Court and 
in this particular case I am not at all satisfied that the Assistant 
Native Commissioner has not used that discretion in a judicial 
manner. This Court also feels that this is a case that should 
never have been brought before the Court. 

In my opinion the appeal should be dismissed with costs. 
Balk (Permanent Member):-
To my mind it is clear from the plaintiff's evidence, that he 

confined his claim in this action to the encroachment on his 
land by the defendant when the latter repaired ·the road adjoining 
that land during the year 1950. 

It is also manifest from the evidence for the plaintiff, that 
at the time that the defendant effected those repairs, there was 
nothing to indicate where the boundaries of the plaintiff's land 
ran at the points concerned, since beacon "E" was then not 
visible, having become submerged, and the plaintiff had then 
not yet erected the pole adjacent to that beacon with the strands 
of wire running from it to beacons" D" and "F ". 

The plaintiff admitted in his evidence that after he had spoken 
and pointed out to the defendant, whilst the latter was effecting 
the repairs to the road, that he was encroaching on his {plain­
tiff's) land, the defendant had permanently ceased doing so. It 
is true that the plaintiff stated that he had spoken to the defendant 
twice in this connec~ion before the latter stopped encroaching 
on the plaintiff's land, but then it is obvious from the plaintiff's 
evidence that the defendant was working at a different point in 
the same locality when the plaintiff spoke to him on the second 
occasion and there is nothing in the evidence to indicate that 
the plaintiff at any time pointed out the boundary of his land 
to the defendant. 
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It follows that there was no necessity whatsoever for the 
plaintiff to have instituted the instant action to vind1cate any 
right; nor can it be said that in the circumstances the defendant 
committed the trespass in question intentionally; at most he did 
so negligently and I rather incline to the view that this tresp:tss is 
excusable as it appe:trs to have been du·<! to a bona tide mistake 
on the defendant's part. But even assumin~ that the trespass in 
question was due to the defendant's negligence, the plaintiff is 
still not entitled to succeed in his claim as he has failed to prove 
actual pecuniary loss, see McKerron's "Law of Delict" (Third 
Edition) at page 255. 1\loreover, as is obvious from the record, 
the encroachment in question was so minute that the pecuniary 
loss resulting therefrom, if any, mu t necessarily be infinitesimal 
so that, in any event, the plaintiff was not, in my view, entitled 
to come to Court in connection therewith. 

I therefore agree that the appeal should be dismissed with costs. 
\Vessels (Member): I concur. 
For Appellant: Adv. J. J. Boshoff, instructed by Messrs. 

Hershensohnn, Pictermaritzburg. 
For Respondent: Adv. J. H. Niehaus, instructed by Messrs. 

Raulstone & Co., Pietermaritzburg. 

NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 114/51. 

MBUYAZI 1'. ~ITIIETII\\ A. 

MTUB.HUB.\: 29th January, 1952. Before Balk, Acting President; 
Ashton and Oftebro, Members of the Court. 

ZULU CUSTOJ\1. 
Nati1·e Law and Custom-customary union -divorce at insta11ce 

of wife- -order for re111r11 of /oholo. 
Practice a11d Procedure: Rescission of judgment which is 1·oid 

aborigine. 
Summar_1•: Defendant was sued by his Native customary wife 

for divorce. Judgment was given for the dissolution of the 
Native custom:try union, and that one head of cattle be 
returned to defendant by plaintiff's father, who had not been 
cited as a party in th;! action. 

/leld: That it is not competent in granting any decree of 
divorce under the NaLtl Code of Native Law at the instance 
of the wife. to embody therein any order re~arding the 
number of lobolo cattle. if any, to be returned by such 
wife's father to her husband when such father has not been 
cited as a party to the divorce proceedings. 

Held further: That as the order in question was void ab origine, 
the appellant could have obtained the relief sought by him 
by making application to the Native Commissioner's Court 
to have the said order rescinded. 

Cases referred to: 
Xulu , .. 1\l tetwa, 1947, N.A.C. (T & N) 32. 
Zulu 1'. Nkozi, I, N.A.C. (N.E.) 227. 
Masoka 1'. 1\fcunu, I, N.A.C. (N.E.) 327. 
Ex parte Minister of Native Affairs in re Yako v. Beyi, 1948 

(I) S.A. 388 (A.D.). 
Stawres referred to: 

Rule 30 (2) of "Old Rules" for Native Commissioners' 
Courts published under Government Notice 2253 of 1928. 

Section 15 of Act No. 38 of 1927. 
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Appeal from the Court of Natve Commissioner, Empangeni. 
Balk (Acting President), delivering the judgment of the 

Court:-
The Plaintiff, duly assisted by her father, instituted an action 

in the Native Commissioner's Court at Empangeni, claiming a 
divorce from her husband, the defendant, in respect of the cus­
tomary union entered into between them during the year 1949 
on several grounds which are immaterial in so far as the present 
appeal is concerned. 

At the concluson of the hearing, the Court a quo entered 
the following judgment:-

" 1. It is ordered that the customary union be disolved 
with costs. 

2. That plaintiff be placed under the guardianship of her 
father. 

3. That the balance of lobolo owing be written off and 
that plaintiff's father return one head of cattle to defendant." 

An appeal has been noted against that judgment by the 
defendant, who was not represented in the Court a quo; this 
appeal is confined to paragraph 3 of that judgment, i.e. it is 
solely against 1he order "that the balance of lobolo owing be 
written off and that plaintiff's father return one head of cattle 
to defendant." 

As the plaintiff's father was not a party to this action, but only 
appeared therein for the purpose of assisting his daughter (plain­
tiff), it was not competent for the Court a quo to make the order 
against which the appeal has been brought, see Xulu v. Mtetwa, 
1947, N.A.C. (T & N) 32; Zulu v. Nkosi, 1, N.A.C. (N.E.) 227 
and Masoka v. Mcunu, 1, N.A.C. (N.E.) 327. 

It is manifest from the decisions in those cases that the order 
in question was wholly ineffectual and had no legal force from 
its inception; in other words, it was void ab origine. That being 
so, there was no necessity for the defendant to have brought the 
matter in appeal to this Court to have that order set aside since 
he could have obtained the relief sought by him by making 
application to the Native Commissioner's Court to have the 
said order rescinded under Rule 30 (2) of the Rules for those 
Courts published under Government Notice No. 2253 of 1928, as 
amended, and it is still open to him to do so. 

In my view, therefore, the appeal should be dismissed with 
costs, but I am of opinion that in order to save further costs 
in this unfortunate matter, this Court should amend the Native 
Commissioner's judgment, under the wide powers vested in it 
by Section fifteen of the Native Administration Act, 1927, by 
deleting from that judgment the final paragraph thereof, reading 

" 3. That the balance of lobolo owing be wri:ten off and 
that plaintiff's father return one head of cattle to defen­
dant." 

I feel constrained to add that not only would the time of ·this 
Court not be taken up unnecessarily, but in particular that 
litigants would not be mulcted in unnecessary costs if Native 
Commissioners followed the decisions of this Court. Disregard 
of those dicisions postulates that the Native Commissioners con­
cerned do not realise the importance of the stare decisis rule. 
In this connection particular attention is invited to the remarks 
of the learned Judge of Appeal delivering the judgment of the 
Appellate Division of the Supreme Court in the case of Ex 
parte Minister of Native Affairs in re Yako v. Beyi, 1948 (1), 
S.A. 388 (A.D.) at page 400 of the relative report. 

Ash ton (Member): I concur. 
Oftebro (Member): I concur. 
For Appellant: Mr. W. E. White, instructed by J. Gerson, 

of Empangeni. 
For Respondent: Mr. G. D. E. Davidson of Empangeni. 
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CENfRAL NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 2/52. 

DIKOMA v. KOLWANI. 

MAFEKINO: 31st January, 1952. Before Marsberg, President; 
Warner and Doran, Members of the Court. 

BECHUANA NATIVE LA\V. 
Appeal from a Chief's Court- Kraalhead responsibility in Bechu­

analand- Rights between parties ro a union not to be confused 
with the rights which third persons may hm·e against either 
party. 

Damages-Seduction-Krcwlhead respo11sibility British Bechuana­
land. 
Summary: Appellant, having unsuccessfully appealed to the 

Court of Native Commissioner a~ainst a Chief's judgment 
in which damages for seduction, VIZ. six head of cattle, was 
awarded against him, brought a further appeal to the Native 
Appeal Court. 

Held: Natural father, as kraalhead, is liable for torts of his 
son. 

Cases rl'ferred to: 
MacKenzie Mocumi v. Dekeledi Mocumi and another N.A.C. 

(C. & 0.). 109. 
Tswana Law and Custom-Schapera p. 126. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Mafeking. 
Marsberg (President), delivering judgment of the Court: ­
Appellant, Mokgotsi Dikoma has noted an appeal against the 

judgment of the Native Commissioner of Mafeking, sitting in 
appeal, on a judgment of a Chief's Court in which appellant was 
held responsible as kraalhead for the tort of his natural son 
in an action for damages for seduction, on the following grounds: 
That the Native Commissioner erred in holding that:-

"The marriage of the appellant in which there has been 
an agreement between the parties, cohabitation and payment 
of a betrothal beast, constitutes a valid marriage, rendering 
the appellant responsible for the delicts of his natural 
children by such marriage and specifically that the appellant 
is responsible for the delicts of his son Jarnie in the present 
case." 

The notice of appeal against the Chief's judgment was lodged 
iil the following form:-

"The grounds of appeal are that the appellant is the 
natural father of the said Jarnie Dikoma but has at no time 
paid lobolo to the family of the mother of the said Jarnie 
and is therefore not liable by law or custom for any of the 
said Jarnie's delicts." 

"The judgment of the said Chief is appealed against in 
so far as it affects the appellant's liability for the delicts of 
the said Jarnie." 

The appeal has been brought before us apparently to obtain 
an authoritative ruling on the question of the law relating to 
k.raalhead re ponsibility in Bechuanaland. We state, therefore, 
that we fully agree with the judgment which has been given by 
the Native Commissioner. It is so clear and informative that we 
accept it as a statement of our views on the question. We 
incorporate his judgment in ours and quote it as follows:-

.. This is an appeal from Chief Jacob Seatlholo's Kgotla at 
Rietfontein in the Molopo Native Reserve in the Mafeking 
district. The parties to the action are members of the 
Rapulana Section of the Barolong Tribe. 
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The Chief's judgment in which he awarded six head of 
cattle under Tswana Law and Custom, against the appellant 
in respect of the seduction of Montle Modisakeng by Janie 
Dikoma, is appealed against. The seduction has been 
admitted in the Chief's Kgotla and was not denied in this 
Court when this case was being heard on appeal. 

The grounds of appeal are that appellant is the natural 
father of the said Janie Dikoma, but that he has at no time 
paid bogadi to the family of the said Janie's mother. and 
that he is therefore by Tswana Law and Custom not hable 
for the said Janie's delicts. 

In evidence it was proved that the appellant was the natural 
father and kraalhead of Janie and the point to be decided 
on appeal was therefore whether or not he was in fact liable 
for the son's delict of seduction. 

The appellant attempted to prove that Janie was his ille­
gitimate son by a concubine viz. Thumela, a Ratshidi­
Barolong woman with whom he had been cohabiting for a 
number of years and with whom he had 11 children. 

In evidence it transpired that-
(1) appellant and Thumela agreed to be married (i.e. 

enter into a Native customary union); 
(2) the family of appellant and of Thumela and Thumela 

agreed to their entering into a Native customary 
union; 

(3) appellant paid an engagement sheep; 
(4) appellant has been regarded all along as the husband 

of Thumela; 
(5) appellant provided a house for Thumela and has 

lived with her as man and wife for many years, 
out of which cohabitation 11 children were born; 

(6) bogadi was agreed upon but not paid; 
(7) appellant a Rapulana had Janie registered as a 

Rapulana taxpayer, under Chief Jacob Seatlholo 
whereas Thumela's people are Ratshidi-Barolongs 
under Chief L. K. Montsioa. 

Appellant averred that he has not paid bogadi because 
he had no means, and is therefore not Thumela's husband, 
and liable for Janie's delicts. He added 'If I had means I 
would have paid (bogadi) and I would have been responsible 
for Janie's seduction'. 

Appellant's first witness Aaron Nyati under cross-examination 
said:-

' Mokgotsi paid an engagement sheep when he took my 
sister Thumela away. He has been living with her for many 
years. They agreed to get married and the family agreed. 
So the only thing missing is bogadi and he can still pay the 
bogadi at any time'. 

In Mackenzie Mocumi v. Dekeledi Mocumi and Another, 
N.A.C., Cape and O.F.S., Case 48 (Page 109), it has been said:-

'The law on the subject is more or less clearly set out in 
the evidence, but the background must be understood to 
appreciate fully the true perspective. Tswana (Bechuana) Law 
as practised among the Barolong section of the nation 
recognises the following unions between a man and a 
woman:-

(1) Transitory unions, creating no rights to the woman or 
her offspring and subjecting the male to a fine. 
Schapera "A handbook of Tswana Law a nd Custom ", 
p.126. 

(2) Permanent unions-
(a) with an unmarried woman as a concubine; the 

parties are not bound to each other by any tie 
and the male acquires no rights in the children 
or the female in the property, etc ., of the male; 
the male is not subject to a fine for cohabita­
tion; Schapera p. 126; 
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(b) with an unmarried woman betrothed to the man 
before payment of dowry (bogadi); this is an 
incohate marriage which leaves the rights of 
the children in the woman's people; the 
woman has no right to property of the male 
partner; 

the union is convertible into a full marriage 
by payment of bogadi which may be done even 
after the death of the male; rights in the 
children are then transferred so the husband's 
people with full legal rights; this Court rejects 
the submission that there can be a valid 
customary union without dowry; Schapera, 
134/5. 143; 

(c) with a woman as full wife-after payment of 
dowry (bogadi) being a full customary union; 
The children are full members of the husband's 
family. The woman is a wife. Schapera 134/5 '. 

It appears then that the union between appellant and Thumela 
is for all intents and purposes the permanent union referred to 
in paragraph (b) above and therefore that concubinage between 
appellant and Thumela does not exist, the more so as according 
to TswanJ. Law a concubine can only be a Nyatsi or a lefeo:wa 
(vide also page 126 of Schapera's 'A handbook of Tswana Law 
and Custom ' where it is sa1d:-

• It has also become very common for unmarried young 
men and even youths to have concubines, generally girls still 
eligible for marriage. These unions are seldom regarded with 
the same tolerance as those just described, and often the 
boys are punished if discovered with the girls. They may 
make them occasional small gifts but do not help them in 
the same way as married men do. Such unions are mostly 
transitory, and do not last very long, although occasionally 
the attachment between the young people deepens and they 
ultimately marry. But until they are formally betrothed, 
neither party has any legally enlorceable rights and duties 
in regard to the other. Should the girl become pregnant, the 
boy is almost invariably made to pay damages.' 

Appellant and Thumela were legally betrothed and therefore 
they have enforceable rights and duties in regard to the other 
and their child Janie is therefore according to Tswana Law 
because bogadi has not been paid, not illegitimate in the sense 
that we understand it in Roman Dutch Law. It is true that unless 
bogadi is paid in full the natural father ha<; not full rights over 
his children as he would have if he has paid bogadi, yet non­
payment of bogadi does not disturb his rights to his children 
vide the last paragraph on page 143 of Schapera's "A handbook 
of Tswana Law and Custom." 

' Normally, where the marriage has taken place with the 
approval of both families, the father's claim to his children 
is not disturbed, even if he has not yet paid bogadi, and 
he can ultimately obtain full legal rights over them when his 
first daughter is married. The bogadi given for her cannot 
be taken by him, but goes to her mother's relatives'. 

As the natural father has therefore certain rights, it follows he 
must have certain liabilities. Vide the following passage at the 
foot of page 125 and top of page 126 of Schapera's handbook 
where he says:-

' But both here and among the Ngwato, so long as the 
consent of both families has been formally obtained and 
expressed through the betrothal ceremonies, the cohabitation 
of the man and the woman constitutes a recognised form 
of union and establishes certain legal rights and duties on 
both sides.' 
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The fact that appellant had Janie registered as a Rapulana­
Morolong for tax purposes whereas Janie's mother's people are 
Ratshidi-Barolong is Prima facie proof that appellant regarded 
Janie as his son in which he had certain very important rights 
from which it follows he also acknowledged important liabilities. 

Further from the following passages from the evidence of 
Aaron Nyata and Chief J. Seatlholo, the preponderance of 
probability is th:.J.t the appellant is Janie's kraalhead. 

' Aaron N¥ati: The respondent must assist me because th.! 
children are working for him. I mean the children are 
earning money and are paying the money over to him 
(respondent). The respondent is therefore the kraalhead. 
' . . . Mokgotsi will be regarded as the kraalhead although 
Janie is not living with him because Janie is working for 
the benefit of Mokgotsi.' 

'Chief J. T. Seatlholo: Dikoma is accepted as Janie's 
kraalhead and according to our law the kraalhead is respon­
sible for payment of damages. The payment of bogadi has 
nothing to do with •he liability to pay damages.' 

As appellant is therefore the natural father and the recognised 
kraalhead of Janie, he is de facto although not fully de jure, also 
the head of his family and according to the following passage 
on page 177 of Schapera's handbook, liable for damages for the 
seduction by J anie:-

'As head of the family, the father must keep order and 
maintain discipline over his children. In this direction he 
exercises considerable authority, and has the right to punish 
the children for any offences they commit. He acts also as 
their legal representative at the tribal courts, and they cannot 
sue or be sued except with his assistance and through his 
assistance, and through him. He is, in matters affecting out­
siders, responsible for their conduct, and can he held liable 
for their misdeeds. If, e.g. a son allows livestock to enter 
a field and damages crops, or seduces a girl, the father must 
pay the necessary damages. His position in such cases is 
not that of a wrongdoer, but of a surety responsible for the 
good conduct of members of his family.' 

For this reason then the appellant is held responsible for dama­
ges for the seduction by Janie and the Court therefore dismissed 
the appeal with costs". 

The important point to distinguish in this case is that the 
rights between the parties to a union (or marriage) must not 
be confused with the rights which third persons or outsiders may 
have against either party. As the Chief said: "The payment of 
dowry (which is a matter between the parties themselves) has 
nothing to do with the liability to pay damages." This statement 
of the law is both sound and in accord with common sense. An 
outsider who has a claim against one of the parties to a union 
cannot be expected to concern himself with the progress of their 
bogadi payments or arrangements to ascertain in what quarter 
he may proceed with his action. In a case of this nature it suffices 
if he seeks out the ostensible kraalhead. 

We are satisfied that the Native Commissioner's judgment 
upholding the judgment of the Chief's Court is correct. 

The appeal is dismissed with costs. 

For Appellant: Mr. S. P. M in chin of Messrs. Minchin & Kelly, 
Market Square, Mafeking. 

For Respondent: Mr. A. A. Gericke of Messrs. Fraenkel and 
Gericke, Main Road, Mafeking. 



60 

NORTH EASIERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 124/51. 

D H LA:\11:\'1 v. :\l AT E. 

DuRBA 'I: 4th February, 1952. Before Balk, Acting President; 
Cohen and Gillbanks, Memb.:rs of the Court. 

CO~fl\ION LA \V. 

Practice and Procedure-Onus on deferulant. 

Sumnwry: Plaintiff sued defendant for repayment of £50 placed 
in the care and custody of the defendant by plaintiff at 
various times. Defendant alleged in his plea that he had 
only received £30 from plaintiff but alleged that it had been 
refunded. 

The Native Commissioner held that the evidence tendered 
did not appear to ju~tify judgment being given for either 
party and entered a judgment of absolution from the instance 
with costs. 

Held: That where, on the pleadings, the onus is on defendant, 
and he does not discharge that onus, a judgment of absolu· 
tion from the instance is not competent. 

Cases re/erred to: 
Schoeman v. 1\foller, 1949 (3), S.A. 949 (O.P.D.). 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Durban. 

Balk (Acting President), delivering the judgment of the 
Court:-

Just cause having been shown, the late noting by the plaintiff 
of the appeal to this Court is condoned. 

The plaintiff (present appellant) instituted an action in a Native 
Commissioner's Court, claiming from the defendant (present 
respondent) the sum of £50, which the plaintiff, in the particulars 
of claim embodied in his summons, averred was the total amount 
that he had placed in the care and custody of the defendant on 
divers occasions during the year 1950, on the understanding 
that the latter would refund that sum to him on demand. The 
plaintiff further averred in those particulars that, notwithstanding 
demand, the defendant had failed to refund the said amount to 
him. 

The defendant's plea as recorded by the presiding Additional 
Native Commissioner in the Court below reads:-

" Admits receiving £30 but states amount has been 
refunded. Denies receipt of £50." 

At the conclusion of the hearing of this case in the Court 
a quo, the presiding Additional Native Commissioner entered 
judgment of absolution from the instance with costs. 

The grounds of the present appeal are that that judgment is 
against the weight of the evidence and wrong in law for the 
following reasons:-

.. 1. The Native Commissioner erred in holding that 
defendant had disch:uged the onus upon him to prove that 
the mcney was repaid to plaintiff. 

2. The Native Commissioner erred in beleiving defendant, 
whose evidence contained numerous discrepancies in p refer­
ence to the evidence of plaintiff." 
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The only fact found proved by the Additional Native Com­
missioner concerned, according to his written judgment, is "that 
plaintiff gave defendant £30 for safe-keeping", as was admitted 
by the defendant, both in his plea and evidence. This officer's 
reasons for judgment, read as follows:-

"This case rests entirely on a question of fact. Plaintiff 
alleges that he handed £50 in all to the defendant for safe­
keeping, and that defendant has returned none of this sum. 
Defendant admits receiving £30 from plaintiff and alleges 
that this amount was returned. Defendant also mentions £1 
in respect of change. 

The only evidence tendered is only that of the parties 
themselves, and it is remarkable that there was no "witness" 
present as is the custom amongst natives in money trans­
actions. 

It was not held that defendant had discharged the onus 
upon him to prove payment of the money to plaintiff. Had 
this been so, judgment would have been entered for defen­
dant. 

The discrepancies in defendant's evidence alleged in the 
notice of appeal, were not detected and there was nothing 
to show that defendant was any less worthy of credence than 
the plaintiff. 

The evidence tendered did not appear to me to justify 
judgment being given for either party, and absolution from 
the instance with costs was entered." 

On a proper understanding of the defendant's evidence, the 
seeming discrepancies therein are, to my mind, reconcilable with 
his remaining evidence; and, as is evident from the Additional 
Native Commissioner's reasons quoted above, he did not accept 
the defendant's evidence in preference to that of the plaintiff; 
nor did he hold that the defendant had discharged the onus of 
proof resting on him in respect of the repayment of the £30; 
but he came to the conclusion that the evidence tendered by 
the parties did not justify judgment being given for either of 
them. 

The parties themselves were the only persons who gave 
evidence and to my mind their evidence is such that it does not 
disclose a preponderence of probability in favour of either of 
them. That being so and as the Additional Native Commissioner 
cornerned came to the conclusion that neither party was less 
worthy of credence than the other, I consider that his judgment 
could not have been regarded as wrong if the onus of proof on 
the pleadings had rested on the plaintiff in respect of the whole 
sum of £50 claimed by him. But the defendant in his plea 
admitted the receipt of £30 from the plaintiff and on the plead­
ings therefore the onus of proof that the defendant had repaid 
this sum to the plaintiff, rested on the defendant who, both in 
his plea and evidence averred this repayment which was denied 
by the plaintiff in his testimony. It is manifest from what has 
been stated above that the defendant failed to discharge that 
onus and the plaintiff was therefore entitled, after the close by 
the parties of their respective cases, to judgment in the sum of 
£30, there being no room for absolution from the instance in 
such cases, see Schoeman v. Moller, 1949 (3), S.A. 949 (O.P.D.) 
and the authorities cited in that judgment. 

I am therefore of opinion that the appeal should be allowed 
with costs and that the judgment of the Court a quo should be 
altered to read:-

"For plaintiff in the sum of £30 with costs. Absolution 
from the instance as regards the balance of £20 claimed by 
plaintiff." 

Cohen (Member): I concur. 
Gill banks (Member): I concur. 
For Appellant: Adv. A. M. Torf, i/b Messrs. Cowley & 

Cowley, Durban. 
For Respondent: Mr. R. I. Arenstein of Durban. 
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SOUlHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 4/52. 

~JO\IBA:"il ~·. TSHAU. 

KoKSTAD: 5th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President, Cock­
croft and Wilkins, Members of the Court. 

NATIVE LA\V AND CUSTOl\-1. 
Native Appeal Case· -Marriage by Nati~·e custom-not a marriage 

as Section 35 of Act No. 38 of 1927 specially excludes any 
union under Native laiV and custom-customary union i$ dis­
soh•ed where one of the parties marries according to Christian 
rites- Adultery-No action for adultery lies ll'hen at time action 
taken union no longv:r existed. 
Summary: Plaintiff married M according to Native custom and 

had two children by her. During his absence on the mines 
M deserted ami in April 1944 married defendant according 
to Christian rites. Shortly after this she took her youngest 
child, N, to defendant's kraal where it has been living ever 
since. In the present action respondent claims 5 head of 
cattle or £25 as damages for adultery with ~~ and custody 
of the child N, and appellant counterclaimed for one beast 
as isondlo in respect of the child. J~dgment was entered for 
respondent and appellant appeals. 

flt'ld: 
(I) That in the Cape Province a customary union is dissolved 

\\/here one of the parties marries another according to 
Christian rites. 

(2) That in Native law a male partner to a customary union 
cannot recover damages for adultery with his customary 
wife unless the union is still in existence at the time 
action is taken. 

(3) That a customary union is not a marriage as defined in 
Section 35 of Act No. 38 of 1927. 

(4) That at the time this action was taken the customary 
union no longer eXIsted. 

(5) That respondent is not entitled to damages. 
Cases re/erred to:-

~lngqantsiyana 1'. Kyili. 1936, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 64. 
~lagq ireni v. Renene, 1937, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 202. 
Mtyelo ~·. Qo!olo, 4, N.A.C., 39. 
Zondi v. Gwane, 4, N.A.C., 195. 
l':kambule v. Linda. 1951 (I). S.A. (A.D.), 377. 
l':dLtnya ~·. ~lhashe, 1. N.A.C. 112. 
Rolob .le v. ~latandela, 2. N.A.C., 126. 
Sontshat'iha 1'. Gqib::ni, 4, N.A.C .. 46. 
Gqamse v. Stemelc, I, N.A.C., 113. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Mount Frere. 
Sleigh !President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
The facts in this case are not seriously disputed. They are as 

follows: Respondent, who was the plaintiff in the Court below, 
married Manogada according to Native custom and apparently 
had two children by her. During his absence at the mines 
Manogada deserted and on 24th April, 1944, married appellant 
according to Christian rites. Shortly after this she took her 
younger child, Nomatshungu to appellant's kraal where it has 
been living ever since being supported by appellant. In 1948 
respondent returned from the mines and claimed his wife and 
child in the chief's court but obtained no satisfaction. In 1950 
Manogada died and respondent then claimed the child. Appellant 
was willing to hand over the child against payment of isondlo 
which respondent refused to pay. 
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In the present action respondent claims. five head of cattle or 
their value £25 as damages for adultery With Manogada, and cus­
tody of the child NC?matshungu, and al_)pellant counterclaimed for 
one beast as isondlo m respect of the child. 

After hearing evidence the Assistant Native Commissioner 
entered judgment for respondent as prayed with costs less one 
beast or its value £5 as isondlo. Appellant now appeals against 
the judgment of the claim in convention. 

The Native Commissioner relies for his decision on the cases 
Mngqantsiyana v. Kyibi, 1936, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 64 and Magqireni 
v. Benene [1937, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 202]. Neither of these cases 
are in point as in both, the alleged second marriages were by 
Native custom without the pnor dissolution of the previous cus­
tomary union and were therefore invalid. It is contended by Mr. 
Elliot for Respondent that bigamy is committed by any person 
who, during the subsistence of a valid marriage to which he or 
she was one of the parties, goes through the form of contracting 
a marriage with another person, and that if a customary union is 
a marriage then Manogada's marriage to appellant was bigamous 
and invalid. He referred us to the definition of Customary Union 
in Section 35 of Act No. 38 of 1927. But it is clear from the 
definition of " marriage " in that section that a customary union 
is not a marriage since this definition specially excludes any union 
contracted under Native Law and Custom. 

In the Cape Province a woman who is married according to 
Native Custom can contract a valid civil or Christian marriage 
with another man and such marriage dissolves the pre-existing 
customary union (Mtyelo v. Qotole, 4, N.A.C. 39). Likewise a 
customary union is dissolved by the marriage of the male partner 
to another woman [Zondi v. Gwane, 4, N.A.C., 195, see also 
Nkambula v. Linda, 1951 (1) S.A. (A.D.), 377]. 

Now adultery is sexual intercourse by a lawfully married person 
with any person other that his or her spouse. It follows that in 
Native law the male partner to the union cannot recover damages 
for adultery with his customary wife unless the customary union 
is still in existence at the time the action is taken (see Ndlanya v. 
Mhashe, 1 N.A.C. 112; Rolobile v. Matandela, 2 N.A.C. 126; 
Sontshatsha v. Gqibeni, 4 N.A.C. 46; also Whitfield's Nativ'e Law, 
1st Ed., p. 418). Gqamse v. Stemele (1 N.A.C. 113) is a case in 
which damages was awarded in respect of adulterous intercourse 
prior to the Christian marriage, but in view of the other decisions 
it is doubtful whether that case was correctly decided. However, 
in that case there was definite proof that Stemele lived in adultery 
with Gqamse's wife for fifteen years before he married her accord­
ing to Christian rites. In the present case the evidence is that no 
sexual intercourse took place between appellant and Manogada 
before their marriage by Christian rites. For this reason and also 
for the reason that at the time the action was taken the customary 
union between respondent and Manogada no longer existed, res­
pondent is not entitled to damages. 

The appeal is allowed with costs and the judgment of the Court 
below is altered to read " On the claim in convention: for defen­
dant on the claim for damages for adultery. Plaintiff is awarded 
the custody of Nomatshungu against payment of one beast or its 
value £5 as isondlo. Plaintiff is ordered to pay the costs. The 
counterclaim falls away." 

For appellant: Mr. Eagle, Kokstad. 

For respondent: Mr. Elliot, Kokstad. 
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SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 5/52. 

MAKHORO v. l\IA TEBESE. 

KoKSTAD: 5th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President, Cock­
croft and Wilkins, Members of the Court. 

COMMON LA \V. 
Native Appeal Case- Interpleader- Goats declared executable­

Ownership--Ne\·er passed to third party. 
Summary: In an interpleader action certain goats were declared 

executable. Appellant appeals on the ground that the judg­
ment was bad in law in that appellant acquired ownership 
of the goats by virtue of the fact that they were sold to him 
by one M who acquired ownership in her name in satisfaction 
of a judgment against a debtor after respondent's claim of 
ownersh1p was rejected by Chief Scanlan Lahana. 

Held: 
(l) That by not pleading res judicata the defendants impliedly 

agreed to submit for retrial the issue decided by the 
Chief. 

(2) That the defence res judicata must be specially pleaded. 
(3) That respondent established that he was the owner and 

consequently ownership never passed to the other party 
and she could, therefore, not transfer ownership to 
appellant. 

Cases referred to: -
Notanaza v. Madiyane, 1943, N.A.C. (C. & 0.). 34. 
Raumann v. Thomas, 1920, A.D .• 434. 
Union Government v. National Bank, 1921, A.D., 127. 
Union Government v. Landau & Co., 1918. A.D. 388. 
Lamb v. Colonial Secretary, 1902, T.S .• 319. 
Lubbe v. Colonial Government, 1905, B.A.C., 269. 
Mha v. Pinkerton, 1916, E.D.L., 389. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Mount 
Fletcher. 

Sleigh (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
The facts leading up to this interpleader action are not seriously 

disputed. Mapaballong Jase obtained judgment in the duly con­
stituted court of chief Scanlen Lehana against respondent's brother, 
Mohlahla (hereinafter referred to as the debtor), for balance of 
dowry, and in execution of this judgment certain stock, including 
14 goats, were attacht>d. The goats were claimed by respondent, 
but the chief, after investigation, held tqat they belonged to the 
debtor and handed them over to Mapaballong. Respondent then 
sued the latter and her son in the Native Commissioner's Court 
for delivery of the 14 goats or payment of their value at £1 each, 
and obtained judgment. Seventeen goats. being some of the origi­
nal goats and their increase, were attached in the possession of 
appellant to whom Mapaballong had sold the original goats after 
issue of the summons but before judgment was delivered. There 
is nothing on record to indicate that appellant was aware of 
respondent's claim when he purchased the goats. 

In the present interpleader action the goats were declared exe­
cutable. From this judgment claimant (appellant) appeals. Para­
phrased, the ground of appeal is that the judgment is bad in law 
in that Mapaballong acquired ownership of the goats by virtue 
of the fact that they were delivered to her in satisfaction of the 
judgment against the debtor after respondent's claim of ownership 
had been rejected, and respondent cannot therefore attach the 
goats in the hands of appellant to whom the goats were sold and 
delivered by Mapaballong. 
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The chief, in the execution of his judgment was entitled to 
attach the property of the debtor and hand it over to Mapaballong 
in satisfaction of her claim. The ownership in such property 
would thereupon vest in her and she could dispose of it and 
transfer ownership to a purchaser. But ownership would not vest 
in her nor could she transfer ownership to an innocent purchaser 
if the property did not in fact belong to the debtor, when there­
fore, respondent claimed the goats in the chief's court it was the 
duty of the chief to give a decision on respondent's claim. It 
was in fact a fresh action brought by respondent against Mapabal­
long to determine the ownership of the goats and when the chief's 
decision went against him respondent should have appealed to 
the Native Commissioner's Court. This was the view expressed 
in Notanaza v. Madiyane [1943, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 34]. 

It is clear that respondent did not acquiesce in the chief's finding 
that the goats belonged to the detbor. He was entitled to bring 
this finding under review in the Native Commissioner's Court 
by way of appeal. He, however, elected to sue Mapaballong 
in th.! Native Commissioner's Court for delivery of the animals 
to which action the latter's son was subsequently joined as eo­
defendant. Now the defendants in that action could have pleaded 
that the issue was res judicata. By not taking this objection the 
defendants in that action impliedly agreed to submit for retrial the 
issue decided by the chief, namely, the issue whether respondent 
or the debtor was the owner of the goats. At this stage this issue 
was still in dispute and ownership in the goats had not vested 
in Mapaballong. In the Native Commissioner's Court respondent 
established that he was the owner and consequently, ownership 
never passed to Mapaballong and she could, therefore, not trans­
fer ownership to appellant. 

The appeal is dismissed with costs. 

Cockcroft (Member):-

I have had the advantage of reading the judgment of the 
learned President and I agree that the appeal should be dismissed 
with costs. 

I wish, however, to amplify his statement that, " by not pleading 
res judicata the defendants in that action impliedly agreed to sub­
mit for retrial the issue decided by the Chief, namely, the issue 
whether respondent or the debtor was the owner of the goats ". 

I am satisfied that before the chief, Seeku's claim to the goats 
that were attched in the case of Pabellong Jase and Mapaballong 
Jase v. Mohlahla Matebese was a civil dispute, and that the Chief 
rejected his claim and awarded the goats to Mapaballong. 
Seeku's more obvious remedy was to appeal against the Chief's 
decision to the Court of the Native Commissioner. As he has 
not done so, it is necessary to examine the rights and legal posi­
tion of the parties. 

It has broadly been laid down in various decisions that the law 
of estoppel in South Africa is the same as the law of estoppel in 
England, and that it is the practice to look to the English authori­
ties for guidance on the subject of estoppel. (Baumann v. Thomas, 
1920, A.D., at p. 434, and Union Government v. National Bank, 
1921, A.D., at p. 127.) 

In Union Government v. Landau & Co., 1918, A.D., 388 at p. 
391, Innes, C. J. said: "There is no rule requiring the defence of 
estoppel to be in every instance specially pleaded. But it is often 
advisable and proper to do so; and the present case is one in 
which, if the respondents desired to rely upon estoppel, they should 
have raised the issue upon pleadings. The result of a failure to 
raise it was that some parts of the evidence had not been 
sufficiently investigated." An amendment of the pleadings was 
allowed by the Appellate Court in that case. 

It seems that the learned Chief Justice in that case was referring 
to estoppel by conduct. 
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It is quite clear that res judicata must be specially pleaded, for 
it is a plea in bar or an objection and cannot be raised except on 
the pleadings (lamb v. Col.s:>nial Secretary, 1902, T.S., 319; Lubbe 
v. Colonial Government, 1905, B.A.C., 269; Mha v. Pinkerton, 
1916, E.D.L., 389). 

Rule I of Order XII of Proclamation No. 145 of 1923, requires 
the defence of res judicata to be specially pleaded. But defen­
dant in this cast" has not availed himself of this special defence. 
I have been unable to find a decision of our Courts on this point, 
and on the authority of Raumann v. Thomas and Union Govern­
ment v. National Bank, supra, I look to the English authorities 
for guidance. 

In the case of Vooght v. Winch, 2 B :~nd Old., 662, an action 
for diverting water from a stream, the defendant gave in evidence 
a judgment in a former action between the same parties for the 
same cause of action, and insisted that it operated as an estoppcl. 
The jud~:e received it in evidence, but refused to non-suit the plain­
tiff, the defendant having pleaded only" not guilty". and the plain­
tiff obtained a verdict. Oh motion to the Court for a non-suit or 
new trial, a non-suit was refused. but a new trial was granted on 
other grounds (CocJ../e's cases am/ statlltes on evidt•TJce by S. L. 
Phipson, 4th Edition, page 46). 

In delivering judgment Abbot C. J. is reported to have said: 
"I am of opinion that the verdict and judgment obtained for 
the defendant in the former action was not conclusive evidence 
against the plaintiff upon the plea of not guilty. It could indeed 
have been conclusive if pleaded in bar to the action by way of 
estoppel. In that case the plaintiff would not be allowed to dis­
cuss the ca~e with the defendant and for the second time to dis­
turb and vex him by the agitation of the same question. But 
the defendant has pleaded not guilty, and has thereby elected to 
submit his case to a jury . . . It appears to me, however, that 
the party, by not pleading the former judgment in bar. consents 
that the whole matter shall go to the jury, and leaves it open to 
them to inquire mto the same upon evidence, and they are to give 
their verdict upon the whole evidence then submitted to them." 

In the same case Holroyd J. stated the law as follows: "There 
are two modes, by either of which the defendant might defend 
himself. There having been a former action in which he hact suc­
ceeded, he might have alleged that he was not to be called upon 
to defend him~elf again for the same cause. If he chooses to 
adopt that mode of defence, he must plead it in bar; and 
say that the other party is not at liberty to call upon him to 
answer again that which he had before called upon him to do, 
when a verdict was given in his favour. If, however, he declines 
that mode of defence. and submits to answer for the cause of 
action alleged, and defends himself by saying that the plaintiff 
has no ground of action: he then leaves the question to the jury, 
and tpey are to try, not whether there was a former action for 
the same cause. but whether the plaintiff has such a ground of 
action as he alleges in his present declaration. A party may 
have matter which he may either give in evidence, or which, if 
pleaded, would be an estoppel; but when he puts it to the jury to 
find what the fact was. it is inconsistent with the issue which he 
has joined, for him to say that the jury are estopped from going 
into the enquiry. He may, however, use the former verdict as 
evidence, and pregnant evidence, to guide the jury who are to try 
the second case, to a conclusion in his facour. But if. notwith­
standing the prior verdict and judgment. the jury think that the 
case is with plaintiff, they are not estopped from "finding the ver­
dict accordingly." 

I can think of no reason why these principles of English law 
should not be accepted as being the same as our Jaw on the 
subject, and I accept them without hes:tat:on. 
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When the trial court becomes aware that the matter has already 
been adjudicated upon in another case there seems to be no 
reason why, in a suitable case, e.g. where the party is not legally 
represented, it should not suggest an amendment to the pleadings 
and to adjourn the hearing to enable defendant to raise the 
defence of res judicata on application after notice to the plaintiff 
in terms of Rule 1 (2) of Order No. XII if so advised. (Union 
Government v. Landau and Co., 1918, A.D., 108 and the same 
case at page 392.) 

Applying the law to the facts in the present case, when Seeku 
Matebese sued Mapaballong Jase in the Native Commissioner's 
Court for delivery of the goats she could, in terms of Rule 1 (2) 
of Order No. XII, have pleaded the special defence of res judicata, 
in that Seeku's claim had already been adjudicated upon in the 
chief's court and rejected. 

As he has declined this mode of defence, in terms of the 
judgment in Vooght v. Winch it must be taken that she has 
elected to submit the matter for decision by the Native Commis­
sioner's Court. If a contrary decision to that in the chief's court 
is given egainst her in the Native Commissioner's Court, she can­
not be heard to complain. She had the right and opportunity of 
stopping the proceedings in the latter court, of which she declined 
to avail herself. By so doing it may be taken that she has 
abandoned her judgment in the chief's court, and tacitly agreed 
to submit the matter for adjudication afresh by the Native Com­
missioner's Court. 

Wilkins (Member): I concur. 
For appellant: Mr. Gordon, Mount Fletcher. 
For respondent: Mr. F. Zietsman. Kokstad. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 6 OF 1952. 

SINEKE v. NTUMBU. 

KoKSTAD: 5th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President; 
Cockroft and Wilkins, Members of the Court. 

COMMON LAW. 
Native Appeal Court-Defamation-Damages-Exception-Not 

taken-Words in their Xosa connotation are defamatory-
Quantum of damages. 
Summary: Respondent sued appellant for f.50 damages for 

defamation. Appellant admits he spoke the words com­
plained of But denies that he did so maliciously. He pleads 
that the words Wl;!re spoken in fair comment and not in a 
defamatory sense. He denies that the words were defamatory 
per se and that they are capable of a defamatory meaning. 
And that in any case the amount awarded is excessive. 

Held (1): That sinct no exception was taken to the summons 
respondent was entitled to bring evidence to show that the 
words, in their Xosa connotation, are defamatory per se. 

Held (2): That since appellant has persisted in his charge of 
theft respondent is entitled to something more than nominal 
damages. 

Held (3): That the amount awarded is grossly excessive and is 
reduced. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Mount 
Frere. 

7010-4 
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Sleigh (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
In an action , for £50 damages for defamation plaintiff (now 

respondent) alleges that on 27th February, 1950, defendant (now 
appellant) uttered in the presence of the headman and others 
tnc touowmg Jatse, scanda1ous, malicwus and defamatory words 
in Xosa concermng htm, v1z: Jgusha yam idliwe ngu Piyose, 
whtch words transmted IDto English mean " my sheep has been 
eaten by Ptyose ". 

Appellant in his plea admits that he spoke the words com­
plained of, but denies that he did so maliciously. He pleads that 
the words were spoken ID fair comment and not in a defamatory 
sense. He denies that the words are defamatory per se and that 
they are capable of a defamatory meaning. He further denies 
that respondent has suffered damages in the sum of £50 or in 
any other amount. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner entered judgment for 
respondent for the amount claimed and appellant has appealed. 

The first ground of appeal is that the words complained of are 
not defamatory per se and in the absence of an innuendo 
assigning a defamatory meaning the Court should have dismissed 
the summons without allowing evidence to show a meaning 
different from that alleged in the summons. Strictly speaking 
this contention is correct, but this is a point which should have 
been raised by way of exception and since no exception was taken 
at all, respondent was entitled to bring evidence to show that 
the words, in their Xosa connotation, are defamatory per se. 

The word idliwe appears to come from the word umdli, a 
voracious cater, and means that the. thini: had been totally 
consumed (McLarcn Xosa-English Dictionary). This does not 
assist us, but it is clear from the evidence before us, and 
especially from appellant's own evidence, that the word idliwe 
as used in the context in the present case means that the sheep 
had been stolen and eaten. The words complained of in the 
Xosa language are, therefore, defamatory per se and consequently 
malice is presumed. 

The second ground of appeal is that respondent's evidence of 
the date the words were uttered does not agree with the date 
alleged in the summons. There is no substance in this ground 
as it is quite clear that he refers to the occasion when the men 
collected to enquire into the theft of the sheep. 

The last ground of appeal is that the amount awarded is 
excessive. It lies at the discretion of the trial Court to award 
a sum as damages which would be fair and reasonable in all the 
circumstances of the case, and an appellate tribunal will not 
interfere with the amount so awarded unless it is "palpably 
excessive". In defamation cases where there is no proof of 
material loss, the object of making an award is not to compensate 
the plaintiff but to award him a solarium for wounded feelings 
or injured reputation. 

Now it appears from the evidence that respondent missed a 
cooking pot from his hut. He reported the loss, to the headman 
and af1er a search it was found in a donga where it had been 
used for cooking something. Some distance away the skin of 
a sheep belonging to appellant was discovered. It appears to 
have been taken for granted by all the people present that the 
person or persons who had used the pot had stolen appellant's 
sheep. When appellant arrived on the scene he identified the 
skin as being that of one of his sheep, he heard that respondent, 
his cousin, had claimed ~he pot. He then uttered the words 
complaiDed of. It is clear that he was expressing an opinion 
which, in the circumstances, he had reasonable grounds for 
believing to be true. Moreover, the statement appears to have 
been addressed to the headman who was investigating the theft. 
The most that can be said against appellant is that his statement 
was unnecessary as respondent was presumably already under 
suspicion. Had the matter rested there respondent would have 
been ent1_tled t? no'!linal damages. only. But apparently appellant 
has perststed ID h1s charge agamst respondent for he said in 
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reply to the Court " I maintain that plaintiff stole my sheep and 
ate it. That is what I meant by those words and I still mean it 
now". Respondent is therefore entitled to something more than 
nominal damages, but in our opinion the amount a warded ·is 
grossly excessive. There is nothing on the record to show that 
the parties are anything other than ordinary native peasants. 
In our opinion an award of £10 would be an adequate solatium. 

The appeal is allowed with costs and the judgment of the 
Court below is altered to one for plaintiff for the sum of £10 
and costs. 

For Appellant: Mr. Eagle, Kokstad. 
For Respondent: Mr. Elliot, Kokstad. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 7 OF 1952. 

RUBUSHE v. JIYANE. 

KoKSTAD: 7th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President; 
Cockcroft and Wilkins, Members of the Court. 

HLANGWINI CUSTOM. 
Native Appeal Case-Native custom-Dowry-Hlangwini custom 

-Father liable for the dowry of his son's first wife-Evidence­
Pleadings in other actions admissibility of-Practice and 
Procedure-Law to be applied when defendant resides in 
tribal area. 
Summary: Respondent obtained judgment against appellant 

for 10 head of cattle or their value £50 being the balance 
of a Hlangwini dowry due in respect of a customary union 
between appellant's son and respondent's daughter. Appel­
lant appeals on the grounds {1) that there is no evidence 
that it is a custom amongst the Hlangwinis that a father is 
liable for the dowry of the first wives of his respective son1 
and (2) that no such custom exists, (3) that appellant does 
not belong to the Hlangwini tribe. 

Held (1): That although appellant is a Zizi, he resides in the 
area of a Hlangwini Chief and therefore Hlangwini law must 
be applied in this case. 

Held (2): That according to Hlangwini custom a father is liable 
for the dowry of his son's first wife. 

Held (3): That the presiding officer was not entitled to rely 
on admissions made by appellant in another case when the 
record of that case has not been admitted as evidence in 
the present case; and that in any event pleadings in another 
case are of little weight as evidence unless signed, sworn to 
or otherwise adopted by the party. 

Cases referred to:-
Mduka v. Simayile & Ano., 1940, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 94. 
Mapaloba v. Gazi, 1945, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 71. 
Jeliza v. Nyamende & Ano., 1945, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 34. 
Khemane v. Ned. 1, N.A.C., 15. 
Bungani v. Nongwadi, 1931, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 43. 
Mkoko v. Mkoko, 1940, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 158. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Umzimkulu. 
Cock croft (Member) delivering ~he judgment of the Court:­
Respondent obtained judgment against Dusani Mzala and his 

father Mzala Rubushe jointly and severally, the one paying the 
other to be absolved, for ten head of cattle of their value £50, 
being the balance of a Hlangweni dowry due in respect of 
customary union between Dusani and respondent's daughter. 
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From this judgment Mzala Rubushe (now appellant) has 
appealed on the grounds that (I) there is no evidence that it is 
the custom amongst the Hlangwini in the Umzimkulu District 
that a father is liable for the dowries of the first wives of the 
respective sons and (2) that even if there is such evidence, no 
such custom exists. 

At the hearing of the appeal, by consent the following further 
grounds of appeal were allowed:-

(3) That there is no sufficient evidence on the record to 
justify the Court in coming to the conclusion that defendant 
No. 2 (the appellant) belongs to the Hlangweni tribe in which 
connection the Assistant Native Commissioner erred in 
treating the pleadings or evidence in the case of Ngoyane v. 
Mzala and Rubushe as being evidence of any fact in dispute 
in the present case. 

(4) That there is no sufficient direct evidence on the record 
to justify the finding that defendants have lived long enough 
10 .1 Hlangwtnt locauty to 1mpose Hlangwini customs on them 
in face of their sworn evidence that they belong to the 
Amazizi tribe. 

(5). That there is no evidence on the record that defendant 
No. 2, the appellant, did at any stage voluntarily agree to be 
personally responsible for any balance of dowry that might 
be due by his son, defendant No. I. 

The first point in dispute is whether appellant is a Hlangwini 
or a Zizi. He says that while still a young boy he came with his 
father from Natal and resided on the farm Theekloof in the 
Umzimkulu District. They left the farm and lived about one 
year in the Hlangwini Location of Gugwini. Thereafter he went 
to Thorny Bush- an European owned farm-where he lived 
for a long time. Eventually he returned to Theekloof, which is 
a Trust farm, and he has resided there for the past 9 or 10 years. 

He denies that he ever became a Hlangwini or observed 
Hlangwini customs. He says that his chief is Songiya, the 
Amazizi Chief. who lives in the lxopo District, but he calls 
Tshayizandla (the Hlangwini chieO also his chief because he lives 
in hts are.1. He does not dtspute that. in another action in which 
he W .lS also sued for the balance of a Hlangwini dowry, he 
admitted in his plea that he was a Hlangwini, but he says that he 
did not instruct his attorney to admit it. 

Respondent says that he assumed that appellant is a Hlangwini 
because when he was born, appellant lived amongst the Hlang­
wini. 

As the facts of his nationality and where he resided are matters 
peculiarly within the knowledge of appellant, we must accept his 
evidence that he is a Zizi. 

The presiding officer did not make a specific finding that 
appellant was a Hlangwini, but he finds as a fact that defendant 
No. 2 (present appellant) admitted in a previous case that he was 
a Hlangwini. 

Plaintiff's attorney, whilst addressing the Court below at the 
close of the present case, sought leave to hand in the record of 
that previous case. Defendant's attorney agreed to the handing 
in of the record, by consent, provided a note was made that this 
was done in the middle of argument. The record was admitted 
as Exhibit "B ". 

In his reasons for judgment, the presiding officer refers to the 
evidence in Exhibit "B ", and contends that the evidence in that 
case and present appellant's admission in that plea are admissable 
as evidence in the present case and quotes as authority for this 
contention Mduka v. Simayile and Another, 1940, N.A.C. 
(C. & 0.), p. 94. 

In Mduka v. Simayile, supra. the record formally handed in by 
the Clerk of the Court, was of a case between the same parties. 
The parties in the present case, are not the same as those in the 
previous case, and the record was not admitted by consent, as 
evidence. 
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It is the duty of the Court to exclude all inadmissible evidence, 
even if no objection is taken [Mapoloba v. Gazi, 1945, N.A.C. 
(C. & 0.), 71 at page 72]. 

The evidence in the first case becomes secondary evidence in 
the second case and the admission of such evidence infringes the 
"best evidence" rule. In that case the learned President 
remarked that, in the absence of any statutory provision, the 
•• best evidence " rule is now contained in section 320 of Act 
No. 31 of 1917. 

That sectiQn pertains to criminal proceedings, but in regard 
to civil proceedings in ~he Cape Province the "best evidence" 
rule is embodied in section 37 of Ordinance No. 72 of 1830 
(Cape), which reads as follows:-

" 37. And be it further enacted and declared that every 
party on whom in any case it shall be incumbent to prove 
any fact, matter, or thing, shall be bound to give the best 
evidence of which from its nature such fact, matter, or thing 
shall be capable; and that no evidence as to any such fact, 
matter, or thing shall be admissible in any case in which it 
was in the power of the party who proposes to give such 
evidence to produce, or cause to be produced, better evidence 
as to such fact, matter, or thing, except by consent of the 
adverse party to the suit or when such adverse party shall 
by law be precluded from disputing any such fact, matter, 
or thing, by reason of any admission proved to have been 
made by such party." 

As the adverse party, the defendant, has not consented to the 
admission of the record of the previous case as evidence, the 
presiding officer was not justified in referring to the evidence in 
that case as he has done in paragraph (1) of his reasons for 
judgment, and to base his judgment on facts disclosed in that 
record. 

Failing the consent of the other party, if defendant's attorney 
desired the admission of the record in the previous case to enable 
the Court to refer to the pleadings therein, he should have 
called the proper custodian, the Clerk of the Court, to hand in 
the record betore he closed his case, as was done in Mduka v. 
Simayile and Another (sunra). Even when so admitted, pleadings 
in other actions are of but little weight as evidence against a 
party unless signed, sworn to or otherwise adopted by him. 
(Scoble's Law of Evidence in South Africa, Second Edition, at 
page 140.) In this case the plea in the former case does not 
disclose that it was signed, sworn ~o or otherwise adopted by 
defendant. 

The Amazizi have no fixed dowry, and practice the custom of 
ukuteleka. 

According to Hlubi custom a girl's guardian can maintain 
an action against the father of the girl's husband for the dowry 
payable by the latter, but the liability of the father or of his heir 
is limited to the dowry of the husband's first wife and then only 
if the father approved of the marriage [Jeliza v. Nyamende and 
Another, 1945. N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 34]. The custom is the same 
amongst the Basuto [Khemane v. Ned 1, N.A.C. (S), 15]. Since 
we have been unable to find any direct authority on the question 
whether this custom is also observed by the Hlangwini tribe as 
a whole, we have submitted the matter to the Native assessors, 
four of whom are Hlangwinis. 

As will be seen from their replies, which are annexed, they 
observe the same custom. Their opinion is in accordance with 
this general principle of Native law relating to the rights and 
obligations of a kraalhead. Under Native law he is theoretically 
in control of all property acquired by inmates of his kraal, and 
is under an obligation to use the family assets in the interest 
of all the inmates, and as long as the inmate resides in the 
kraal of the head of the family, Natives look to the latter for 
payment. 
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The assessors' opm10n is also in accord with what Seymour 
says at page 30 ot h1s work, Native Law and Custom, viz.:-

"Amongst tribes which do not teleka, the father or 
guardian (of the husband) is, in some cases, also responsible 
(tor the payment of the son's dowry). The fathers or 
guardians belonging to such Native tribes are always parties 
to the first marriages of their sons or wards; and, as such, 
contract to become liable for the dowries due on these 
marriages to the women's guardians." 

The Hlangwini have a fixed dowry consis:ing of 24 cattle, 
2 horses and a Mqobo beast, they do not practise ukuteleka and 
they can compel payment ot dowry by legal action (sec Bungani 
v 1\:ongwadi, 1931. N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 43]. 

The presiding officer found as a fact that both parties to this 
action reside in a Hlangwini area, and there has been no appeal 
against this finding. 

The presiding officer held that even if defendants do not regard 
themselves as Hlangwinis, the law to be applied is that of the 
locallty where the part1es reside, quoting l\lkoko v. Mk oko, 1940, 
N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 158. That case was decided on the original 
wording of sub-section (2) of Section 11 of Act No. 38 of 1927, 
before its substitution by Section 5 of Act No. 21 of 1943. 

In terms of this amendment, had it been proved that the farm 
Theekloof, on which defendant (appellant) resides, was outside 
a tribal area, and was occupied by people of different tribes, the 
Court would have been bound to apply the law of the tribe 
to which defendant belongs, namely Z1zi law. But appellant is 
a Zizi according to his own evidence and resides in a Hlangwini 
tribal area. Hlangwini law must therefore be applied in the 
case. 

The appeal is accordingly dismissed with costs. 

Opinion of N ative Assessors. 
Names of Assessors: Moroecai Baleni, Matatiele, Hlangwini. 

Magwayi Mbambela, Matatie1e, Hlangwini. Bishop Ntlabati, 
UmllmKulu. Hlangw.ni , Petros Jozana, Umzimkulu, Hlangwini, 
Khorong Lebenya, Mt. Fletcher, Basuto. 

Question: Do the Hlangwinis in the Umzimkulu and Mataticle 
Districts observe the same customs? 

Answer: Petros J ozana: Yes. All agree. 
Question: Have the Hlan~wini a fixed dowry? 
Answer: 
Petros Jozana: Yes. 
Mordecai Baleni and Magwayi Mbambela agree. 
Bishop Ntlabati: There is no fixed dowry amongst the 

Hlangwini. 
Question: Do the Hlangwinis practise "te1eka "? 
Answer: 
Bishop Ntlabati: Yes. 
Mordecai Raleni: In the old days the Hlangwinis did "teleka" 

but these days we do not do so because the Europeans have 
stopped us. 

Magway Mbambela and Petros Jozana astree with Mordecai 
Ba1eni. 

Question: Under Hlangwini custom is a father liable for the 
dowries of his sons' first wives. 

Answer: All Hlangwini assessors agree that a father is so 
liable. 

Question: By Mr. Zietsman: Under Hlangwini custom is a 
father compelled to provide the dowries for his sons' first wives? 

Answer: All Hlangwini assessors agree that a father is com­
pelled to do so. 

For Appellant: Mr. W. Zietsman, Kokstad. 
For Respondent: Mr. Elliot, Kokstad. 
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SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 8/52. 

TSAUTSI v. NENE AND ANOTHER. 

KoKSTAD: 8th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President, 
Cockcroft and Wilkins, Members of the Court. 

LAW OF PROCEDURE. 
Native Appeal Case-Practice and Procedure-Jurisdiction-When 

Courts of Native Commissioner and of Chief have concurrent 
jurisdiction-Absolution judgment in Chief's Court-Plaintiff 
not bound to appeal to Native Commissioner's Court-Plea 
res judicata--Court may raise mero motu. 

Summary: Appellant sued respondents in the Chief's Court for 
damages for seduction. The Chief gave what amounted 
to a judgment of absolution. Thereafter appellant brought 
a fresh action in the Native Commissioner's Court. At the 
close of the case the Native Commissioner entered the 
following judgment:-

"Summons dismissed with costs." 
Held: 

(1) That where a Chief exercises civil jurisdiction over a 
number of districts, the jurisdiction of the Native 
Commissioner of one of these districts is not necessarily 
concurrent with that of the Chief. But if the Chief 
and the Native Comissioner have concurrent jurisdiction 
and the Chief has decided a case, there is nothing in 
sub-section (4) of Section 12 of Act No. 38 of 1927 
which ousts the original jurisdiction of the Native 
Commissioner in respect of that case. 

(2) That where the judgment in the Chief's Court is in the 
nature of a judgment of absolution from the instance, the 
unsuccessful plaintiff in that Court is not bound to appeal 
to the Native Commissioner's Court. He is entitled to 
bring a fresh action either in the Chief's Court or in 
the Native Commissioner's Court. 

(3) That where a Court finds that the matter before it is 
beyond its jurisdiction it must decline jurisdiction even 
if no objection is taken. 

(4) That the Court's power to raise a defence mero motu 
is not confined to questions of jurisdiction. It may of 
its own motion raise any legal exception or objection 
if it is in the public interest or in the interest of justice 
to do so. 

(5) That if in an action brought before a Native Commis­
sioner it appears that a Chief's Court had given a final 
judgment in that action, the Native Commissioner may 
and should raise the plea of res judicata mero motu 
but should give the party affected by the plea an 
opportunity of meeting is. 

Cases ref~rred to: 
Matole v. Xakekile, 1940, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 104. 
Qunta v. Qunta, 1940, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 131. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Matatiele. 

Sleigh (President), delivering the judgment of the Court: ­
Appellant, through his representa tive Lefadi Tsautsi , sued 

respondents for six head of cattle or their val1Je £30 as damages 
for the seduction and pregnancy of appellant's daughter. 
Respondents in their plea denied the seduction. 
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Lefadi stated in his evidence that he reported the pregnancy 
to respondents and that first respondent denied the charge. He 
then goes on to say, "I then took matter before chief Jeremiah 
and his judgment was that my sister (the seduced girl) was 
rendered pregnant by the veld and then I decided to bring the 
matter in this Court ". After hearing evidence from both sides 
the case was postponed for argument. After hearing argument, 
presumably on the merits of the case, judgment was reserved and 
on the resumed hearing the Native Commissioner dismissed the 
summons and added the rider ··the Court having taken the point 
mero mow that having been heard before a Chief having civil 
jurisdiction, this Court has no jurisdiction to hear the action, 
and that it should have been brought by way of appeal". 

From this judgment appellant appeals on the following 
grounds:-

()) Section 12 of Act No. 38 of 1927, as amended, and 
Government Notice No. 2255 of 1928, as amended, do not 
contain any provision excluding the jurisdiction of Native 
Commissioner's Courts as Courts of first instance in 
districts where Chiefs' Civil Courts have been established 
and consequently in such districts the Native Commis­
sioners' Courts and the Chiefs' Civil Courts have con­
current jurisdiction as Courts of first instance. 

(2) This being so the Presiding Officer erred in holding that 
the Native Commissioner's Court had no jurisdiction in 
this matter and has confused the defences of jurisdiction 
and res judirota. 

(3) Defendant in terms of Rule 1 of Order XII of Proclamation 
No. 145 of 1923 could have lodged an objection of res 
judicata, but not having done so is now precluded from 
doing so, and the Native Commissioner's Court has not 
the nght to take this point mcro motu. 

It is not disputed that civil jurisdiction was conferred on Chief 
Jeremiah Moshesh in terms of Section 12 (I) of Act No. 38 of 
1927, and that the action before the chief was between the same 
parties or their privies, related to the same subject matter and 
founded upon the same cause of action as in the present action. 

The Native Commissioner, in his reasons, conceded that Courts 
of the Native Commissioner and the Chief have concurrent 
jurisdiction, but he goes on to say, " It is clear from the wording 
of sub-section (4) of Section 12 of Act No. 38 of 1927, as 
instanced by the words " which would have ltad jurisdiction 
had the proceedings i11 tlte first i11Sta11cc been instituted ... .' 
that once an action has been taken before the Chief's Court, 
the origiml jurisdiction of the Native Commissioner's Court with 
regard to such action is ousted ". 

The Native Commissioner has misread the sub-section. There 
are Chiefs who exercise civil jurisdiction over a number of 
Magisterial Districts. For instance, Chief Botha Sigcawu 
exercises jurisdiction over four districts. The meaning of the 
words quoted by the Native Commissioner is that an appeal from 
the Chief's Court lies not necessarily to the Court of the Native 
Commissioner in whose district the Chief's Court is situated, but 
to the Native Commissioner's Court which would have had 
jurisdiction to hear the case if it had not been taken to the 
Chief's Court. It follows that if the area of iurisdiction of 
Chief Moshesh extends beyond the District of r-.iatatiele, there 
may be cases in which the Courts of that Chief and of the Native 
Commissioner, Matatiele do not have concurrent jurisdiction. 
If, however, both Courts have jurisdiction to try the case, there 
is nothing in sub-section (4) which ousts the original jurisdiction 
of the Native Commissioner's Court, even by implication. The 
sub-section merely authorises appeals from the Chief's Court and 
prescribes the particular Court to which the appeal shall lie. 
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The Native Commissioner does not go so far as to say that the 
issue raised in this case was res judicata, but it appears from 
his judgment and also from his reasons that he held that the 
judgment of the Chief's Court must stand until it has been 
altered or reversed on appeal and that appellant was not entitled 
to institute a fresh action in a competent Court, but must bring 
the adverse judgment against him on review by way of appeal. 
In other words, he held that the issue raised in the pleadings 
before him was res judicata. Now it is contended that the 
objection of res judicata must be raised within the time prescribed 
by Rule 1 (1) Order No. XII of Proclamation No. 145 of 1923, 
and since respondents failed to do so they are precluded from 
raising it at all without leave of the Court. 

This contention is well-founded. If a defendant fails to raise 
the objection within the prescribed time, he is deemed to have 
abandoned the existing judgment in his favour and to have 
agreed to submit the dispute for retrial. This was decided in 
Makhoro v. Matebese (heard on the 5th instant) where the point 
was fully discussed. But it must not be assumed that respondent's 
attorney overlooked the defence or deliberately refused to raise 
it. For a judgment to operate as an estoppel it is essential, 
inter alia, that it must be a final judgment and it may well be 
that respondents' attorney regarded the Chief's judgment as one 
dismissing appellant's claim, which would, in effect, have been 
an absolution judgment. Counsel contends that it was, and the 
evidence, in my opinion, supports this contention. According 
to Lefadi the Chief said that the girl had been rendered pregnant 
by the veld; second respondent says that the Chief said he found 
no fault with first respondent, and the Chief himself says "Simpe 
(appellant's witness) said he had never seen Dibe (Libe) lying 
down with the girl and the girl in eVidence had said Simpe had 
seen them and for this reason I rejected the complaint". 
Nowhere in his evidence does he say that he believed first 
respondent's testimony. Against this there is the bare statement 
of the Native Commissioner that it was a judgment for defendant. 
He refers us to page 31 of the record which, however, closes on 
page 30. If it is correct that the Chief dismissed appellant's 
claim then it was not a final judgment. Appellant could have 
appealed to the Native Commissioner's Court but he was not 
bound to do so. It was open to him to bring a fresh action either 
in the Chief's Court or in the Native Commissioner's Court. The 
Native Commissioner therefore erred in not giving a judgment on 
the merits of the case, either because respondents waived their 
defence of estoppel or because the judgment was not final. 

This disposes of the appeal, but appellant further contends 
that the Native Commissioner had no right to raise the objection 
of res judicata himself. As I have already stated the Native 
Commissioner did not raise this defence directly. He certainly 
made use of the principle involved in this plea in bar as an 
argument why he declined jurisdiction. But assuming that he 
did raise the objection mero mot11 it was not raised in the proper 
manner, that is, he did not give appellant an opportunity of 
meeting the defence. It was an irregularity in the proceedings 
which resulted in substantial prejudice as contemplated in Section 
15 of Act No. 38 of 1927, and for this reason the appeal should 
also succeed. However, since it is one of the grounds of appeal 
and since the Native Commissioner's right to raise the objection 
mero motu is challenged, I feel that I must consider the 
contention. 

There is no doubt that if a Court finds the matter before it 
to be bey~nd its jurisdiction it must refuse to proceed, even 
though neither party takes the objection. Matters which are 
beyond the jurisdiction of a Native Commissioner's Court are 
enumerated in Section 10 (1) of Act No. 38 of 1927. Further 
the Court's power to raise a defence mero motu is not confined 
to questions of jurisdiction. A Court may of its own motion 
rais~ any l~gal excepti~n ~r objection if it is in the public interest 
fir m the mterest of JUStice to do so. [See Matole v. Xakekile 
1940 N A .C. (C. & 0.), 104; and Quota v. Quota N.A.C. 

CC. & Ol, 131] ' 
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Since the Courts of the Native Commissioner and the Chief 
have concurrent jurisdiction, and since the Act provides for an 
inexpensive procedure for taking the Chief's judgment on appeal 
to the Native Commissioner's Court, we are of the opinion that 
the Native Commissioner has the power and should raise the 
plea of res judicata whenever the judgment appealed from is a 
final judgment. He should, however, give the party affected 
by the plea an opportunity of meeting this special defence. It 
is in the interest of justice that the cost of litigation should be 
minimised and there is no reason why the Native Commissioner 
should countenance a more expensive procedure. Moreover, 
public interest demands that a Native Commissioner's Court 
should not lend itself to reversing or even confirming the judgment 
of a Chief's Court, other than by way of appeal. If it did, it 
could not complain if a dissatisfied party in the Native Com­
missioner's Court took his case to the Chiefs Court, which he 
could do, since the courts have concurrent jurisdiction. 

For the reasons already given the appeal is allowed with costs, 
the judgment of the Court below is set aside and the proceedings 
are returned to that Court for a judgment on the merits of the 
case. 

For Appellant: Mr. Walker, Kokstad. 

Respondent: in default. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 9/52. 

~IAKORA 1' . LA~GA. 

KoKSTAD: 8th February, 195:!. Before Sleigh, President, Cock­
croft .md \\'Jikim, l\lembers of the Court. 

NATIVE LA\V AND CUSTOJ\1. 
Nati1·e Appeal Case-Native Custom-Animals-Damages caused 

by- Negligence of OII'IU.'r-Owner not liable unless he was 
aware of animal's vicious propensith•s. 

Summary: Appellant sued respondent for £15 the value of a 
foal. It is alleged that respondent is the owner of a stallion 
which he negligently allowed to run unherded on the 
commonage in 1\lakoba's Location, Matatiele Di~trict, and 
that the stallion kicked and killed appellant's foal which was 
running lawfully there. Respondent denied that his stallion 
killed the foal. He disputed the value of the foal. He 
requested that Native Law be applied to the case, and avers 
that under that system of law appellant has no right of 
action. Judgment of absolution was entered and appellant 
appeals. 

Held: 
(1) That respondent's stallion did kick and kill appellant's 

foal. 
(2) That Native Law was correctly applied. 
(3) That in Native Law the owner of an animal (not being 

a dog) is not liable for damage or loss caused by it 
unless he was aware of its vicious propensities and took 
no adequate precautions to guard against loss to others. 

(4) That respondent's horse had never shown vicious pro­
pensities and that therefore he was not negligent in 
allowing it to run loose on the commonage where it 
was entitled to graze. 
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Cases referred to: 

Parker v. Reed, 21 S.C., 496. 
S.A. Railway and Harbours v. Edwards, 1930, A .D., 3. 
O'Callaghan v. Chaplin, 1927, A.D., 310. 
Tsalenkabi v. Matete & Ano., 4 N.A.C., 30. 
Nonene v. Gunyaza, 5, N.A.C., 203. 
Mpiti v. Maxakanga, 2, N.A.C., 38. 
Hlangu v. Mkutshwa, 2, N.A.C., 46. 
Makeleni v. Ndlebe, 3, N.A.C., 47. 
Gxaniswa v. Magqoza, 1936, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 36. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Matatiele. 

Sleigh (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­

Appellant sued respondent for £15 the value of a foal. It is 
alleged that respondent is the owner of a stallion which he 
negligently allowed to run unherded on the commonage in 
Makoba's Location, Matatiele District, and that the stallion 
kicked and killed appellant's foal which was running lawfully 
there. 

Respondent in his plea denied that his stallion killed the foal. 
He also disputed the value of the foal. He requested that Native 
Law be applied to the case, and he avers that under this system 
of law appellant has no right of action in the circumstances set 
out in the summons. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner, in the exercise of his 
discretion, decided to apply Native Law to the case. He found 
that respondent's stallion kicked the foal while it was endeavour­
ing to cover appellant's mare, but entered a judgment of absolu­
tion on the ground that appellant had failed to prove negligence 
on the part of respondent. 

From this judgment appellant appeals. The original grounds 
of appeal are that the judgment is against the weight of evidence 
and the probabilities, and that the Native Commissioner erred 
in finding that respondent was not negligent. At the hearing of 
the appeal application was made to argue the additional grounds 
that the judgment was wrong in law in that the Native Commis­
sioner erred in ruling that Native Law should be applied to 
the issue between the parties, and that the issue should have 
been decided according to Common Law under which system 
of law appellant was entitled to succeed in his claim on the 
basis (apart from the question of negligence on the part of 
respondent) of the actio de pauperie. Since this matter was 
canvassed in the Court below the application was granted but 
it was pointed out to counsel that appellant's claim is based on 
negligence and that the particulars in the summons do not ground 
a claim for damages under the a,cfio de pauperie. 

The Native Commissioner's reasons for applying Native Law 
to the case are that the foal was the property of a ppellant in 
his second hut, and that stock owners are obliged, in view of 
the circumstances in which they live, to depasture their stock on 
the common grazing ground. In so far as the first reason is 
concerned, it can make no difference which system of law is 
applied as any damages recovered would accrue to appellant's 
second hut, but the second is a good reason why Native Law 
should be applied. In rural native locations where the inhabitants 
have common grazing rights there must always be the risk of 
stallions and bulls fighting and doing michief. It is a risk which 
is common to all stock owners and which they must accept. It 
would be most inconvenient and expensive fo r owners of bulls 
and sta llions to stall and stable these animals. T he Native 
Commissioner was therefore correct in in applying Native 
Law to the case, but, as will be seen presently, that Native Law 
and the aquilian remedy at Common Law, in so far as the 
issu:: in this action is conc:! rned, are practically the same. 
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The Native Commissioner's finding that the stallion kicked and 
killed the foal which was about a week old is supported by the 
evidence. The remaining question for decision is whether 
respondent was negligent in allowing the stallion to run loose 
on the commonage during the mating season. Before considering 
the evidence, it will be convenient to state the law on the point, 
because what is regarded as negligence under Roman-Dutch 
Law may not be negligence if Native Law is applied, having 
regard to the fact that stock owners enjoy common grazing 
rights on the location commonage. 

There are a number of reported cases which refer to the 
responsibility of an owner whose animal has killed or injured 
an animal belonging to another. Some of these decisions are 
not easy to follow. This may be due to the uncertainty created 
by the decision in Parker v. Reed (21, S.C., 496) where it was 
held that the tlctio de pauperie had become obsolete in South 
Africa. This decision was overruled in O'Callaghan v. Chaplin 
1927. A.D., 310}-see also S.A. Railways & Harbours v. 
Edwards, 1930. A.D .. 3-At Common Law damages can be 
recovered for loss caused by domesticated animals under two 
well established principles. First. there is the actio de pauperie 
which gives relief against the owner of the animal which acted 
viciously or from inward excitement contrary to the nJture of 
its class and under circumstances for which no one is to blame. 
The action is based on ownership and not on culpa which need 
not be alleged or proved. Secondly, there is the aquilian action. 
Here liability is based on the negligence of the person in control 
of the animal. Negligence must be affirmatively established 
unless the animal belongs to a class which is normally vicious 
in which case negligence is presumed (see McKerron's Law of 
Delicts, 3rd Ed. p.p. 284-292). I have been unable to find any 
principle in Native Law which resembles the actio de pauperie, 
except when the anima l which caused the loss is a dog. 

At the request of counsel for appellant the matter was referred 
to the native assessors for an expres'iion of their opinion. which 
is annexed. The majority state that if a n animal is killed in 
the course of a tight no liability arise'>. but if an animal is 
attacked and killed the owner of the animal which attacked is 
liable. This opinion is in conflict with the expression of opinion 
of assessors in other cases and especially in ~takeleni's case 
(in/rei) and is not accepted. It will be seen that assessor Bishop 
Ntlabati agreed with the assessors in 1\takeleni's case. 

In Native Law a person who kills an animal of another. whether 
by accident or not, must replace it or pay damages. (Tsalinkabi 
v. 1\tatete and Ano., 4, N.A.C., 30). Likewise the person in 
control of a dog. and presumably also of a cat, is absolutely 
liable for any damages caused by it. (Nonene v. Gunyaza. 5 
N.A.C., 203.) But it is clear from the decisions quoted by the 
Native Commissioner in his able and comprehensive judgment 
that the owner of a farm animal is not liable if it kills or injures 
an animal belonging to another stock owner, unless he knew or 
ought to have been aware of his animal's vicious propensities 
and failed to take adequate precautions to guard against loss to 
others. [See 1\tpiti v . .Maxalanga, 2, N.A.C., 38; Hlangu v. 
1\tkutshwa, 2, N.A.C .• 46; 1\takeleni v. Ndlebe, 3. N.A.C., 47; 
and Gxarisa v. Magqoza, 1936. N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 36.] It is also 
possible that Native Law may hold the owner liable if the 
circumstances were such that he ought to have forec;een that 
damage would probably result if he did not re'itrain his animal, 
but I have been unable to find any decisions on the point. 

Now it is clear from the evidence that respondent's stallion 
is accustomed to running on the commonage with other horses 
and it has never shown vicious propensities. Further, the evidence 
does not disclose that it displayed vicious propensities at the 
time the foal was killed, became it did not savage the foal. but 
while chasing the mare it kicked at the foJI following its mother. 
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However appellant's whole case is that stallions become vicious 
during the mating season and that respondent was negligent in 
not tethering or stabling his horse. No doubt stallions do become 
excited during mating season and in their excitement are liable 
to savage young foals running with their dams. It appears that 
this is particularly so with stallions which are stabled. 
Consequently it is the practice to keep the foals out of the way 
when the mare is being served. If, therefore, it is the normal 
practice in Makoba's Location to tether or stable stallions during 
the mating season, then respondent would have been negligent 
in not taking this precaution. 

Faya, who impressed the Native Commissioner as a reliable 
witness, states that stallions are tethered during the mating 
season. Mr. Hall-Green, the Senior Agricultural Officer of the 
area, says that thoroughbred stallions in Makoba's Location are 
shut up all the year round, but he does not know whether 
inferior stallions are also secured. It is possible that thorough­
bred stallions are shut up not because they do damages but to 
ensure that the owner receives the stud fees. Appellant, however, 
says that stallions are tethered during the mating season because 
they kill the foals. Respondent states that this stallion is his 
riding horse and that he has always allowed to run free on the 
commonage with other horses. He admits that stallions are 
savage during the breeding season and that his horse is the 
same as all other horses but it has never savaged another horse. 
Nowhere in his evidence does he dispute the statement by 
appellant and his witnesses that it is the practice in Makoba's 
location to tether or stable the stallions during mating season. 
His witness, Mboneli, however, states "all the stallions in 
Makoba's Location are allowed to run freely in the location even 
during the mating season. This is the first case that I know where 
a stallion has injured a foal ..... I have never seen stallions 
in our location being tethered or stabled during the mating". 
In view of the evidence of Faya and Hall-Green, this statement 
is too sweeping. The correct position seems to be that in 
Mako ba's Location, being a betterment area, inferior stallions 
are culled. Those that are passed by the agricultural officers 
are usually tethered or stabled during the mating season, but 
some owners allow their stallions to run loose on the commonage. 
This must be so from the statement of appellant (who owns no 
stallion), that he does not know which stallion fathered the foal 
which was killed. 

Now although stallions which are accustomed to running with 
mares all the year round may exhibit viciousness during mating 
season, they do not normally kill foals. It is significant that 
not a single witness knows of a case where a foal had been 
killed. Respondent's stallion has never shown vicious propensities 
although it ran with mares and foals every mating season. There 
was, therefore, no reason why he should have foreseen that it 
might injure foals. Respondent was entitled to run his horse 
on the comonage and in the absence of proof that he ought 
to have known that it was likely that the horse would ca use 
damage, he was not negligent in allowing it to run loose. 

The appeal is dismissed with costs. 

Opinion of Native Assessors. 
Names of Assessors: Mordecai Baleni, Matatiele (Nlangwini); 

Magwayi Bambela, Matatiele (Nlangwini); Bishop Ntlabati, 
Umzimkulu (Nlangwini); Petros Jozana, Umzimkulu 
(Nlangwini); Khorong Lebenya, Mt. Fletcher, Basuto. 

Question: Do you stable your stallions? 
Answer: Khorong Lebenya: They are allowed to run on the 

location commonages. All agreed. 
Question: During mating season stallions are inclined to 

become vicious. Two stallions attack one another a t this t ime 
and one is killed. Is the owner of the stallion causing the death 
in any way liable? 

Answer: All assessors: No. 
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Question: What is the position where a bull pokes a calf or 
a horse? 

An.swer: Khorong Lebenya: The owner must pay. All, except 
Bishop Ntlabati agree. 

Bishop Ntlabati: The owner would be told of the damage and 
be warned to keep his animal in control. The owner is liable 
for any damage done thereafter by the animal. 

Question: Circumstances of this case put to the assessors. Is 
the owner of the stallion liable? 

An.swer: Khorong Lebenya: The owner must pay. 1\tordecai 
Baleni and Petros Jozana agree. 

Magwayi Bambela: He would not be liable because the 
stallion is attempting to cover the mare on the common grazing 
ground. 

Bishop Ntlabati: My answer is the same as to the last question. 
Question: What is your general custom where one animal kills 

another on the common grazing ground? 
Answer: Mordecia Baleni: If there is a fight between the 

animals and one is killed it is looked upon as an accident and no 
liab1hty is incurred. If an animal is merely attacked and killed. 
the owner of the animal which attacked the other is liable to pay 
compensation. He would ofier a lesser amount than the actual 
value of the dead animal, but if the owner refused our courts 
would order that the full value be paid. 

All, except Bishop Ntlabati, agree. 
For Appellant: 1\lr. Walker, Kokstad. 
For Responllent: Mr. F. Zietsman, Kokstad. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 10/52. 

Ul\IVOVO v. U:\IV0\'0. 

KoKSTAD: 11th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President, Cock­
croft and Wilkins, Members of the Court 

NATIVE LA\V AND CUSTOl\1. 
Nati1·e Appeal Case--Contracts-Interpretation of where entered 

into according to Nati1·c• custom- Nati1•e custom--Heir liable 
for contractual obligation of dt·ceased- Section 11 (I) of Act 
No. 38 of 19'27- Nati\'C Commissioner's discretion to apply 
Nati1•e law. 
Summary: U and his relations bought a farm which was regis· 

tered 1n the name of U. but was communally occupied by 
all the relatives including respondent. When U di·~d his 
estate owed £1,900. ~I. his heir, requested all the heads of 
families living on the farm to help him pay this debt and 
promised that those who contributeJ could hve on the farm 
until their death. The debt w.ts eventually paid. respondent 
contributed £88. !Os. ;\1. died and his heir the appellant. 
then l:t~came the registered owner. Appellant demanded rent 
from respondent which the latter refused to pay. Appellant 
then obtamed an order of ejectrnent agJinst respondent who 
was evicted. In an action for refund of the £88. !Os. respond­
ent obtained judgment for £40. 

H cld (I): That Respondent never agreed to pay rent to 
appellant. 

Held (2): That the agreement entered into between respondent 
and l\1 would be unu ual among Europeans. On the other 
hand it has all the features of a Native contract and is in 
accord with the custom among Natives in r~gard to the 
occupation of communal land. The respective rights and 
obligations under the agreement are therefore governed by 
principles of law which were contempbted at the time the 
agreement was entered into. 
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Held (3): That in Native law, appellant is under an obligation 
to honour his father's enforceable promises. 

Held (4): That this raises a question of Native customary law 
which is not opposed to public policy or natural justice. 

Held (5): That the Native Commissioner was correct in find­
ing that a question of Native law was involved and he was 
entitled to exercise his discretion in favour of deciding the 
case under that system of law. 

Ca-es referred to: 
Lebona v. Ramokone 1946 N.A.C. (C. & 0.) 14. 
Molo v. Gaza 1947 N.A.C. (C. & 0.) 80. 
Dlumti v. Sikade 1947 N.A.C. (C. & 0.) 47. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Umzimkulu. 

Sleigh (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:-

It appears from the evidence and the pleadings that the late 
Umvovo, father of respondent and grandfather of appellant, was 
the registered owner of the farm Roodewal in the Umzimkulu 
district. The farm was purchased by Umvovo, his relatives and 
one Mswazi, each contributing towards the purchase price. They 
all lived on the farm, erected their huts and ploughed the lands 
allotted to each and grazed their stock on the common grazing 
ground. 

Umvovo bequethed the farm to Maqayekana, the elde:t son 
by his prinicipal wife. At his death the sum of £600 was still 
owing on the farm and a further sum of £300 became due in 
connection with the administration of his estate. In order to 
liquidate these debts Maqayekana called a meeting of heads of 
families living on the farm. At this meeting it was agreed that 
the head of ·each family, including respondent, would contribute 
towards the payment of the debts, and Maqayekana promised 
that everyone who contributed could live on the farm with his 
family and stock until his death. 

After this meeting Mswazi demanded refund of the sum of 
£940 contributed by him. Maqayekana then called another meet­
ing at which it was decided to raise a sum of £1,000 on bond 
to pay Mswazi; the heads of the families each agreed to pay 
£8. lOs. per annum and Maqayekana confirmed his previous 
promise. Re:;pondent paid in all the sum of £88. 1 Os. towards 
the liquidation of the sums of £600 and £300 and the payment 
of the bond which was cancelled on 11th January, 1929. 

In April, 1934 Maqayekana died leaving the farm by will to 
appellant to whom it was transferred. At that time he was 16 
years of age under the guardianship of Mpikwa, half-brother of 
respondent. After appellant had become a major and taken 
over control of the farm, he and respondent quarelled because the 
latter refused to pay rent. The result was that appellant sued 
respondent for ejectment. He obtained an order which was 
confirmed on appeal [see 1 N.A.C. (S) 97]. this Court holding 
that as respondent's right to reside on the farm was not r.:!gist­
ered against the title deed and as appellant had no notice of 
such right at the time of the transfer of the farm to him, he 
was not bound to recognize respondent's rights. Re:pondent was 
ejected in March, 1949. 

Thereafter respondent sued appellant for £88. lOs. contributed 
by him, £35. 7s. for improvements and £25 for growing crops. 
The Native Commissioner who tried the case applied Common 
Law and after hearing ·evidence entered judgment for appellant. 
On appeal this judgment was altered to one of absolution from 
the instance [see I N.A.C. (S) 190]. 

In the present action brought under Native law and custom 
respondent alleges that he is entitled to a refund of the sum of 
£88. lOs. which amount he claims by way of damages or other­
wise. 
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Appellant excepted to respondent's summons as being vague 
and embarrasing and bad in law, and as disclosing no cause of 
action in that the ejectment was a lawful act in pursuance of 
the judgment of the Court and cannot give rise to any claim 
for damages. 

The exception was dismissed with costs. Thereafter appellant 
delivered a plea. I need not set it out in full. In so far as it 
is material to the appeal, he alleges that any amounts paid by 
respondent to Maqayekana were unconditional gifts and were not 
paid in consideration of respondent being allowed to reside free 
of rent on the farm, and this is borne out by the fact that 
respondent actually paid rent for the right to reside on the farm. 
Appellant challenged respondent's right to bring the action under 
Native law and denies that he is liable for any debts and obliga­
tions of the late Maqayekana which do not fall strictly within 
Native Law and Custom or for which he might be liable accord­
ing to the Comomn Law, and in relation thereto he pleads 
specially as follows:-

" (a) That no claim for damages can lie to the plaintiff owing 
to his ejectment from plaintiff's property by legal process 
and that such ejectment was so effected in pursuance of a 
lawful judgment of this Court as alleged in paragraph 10 
of the summons. 

(b) That if any claim for damages does exist, ari ing out of 
the said ejcctment, as claimed by the plaintiff, then plain­
tiff cannot have suffered damages in the full amount of 
£88. lOs. which he allege; he paid to the said late Maq­
ayekana or in any portion thereof, as this amount would be 
more than off-set many times by the many years' free 
occupation which plaintiff enjoyed on the said farm 
together with the right to arable lands and grazing rights, 
before he commenced paying rent." 

The Assistant Native Commissioner, in the exercise of the 
discretion conferred on him by section 11 (I) of Act No. 38 of 
1927, determined the case according to Native law and custom 
and awarded respondent £40 damages. From this judgment 
appellant (defendant in the Court below) has appealed and 
respondent has cross-appealed on the ground that the amount 
awarded is. on the evidence, insufficient. The grounds of appeal 
are as follows:-

" 1. That the Assistant Native Commi~sioner erred in applying 
Native law and custom to the issues in this case in view 
of the nature of the claim and defence. 

2. That in any event the claim as brought by plaintiff is 
unknown to Native law and custom. 

3. That whether Native law and custom or Roman-Dutch law 
is applied the summons discloses no cause of action and 
the exception to the summon;; taken by defendant on this 
ground should have been upheld. 

4. That on the evidence before the Court the presiding officer 
erred in finding that no rent had '<!Ver been paid by plain­
tiff or that the latter was entitled to occupation of the 
ground in dispute without payment of such rent. 

5. That the presiding officer erred in basing his estimate of 
damage on a ground neither claimed nor indicated in the 
summons and on evidence which the presiding officer him­
self admits was irrelevant to the issue before the Court. 

6. That in the event of the Honourable the Native Appeal 
Court deciding that Roman-Dutch Law 5hould be applied 
then the fact that plaintiff is not entitled to damages by 
reason of the ejectment order is res judicata in terms of 
the judgment of the s:ud Appeal Court given on 8th 
February, 1950 t:.!tween the same parties. in which connec­
tion appellant craves leave to now plead this defence as 
being one which only becomes available to him now for the 
first time in the event of the Court upholding the conten­
tion set forth in paragraph I of these grounds of appeal." 
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In regard to the fourth ground, it appears from the evidence 
that durin~ appellant's minority his guardian Mpikwa paid to a 
firm of attorneys the sum of £2 on behalf of respondent and the 
firm's native clerk issued a receipt showing that the amount was 
accounted for as rent for the period 1 I 7 I 33 to 30 I 6 I 34 and was 
credited to Maqayekana's estate. It is contended that this shows 
that respondent was living on the farm as a tenant and not in 
pursuance of any promise made by Maqayekana. But respond­
ent denies that he paid any money as rent, and there is no 
evidence that he agreed to pay rent or that the elders on the 
farm decided that rent should be paid by the kraalheads. All 
mch heads would under nativ-e custom, be under an obligation 
to assist financially with the payment of the rates, taxes and 
other charges against the farm. If respondent did hand the £2 
to Mpikwa, as seems probable, the payment may have been in­
tended as his share of these charges. Mpikwa was not called. 
If the clerk cho :e to account for the money as rent that was his 
business. One cannot from this infer that it was paid as rent, 
and respondent is not bound by what Mpikwa may have told the 
clerk or by the instructions the latter received from his employers. 
It is significant that this is the only amount alleged to have been 
paid by respondent and that when rent was demanded from him 
later, he flatly refused to pay. 

Grounds I, 2 and 3 may conveniently be taken together. The 
contention is that the Native Commissioner erred in applying 
Native law to the case since individual tenure of land is unknown 
to that system of law. The rights of appellant's predecessors in 
title to the farm flowed entirely from their registered title and 
any diminution of the:e rights must be registered against the title 
deed if they have to have any force against the successors in 
title. Consequently Common Law should have been applied to 
the case and under such law no damages could flow from the 
ejectment of respondent which ejectment was authorised by the 
Court. 

The essence of this contention is that the Native Commic:sioner 
had no justification for deciding the case according to Native 
law. Section 11 (1) of Act No. 38 of 1927 reads as follows:-

,, Notwithstanding the provisions of any other law, it shall 
be in the discretion of the courts of native commissioners in 
all suits or proceedings between Natives involving questions 
of customs followed by Natives, to decide such questions 
according to the Native law applying to such customs except 
in so far it shall have been repealed or modified: Provided that 
such Native law shall not be opposed to the principles of public 
policy or natural justice." 
It is clear from this that if a question of native custom is 

involved and such custom is not opposed to public policy or 
natural ju tice, the Native Commissioner has the discretion of 
applymg Native law and if he did so this Court will not interfere 
With his decision [Lebona v. Ramokone 1946 N.A.C. (C. & 0.) 
14]. The first question for decision is whether native custom is 
involved. 

It is true that individual tenure of land was unknown to natives 
before their contact with Europeans. The land they occupied 
belonged to the Chiefs and was occupied communally. Each 
head of a family was allotted land ; to plough and sites for kraals, 
and they grazed their stock on the common grazing grounds. 
It naturally followed that when a group of natives joined together 
to purchase land, they applied their own system of tenure to 
such land. The fact that Statute Law required the registration of 
the land in the Deeds Office did not concern them. This was 
the position in the present case up to the time when Umvovo 
died and during the lifetime of Maqayekana. The occupants 
lived on the farm on a communal ba<is. Respondent. being the 
head of the family, could not have been ejected except, under 
Native law, for gross misconduct, and then only on the decision, 
after investigation, of the elders of the group. This system of 
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tenure is peculiar to natives. It is a sort of group contract which 
confers and imposes identical rights and obligations upon the 
kraalheads residing on the land. If the head of the group dies 
his successor is obliged to honour the contract. 

In the present case respondent relies on the agreement between 
him and l\laqayekana. On the evidence before us there can be 
no doubt that the agreement was entered into. The question is 
whether they contracted according to Native law or according 
to Common Law. 

Among natives it is a very common custom that when one is 
in financial difficulties or requires work done to call for assistance 
from relatives and friends. Thus we have the native customs 
of ukufakwa, ukukwcn:.£'/elele and ukubolekana. These customs 
are really contract> in which there is an implied condition that in 
consideration for the assistance rendered, the giver will be com­
pensated in some way or o ther and he can enforce his claim in 
an action at law. [See l\lolo v. Gaza 1947 N.A.C. (C. & 0.) 
80]. Mutual help is an essential feature of native life and assist­
ance is seldom refused. While th<:se contracts re'iemble in some 
respects Common Law contracts, they are peculiar to natives. 
Another feature of these contracts, and indeed of all native 
contracts, is that should the person who received the assistance 
die before he has perform~d his part of the contract, his heir 
is liable not only for the debts of the deceased but also for the 
latter's contractual obligations [see assessors' opinion which is 
annex·<:d, also Dlumti v. Sikade 1947 N.A.C. (C. &. 0.) 47]. It 
was suggested that since the assessors have never heard of a case 
like the present, they are not in a position to say what the law 
is. This is not so. They, like judicial officers, apply the law 
to the facts of a case and they know that if a person seeks and 
obtains acsistance from another, he or his heir must pay for the 
assista nee. 

Now the contract entered into between respondent and l\laqa­
yekana would be rc~.trded as mo t unusual among Europeans. 
On the other hand, it has all the features of an ordinary native 
contract and is in accord with the custom among natives in 
regard to the occupation of communal land. It cannot be inter­
preted by applying to it principles of law which arc unknown to 
natives and which were never contemplated. In Native law, 
appellant is under an oblig:1tion to honour his father's enforce­
able promise-;. This raises a question of native customary law 
which is certainly not opposed to public policy or natural justice. 
Indeed, it would be unjust to p.:rmit appellant to enrich himself 
at the expense of respondent. The Native Commissioner was 
therefore correct in finding that a question of Native law was 
involved and he was entitled to exercise his discretion in favour 
of deciding the ca~e under that system of bw. Grounds I to 
3 consequently fail, and ground 6 falls away. 

The remaining points to be considered are grounds 5 a nd the 
cross-appeal. The medical evidence is that re , pondent's expecta­
tion of life is about :!0 years. The Native Commissioner has 
arrived at his assessment by allowing respondent £2 per annum 
for 20 years. Umvovo died in 1920. It was after this date that 
respondent paid the sum of £88. lOs. On the basis of the 
Native Commissioner's award respondent has had resid<:ntial 
privileges for 29 years at a cost of £48. lOs. 

An award of £40 as compensation for the benefits for which 
he has been deprived is fair and reasonable, on the basis of 
common law principles. of compensation. 

But the claim is one based on Native law, and the computation 
of compensation should also have been based on the principles of 
Native law. According to the opinion of the native assessors, 
the respondent was entitled to refund of the full amount con­
tributed. 
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But the cross-appeal attacks the award, not on the ground that 
the amount awarded was against the law, but that it is against 
the weight of evidence and the probabilities. As I have already 
indicated the amount awarded on the evidence is reasonable. 
The quantum of damages will therefore be left undisturbed. 

The result is that both the appeal and the cross-appeal are 
dismissed with costs respectively. 

OPINION OF NATIVE ASSESSORS. 

Names of Assessors: 
Mordecai Baleni-Matatiele (Hiangweni). 
Magwayi Mbambela-Matatiele (Hiangweni). 
Bishop Ntlabati-Umzimkulu (Hlangweni). 
Petro:; Jozana-Umzimkulu (Hiangweni). 
Khorong Lebenya-Mt. Fletcher (Basuto). 

Question: 
Do you know of instances where natives have joined to buv a 

farm? 
Answer: 

All assessors-Yes. 
Question: 

Do the people who buy such a farm live on the same conditions 
as in the ordinary native locations i.e. each is allotted a 
land and a kraal site and there is communal grazing? 

Answer: 
Mordecai Baleni.-We are used to seeing the people occupying 

on communal conditions as in the locations. 
Petros Jozana.-If there are only 20 people the farm is sub­

divided. If, however, it is a tribal farm, then the people live 
under tribal conditions. 

Magwayi Mbambela.-The whole matter depends on the wishes 
of the people. 

Bi:hop Ntlabati.-If the farm was registered in one man's name, 
then instructions would come from him. 

Question: 
Who would allot the lands? Who could sell the farm? 

Answer: 
Bishop Ntlabati.-The registered owner would allot the lands, 

but he could not sell the farm without agreement by the 
others. 

All agree. 
Question: 

Facts of case given to asses-ors and they are asked, is heir 
in Native law required to honour the obligations which his 
father undertook before his death? 

Answer: 
Bishop Ntlabati.-Heir is obliged to keep his father's promises. 
All agree. 

Question: 
Leave the m;1tter of the farm. Is an heir required to carry out 

the obligations of his deceased father? 
Answer: 

Mordecai Baleni.-Yes. 
All agree. 

Question: 
Go back to the example of th~ farm. What claim, if any, 

have the people who have been driven off the farm? 
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Answer: 
Bishop Ntlabati.-They must b<! compensated but only for 

those benefits which they have ceased to enjoy. There must 
be a deduction for the period during which they did enjoy 
benefits. 

Khorong Lebenya.-They must be paid out the full amounts 
which they contributed. 

Remaining assessors agree with Khorong Lebenya. 

Question: 
By Mr. Zietsman.-In time of your grandfathers there was no 

such thing as individual ownership in land, because at that 
time the land belonged to the Chief. The advent of the 
white people brought individual tenure. Now a native owed 
a debt on his farm and asked his brother to assist him in 
payment of the debt for which the brother would be granted 
certain rights on the farm. (Mr. Zietsman gave circumstances 
of this case), Has there ever been a case of this nature 
before your Chiefs. 

Answer: 
Petros Jozana.-No. 
All agree. 

Question: 
By Mr. Elliot.-Quotes circumstances of this case. Is it native 

custom that plamtiff could not be driven off the farm except 
for serious misconduct? If he is driven off, there being no 
serious misconduct on his part, is he entitled to a refund 
of part or the whole of his contribution? 

Answer: 
Khorong Lebenya.-He must be refunded the whole of the 

contribution. 
All agree. 
For Appellant: Mr. W. Zi·.:tsman, Kokstad. 
For Respondent: Mr. Elliot, Kokstad. 

CENfRAL NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 30 / 51. 

TWESIIA v. THA:\IBE A~D OTIIERS. 

JOHANNESBURG: 13th February, 1952. Before Marsberg, Presi­
dent; Warner and de Beer, ~tembers of the Court. 

LA \V OF PROCEDURE. 
Pe:ition for condonation of late noting. of appeal-Within discre­

tion of the Native Appeal Court-Must satisfy Court that all 
reasonable and timeous steps to comply with the rules were 
taken-No proof of real and sub9·antial prejudices-Judgmrnt 
on finding of fact-No important question of law involved­
Petition for leave to appeal to the Appellate Division of the 
Supreme Court-No question of miscarriage of justice­
Purpose of section eighteen of Act No. 38 of 1927-Appeal 
Court Judgment final and conclusive. 
Summary: After unsuccessfully applying to the Native Appeal 

Court for condonation of late noting of appeal against a 
judgment of a Native Commissioner's Court, appellan t now 
applies for consent to apply for leave to appeal to the 
Appellatt; Division of the Supreme Court. 
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Held: There is no allegation of substantial prejudice arising out 
of irregularity and ~here is no important question of law 
involved. The petitioner can proceed on a fresh action on 
his counterclaim. The petition for condonation is dismissed 
with costs. 

A petition to grant leave to appeal to the Appellate 
Division of the Supreme Court of South Africa at Bloem­
fontein was considered and dismissed with costs. 

Statutes referred to: 

Section eighteen of Act No. 38 of 1927. 
Section six of Government Notice No. 2254 of 1928. 

Application for consent to apply for leave to appeal to 
Appellate Division against judgment of the Central Native 
Appeal Court. 

Marsberg (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­

We have before us a somewhat unusual application. On the 
22nd September, 1950, judgment was given by the Native Com­
missioner at Zeerust against applicant George Twesha in an 
action brought by Zwele Thambe and others. Throughout those 
proceedings applicant was represented by Mr. Attorney van der 
Spuy. In this application George Twesha states:-

" 4. That after Judgment your Petitioner was dissatisfied 
and tried to induce his Attorney, Mr. S. J. van der Spuy, 
of Zeerust to note an Appeal in the matter and thereafter 
prosecute same; that Mr. van der Spuy refused to note an 
Appeal and said, 'Once the Judgment is finished, it is 
finished.' He also said that he could not go against the 
Judgment of the Assistant Native Commissioner; and that 
he again refused to do so ten days later. 

5. That your Petitioner was well able to defray the costs 
of an Appeal but he did not know of any other Attorney 
in Zeerust who could conduct his appeal for him; that he 
thought that old Mr. van Zyl who is deaf and does not do 
Court work, was the only other Attorney in Zeerust. 

6. That only towards the end of December, 1950, did your 
Petitioner learn that Mr. A. Barlow, B.A., LLB., had com­
menced to practice as an Attorney in Zeerust and that then 
your Petitioner immediately approached him to take his 
appeal; and that after consideration of the case, Mr. Barlow 
noted the necessary Appeal; 

11. That on the 7th day of June, 1951, on the hearing of 
your Petitioner's Petition for condonation for the late noting 
of the appeal to the Native Appeal Court, Your Honours 
dismissed same with costs." 

The application for condonation of the late noting of the 
Appeal came before this Court on 7th June, 1951, when the matter 
was argued and, as stated, the petition for condonation was 
dismissed with costs, vide the judgment of this Court, dated 7th 
June, 1951. 

The present application continues:-

" 12. That thereafter your Petitioner gave instructions to 
his Attorney, Mr. A. Barlow, B.A., LLB., Zeerust, to file 
a Notice of Application for Leave to Appeal to the Appellate 
Division of the Supreme Court of South Africa, Bloemfon­
tein, with the Clerk of the Native Commissioner's Court, 
Zeerust, for transmission to the Native Appeal Court 
(Central Division) and that Mr. Rarlow did so accordingly 
on the 20th day of June, 1951, and that such Application 
also stated that leave would be sought to argue the merits 
of the case before the Native Appeal Court (Central Divi­
sion). 
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13. That your Petitioner verily and honestly believes that 
he is the victim of a miscarriage of justice in this matter as 
he verily and honestly believes that he has a perfect right, 
in common with the other relatives of the late Sam Thambe, 
to live and reside on the farm Zwartkopfon tein 328, District 
Marico. 

18. That the Petitioner has gone to great expense to try 
to vindicate and establish his rights in this matter; and 
that he desires and prays that the merits of this case on the 
evidence alone be argued before the Native Appeal Court 
with the object of obtaining Leave to Appeal to the Appellate 
Division ot the Supreme Court of South Africa at Bloem­
fontein; 

Wherefore your Petitioner lwmbly prays that it may please 
your Lordship to grant his Petition for Leave to Appeal to 
the Appellate Division of the Supreme Court of South Africa 
at Bloemfontein against the whole of the Judgment delivered 
in this matter by the Assistant Native Commissioner, Zeerust, 
on the 22nd day of September, 1950, and against the Judg­
ment of your Lordships refusing condonation for Leave to 
Appeal delivered on the 7th day of June, 1951." 

Attached to the application are three affidavits, including one 
from Mr. A. Barlow, who is now representing applicant, in which 
they all say in effect that they honestly and verily believe that 
should leave to appeal not be granted a miscarriage of justice 
will result to the detriment of the applicant. 

Section eighteen of the Native Administration Act, No. 38 of 
1927. reads as follows:-

" ()) Notwithstanding anything in any law contained, no 
appeal shall lie from the judgment of a Court of Native 
Commissioner in respect of an action or proceeding except 
to a Native Appeal Court constituted under section thirteen, 
unless the Native Appeal Court itself consents to an applica­
tion for leave to appeal (upon any point stated by the said 
Court) being made to the Appellate Division of the Supreme 
Court, subJeCt in any event to the rules of the said Appellate 
Division. 

(2) Save as is provided in section fourteen and in this 
section. the decision of a Na•il·e Appeal Court shall be /i11al 
and conclusil·e." 

The application now before us prays for relief in two respects, 
viz.-

(1) for leave to appeal to the Appellate Division against the 
whole of the judgment delivered by the Native Commis­
sioner on 22nd September, 1950; and 

(2) against the judgment of this Court of 7th June, 1951, 
refusing condonation for leave to appeal. 

Before us applicant was represented by Counsel, Advocate F. 
Boshoff, who Wisely, in our view, could not and did not advance 
any argument in support of the request to argue the merits of 
the case before the Appellate Division. There is no provision 
in law for such a course. Mr. Boshoff confined his argument to 
the second ground of relief sought and submitted that the point 
to be stated was that this Native Appeal Court erred in refusing 
to condone the late noting of the appeal. Now, Section 6 of the 
Native Appeal Court Rules. published under Government Notice 
No. 2254 of 1928, states:-

" 6. An appeal from the judgment of a Court of a Native 
Commissioner shall be noted within twenty-one days after 
the date of such judgment, but the Court of Appeal may 
in any case extend such period upon just cause being shown." 
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It is clear from the judgment of the Native Appeal Court as 
constituted on 7th June, 1951, that the application for condona­
tion of the late noting of the appeal was not dealt with in a 
perfunctory manner. The Court gave full reasons for refusing the 
application for condonation. As is customary the Court perused 
the record of the trial to satisfy itself that ex facie the record 
there were no grounds on which indulgence could justifiably be 
granted. 

It must be noted that applicant's affairs were duly debated 
in a trial which was fairly conducted and at which he was duly 
represented by a legal practitioner, Mr. van der Spuy. This Court 
cannot go beyond the record of the proceedings. The two appli­
cations which have come before us contain much which is based 
on sentiment. We are concerned only with the legal rights of 
the parties. Challenged on the question of miscarriage of justice 
Mr. Boshoff could only submit that applicant is an old man of 
70 years and if he has rights of residence on the farm he would 
be prejudiced were he unable to argue the merits of his case. But 
we must point out that the question of his rights was fully can­
vassed at the trial before the Native Commissioner. There was 
no question of miscarriage of justice there. The matter of grant­
ing condonation for late noting of appeals is within the discretion 
of the Native Appeal Court. We are unable to find any valid 
reason to suppose that the Court erred in its judgment of 7th 
June, 1951. Parliament has decreed that its judgments shall be 
final and conclusive. There is no provision in law that a Native 
Appeal Court shall hear appeals against its own judgments, which 
in substance is the effect of the present application. The appli­
cant or his present legai representative has misconstrued the 
object or purpose of section eighteen of Act No. 38 of 1927. 

It would be as well to quote Mr. van der Spuy's version of 
these later proceedings. In the affidavit of Mr. Pieter Daniel 
van der Merwe, his partner, appear these statements:-

" 4. I was present with all consultations which George 
Twesha and his witnesses had with Mr. van der Spuy and 
I acted as Interpreter for Mr. van der Spuy in the case. 

5. I deny the allegation that Mr. van der Spuy ever said 
' Once the judgment is finished, it is finished' and can 
recollect very clearly that Mr. van der Spuy and myself 
actually told George Twesha that he has not got the slightest 
hope on appeal and that we were not prepared to note an 
appeal and waste his money. 

6. That upon Mr. van der Spuy's refusal to note an appeal, 
George Twesha and his witnesses went to Johannesburg to 
Messrs. Moss- Morris and Ettlinger for further legal advice 
on probabilities of an appeal and on their further visit to 
our offices, approximately five to ten days after judgment 
was given, George Twesha said that Messrs. Moss-Morris 
and Ettlinger thought that there might be some grounds of 
appeal but they would prefer to see the record first." 

Upon this Mr. van der Spuy told George Twesha again in 
my presence, as I interpreted, that he, Mr. van der Spuy, refused 
to note an appeal. Mr. van der Spuy said to George: 'If you 
want to waste your money go to Messrs. Moss-Morris and 
Ettlinger and have an appeal noted. I have no objection what­
soever'". Had applicant listened to the advice of his attorney, 
Mr. van der Spuy, he would to-day be a wiser and richer man. 

There is no point in these proceedings which this Court is 
prepared to reserve for consideration of the Appellate Division. 

The application is dismissed with costs. 

For Appellant: Advocate Boshoff, F., instructed by Mr. A. 
Barlow, P.O. Box 16, Zeerust. 

For Respondent: Mr. A. Hirsch instructed by Messrs. Warren 
.and Coulson, Attorne ys. P.O. Rox 83, Zeerust. 
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SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 11/52. 

LAI'ODII'OGWE v. HLATUKA. 

UMTATA: 18th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President; Bates 
and Young, Members of the Court. 

LA \V OF PROCEDURE. 
Native Appeal Case-Practice and Procedure-Judgment for 

defendant-When competent-Appeal-Judgment for defendant 
altered to one of absolution-Costs-Appellant entitled to 
costs. 

Summary: Appellant sued respondent for 5 head of cattle or 
their value £40 as damages for the pregnancy of appellant's 
customary wife. The Court entered judgment for defendant 
because the wife's evidence was not corroborated. There were 
indications that corroborative evidence may be available. 

Held (1): That where there is a direct conflict of testimony 
between the witnesses for the plaintiff a nd those for the 
defendant, then the Court should not enter judgment for 
defendant unless it is satisfied that the story told by the 
defence witnesses is true. 

Held (2): That if the sole reason for rejecting the plaintiff's 
claim is that the woman's story is not corroborated as is 
required by law, in paterni:y cases, and if there is an indica­
tion that corroborative evidence may become available the 
judgment should be one of absolution. 

Held (3): That the alteration of the judgment on appeal from 
one for defendant to one of absolution from the instance 
in one of substance and not merely one of form, and there­
fore appellant is entitled to his costs of appeal. 

Cases referred to: 
Oliver's Transport ~·. Divisional Council, Worcester 1950 (4) 

S.A. (C) 537. 
Freedman ~·. Harrismith Town Council, 1945 (2) P.H. F. 63. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Engcobo. 
Slei!!h (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
This is an appeal against a judgment for defendant (now 

respondent) in an action in which appellant sued respondent for 
five head of cattle or their value £40 as damages for causing the 
pregnancy of appellant's customary wife, Nodambile. 

It is quite clear that Nodambile committed adultery and became 
pregnant while appellant was away at work. The question is 
whether the Assistant Native Commissioner was wrong in reject­
ing her evidence that respondent was responsible for her 
pregnancy. 

Nodambile and Noamen, the go-between, are agreed that the 
latter knows only of one occasion when respondent and Nodam­
bile slept together, and they made it clear that this was in 
ploughing season 1949 at appellant's kraal where Noamen was 
staying at the time. Nodambile says that Noamen left the kraal 
the next day, that respondent thereafter continued to visit her 
and that she became pregnant in autumn 1950. Whereas, Noamen 
says that she stayed on at the kraal for some time after the 
night respondent and Nodambile slept together and that she 
left in autumn 1950. The Native Commissioner points to this 
discrepancy and says that if respondent continued to visit Nodam­
bile as the latter says, Noamen must have been aware of it. 
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This is undoubtedly a material discrepancy, and there are 
others. For instance, Nodambile states that Noamen saw them 
under the same blanket, but Noamen makes no mention of this 
and her evidence seems to convey that she did not see them under 
one blanket. In view of these discrepancies the Native Commis­
sioner was justified in declining to give judgment for appellant. 
But one of the grounds of appeal is that in any event the 
judgment should have been one of absolution. 

Section 38 of Proclamation No. 145 of 1923 provides that 
the Court, may, as the result of a trial of an action grant-

(a) judgment for the plaintiff in respect of his claim in so far 
as he h~s proved the same; 

(b) judgment for the defendant in respect of his defence in 
so far as he has proved the same; 

(c) absolution from the instance, if it appears to the Court 
that the evidence does not justify the court in giving judg­
ment for either party. 

Now the judgment of the Native Commissioner would be cor­
rect if he were satisfied that respondent had proved his defence, 
but he does not comment on the defence evidence at all. He 
finds that Noamen's testimony was not corroborative of Nodam­
bile's story and then goes on to say; " Once the Court was 
satisfied on this point the remainder of the evidence could do 
nothing to establish a case for the plaintiff, and the court there­
fore felt bound to enter judgment for the defendant." The Native 
Commissioner has misinterpreted the above section. He was 
not bound to give judgment for respondent (defendant). Where 
there is a direct conflict of testimony between the witnesses for 
the plaintiff and those for the defendant, then the Court should 
not enter judgment for the defendant unless it is satisfied that 
the story told by the defence witnesses is true and that by the 
plaintiff's witnesses is false. This is clearly contemplated in 
paragraph (b) of section 38 [see also Oliver's Transport v. 
Divisional Council, Worcester, 1950 (4) S.A. (C), 537]. 

It may be that Noamen's story is false and that she knows 
nothing about the intimacy between respondent and Nodambile. 
But the Native Commissioner was clearly not satisfied that the 
latter's testimony is false, otherwise he would have said so. His 
reason for entering judment for respondent (defendant) is because 
Nodambile's evidence is not corroborated as is required by law 
in paternity cases. That is the very reason why he should have 
entered a judgment of absolution, unless Nodambile admitted 
that she has no corroborative evidence. She made no such 
admission. On the contrary, there is Nobantam, the alleged first 
go-between, who might be able to give corroborative evidence. 
Further Nodambile says that all the women of her section of the 
location know that respondent was her metsha. The corrobora­
tion which the law requires in such cases may thus be available. 

The Native Commissioner therefore erred in giving a full 
judgment for respondent. The appeal consequently succeeds on 
this ground and 1he judgment will be altered to one of absolu­
tion. 

In regard to the costs of appeal, it was stated in Freedman v. 
Harrismith Town Council [1945, (2) P.H. F. 63] that where the 
appellant has failed to establish his case both in the trial Court 
and in the Court of Appeal, and where no indication was given 
to the Trial Court of the possibility of fresh evidence coming to 
light, the alteration of the Trial Court's judgment from one for 
defendant to one of absolution was not a reversal of the Magis­
trate's judgment entitling the appellant to the costs of the appeal. 
But as was shown in the Oliver's Transport case (supra at p. 545) 
that where the defendant has further evidence available and 
succeeds in having the Trial Court's judgment altered ~o one of 
absolution, the alteration is one of substance and not one of 
form only, and that the appellant would be entitled to costs of 
appeal. This is the position in the present case. 
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The result is that the appeal is allowed wi th costs and the 
judgment of the Court below is altered to one of absolution 
from the instance with costs. 

For Appellant.: 1\fr. White, Umtata. 

J-'or Respondent: Mr. Airey, Umtata. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 12 /52. 

ZOISDELA v. l\IPAYI. 

UMTATA: 19th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President; Bates 
and Young, Members of the Court. 

NATIVE LA\V AND CUSTOJ\1. 
Native Appeal Case- Marriage by Native Custom-Desertion of 

wife- Retum of wife or re:•·orati011 of dowry- Defence of 
teleka-Putuma-Husband must putuma before !te can sue­
Leller of demand not sufficient putuma. 

Summary: Appellant sued respondent for the return of his 
customary wife, N. who he alleged deserted without cause, 
and, failing her return, restoration of the dowry paid for 
her. Respondent denies the desertion and that N left appel­
lant without cause. He avers that appellant assaulted his 
wife, drove her away, and for this reason he has rclekaed her. 
He states he is prepared to return her on payment of a tcleka 
beast and upon putuma. The Court found that appellant had 
not purumaed his wife and entered judgment of absolution. 
Appellant has appealed. 

Held: 

(l) That in order to justify the teleka respondent must prove 
the ass:wlt and the driving away. 

(2) That on the evidence N deserted without cause and the 
defence of celeka has thus not been established. 

(3) That in an action for the return of a customary wife 
the husband cannot succeed unless he satisfies the Court 
that he has purumaed his wife and that she failed to 
return. It is not sufficient to send a letter of demand. 

(4) That the evidence and the circumstances favour the con· 
elusion that Nosargent was purumaed and failed to return 
to appellant. 

Cases re/erred to: 

Tas v. 1\fpunga & Ano .. 1946, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 5. 
Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Cala 

Sleigh (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­

Appellant in this action sued respondent for the return of 
his customary wife, Nosargent, who he alleged had deserted 
without cause, and, failing her return, restoration of the dowry 
paid for her, namely 10 cattle valued at £100. 

Respondent in his plea denies the desertion and that Nosargent 
left appellant without cause. He avers that appellant assaulted 
his wife and drove her away and for this reason he has :elekaed 
her. He states that he is prepared to return her to appellant 
upon putuma and payment of a teleka beast. In order to justify 
the teleka respondent must prove the assault and the driving 
away. 
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The Assistant Native Commissioner found that Nosargent had 
left appellant without just cause, but entered an absolution judg­
ment because appellant failed to putuma her. Plaintiff (appellant) 
now appeals against this judgment on the grounds that it is 
against the weight of evidence, and that in any event the failure 
to pu1Uma was not fatal to appellant's claim because her return 
was demanded in the letter of demand. 

It appears from the evidence that Nosargent is appellant's 
right hand wife and that they were about 21 and 56 years of 
age respectively when they married in 1947. It is common cause 
that Nosargent left appellant on four occasions. She states that 
appellant was jealous of her, objected to her speaking to other 
men and had ordered her to take children with her when she 
went to fetch water. Giving details of the circumstances under 
which she left on the fourth occasion, she says that she had gone 
to fetch water by herself. She met appellant coming from the 
village and after questioning her he said (quoting her own words): 
" If I disobey his orders I had better go back to my people and 
have my father warn me." She goes on to say that she did not 
take him seriously, but the next morning he said: " I want you 
to go back to your people otherwise I will do something to you". 
He then slapped her with his open hand and she left. Now it is 
clear from this that she was not driven away, as the Native 
Commissioner found. She should have reported herself to 
respondent, explained the reason why she was sent home, and 
returned to appellant or waited until she was putumaed. Appel­
lant has paid for her what is generally regarded as a full dowry, 
and the treatment she received at the hands of appellant on 
the fourth occasion d1d not call for punishment of appellant by 
impounding the woman under the custom of ukuteleka. Since 
Nosargent had disobeyed appellant's instructions he was justified 
in sending her to her people to be reprimanded. The defence 
of teleka has therefore not been established. 

In an action for the return of a customary wife, the husband 
cannot succeed unless he satisfies the court that he has putumaed 
his wife and that she refused or failed to return. This is 
especially so if his conduct justified her leaving him for the 
purpose of complaining to her dowry holder [see Jas v. Mpunga 
and Ano., 1946, N.A.C. (C. & 0.) 5]. He should himself putuma 
if at all possible. But if the complaint against him is trifling, or 
if the woman deserted without cause, or if she had been sent 
to the dowry holder to be reprimanded then he may send 
messengers. It is not sufficient to send a letter of demand. The 
Native Commissioner was therefore right in declining to treat the 
letter of demand as a substitute for putuma. But his finding that 
Nosargent was not putumaed is not supported by the evidence. 

Appellant states that he putumaed her on three occasions about 
August, 1948, but did not find her. About a year later he sent 
his messengers Jubele and Mpalweni and Jubele and Tutsu on 
three occasions, and they were also unsuccessful. Jubele and 
Tutsu corroborate appellant's evidence. On the other hand 
respondent and Nosargent say that she was never putumaed. 

The Native Commissioner has rejected appellant's evidence of 
the putuma because Jubele and Tutsu said that they went in the 
winter, 1950, whereas appellant said it was in 1949. It is obvious 
that Jubele and Tutsu are mistaken as to the time. Jubele says 
that when he went the baby which was born in February, 1949, 
was about to crawl and that when he went the last time respon­
dent would not give a reply because he had received the legal 
demand. This demand shows it was issued on 7th November, 
1949. It is thus clear that they could not have gone in 1950. 
The Native Commissioner should not have taken notice of this 
discrepancy, especially as Jubele states that he does not know 
the years and months, and that he was not certain of the season. 
He went on three occasions which may well have covered the 
period from winter to ploughing season, 1949. Uneducated 
natives are notoriously unreliable when testifying as to time. The 
age of the baby and the date of the demand make it clear that 
they visited respondent's kraal in 1949 and not 1950. 
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We have in appellant's favour that it is customary to p111uma 
an absent wife, and appcll~nt and his witnesses say that Nosargent 
was putumaed. If appellant was jealous of her and suspected 
her fidelity-as he had cause to, seeing that she had since given 
birth to an illegitimate child-it is improbable that he would have 
left her out of his control for long. Against this we have the 
evidence of respondent and Nosargent that she was not putumaed. 
Their evidence on the whole is contradictory and unreliable. In 
our opinion the evidence and circumstances favour the conclusion 
that Nosargent was p1111mwed and that she failed to return t(} 
appellant. The appeal consequently succeeds. 

Ten cattle were paid as dowry and there are now two issue 
of the union including the illegitimate child which, in Native 
Law, belongs to appellant. There is no evidence of the value 
of the cattle but coumel for the parties have agreed that the 
average value of cattle in Cala district is £8 per head. 

The appeal is allowed with costs and the judgment of the Court 
below is altered to read: "Judgment for plaintiff with costs for 
the return of his wife, Nosargent, within one month of the date 
hereof, failing which delivery of eight head of cattle or payment 
of their value at £8 each." 

For Appellant: Mr. Airey, Umtata. 

For Respondent: Mr. Mbobo, Tsolo. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 13 / 52. 

GAULAKA YA v. TO:"oi'YELA. 

UMTATA : 19th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President; Bates 
and Young, Members of the Court. 

LA \V OF PROCEDURE. 

Native Appeal Case-Practice and Procedure-Appeal-Objection 
to hearing of- Ill absence of specific instructio11s an attomey 
has no au(hority to note a11d prosecute an appeal in a Native 
Appeal Court. 

Summary: An objection to the hearing of the appeal was 
lodged and in support thereof an affidavit by appellant was 
filed. In it he states that he was satisfied with the Native 
Commissioner's judgment and that he had not authorised 
his attorney to appeal. 

Held: Since the rules of the Native Appeal Court provide for 
the noting and prosecution of an appeal, an attorney for a 
party in a Native Commissioner's Court has, in the absence 
of specific instructions, no authority to note and prosecute 
an appeal in the Native Appeal Court. 

Objection upheld. 

Cases referred to: 
Mdontsa v. Fumbalele, 1946, N.A.C. (C. & 0.}, 68. 
D. and D. H. Fraser, Ltd., v. Wailer, 1916, A.D., 494. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Mqanduli. 
Sleigh (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:-

In this action plaintiff (now respondent) sued Gamtiliya Mafa 
for certain 10 cattle alleged to have been paid as dowry for 
his dauj!hter. 



95 

The case was set down for trial and after Gamtiliya had given 
evidence the case was postponed. At the resumed hearing the 
Court was informed that Gamtiliya had died and that his heir, 
Mtondwana, had absconded in 1937 and has not been heard of 
since. Respondent's attorney then applied that Gilbert Gaulakaya 
(herein referred to as appellant) be appointed Curator ad litem 
and that his name be inserted as defendant in that capacity. The 
application was granted, appellant's attorney raising no objection 
to the appointment. I should say at once that the heir should 
have been substituted as defendant and Gilbert could then have 
been appointed to represent the heir [see Mdontsa v. Fumbalele, 
1946, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 68]. However, the result is the same. 

At the close of the case judgment was entered in favour of 
respondent. From this judgment an appeal was noted on behalf 
of appellant. 

On the 30th November, 1951, respondent's attorney notified 
appellant's attorney that the latter's authority to note and prose­
cute the appeal would be challenged at the hearing on the 
ground that appellant had not authorised him to note the appeal. 

An objection to the hearing of the appeal was duly lodged 
and in support thereof an affidavit by appellant was filed. In 
it he states that he was satisfied with the Native Commissioner's 
judgment and that he had not authorised his attorney 
(Mr. Wilkins) to note the appeal. Counter affidavits were then 
filed. From these it appears that Mr. Wilkins advised appellant 
to appeal and that the sum of £5 was handed to Mr. Wilkins' 
interpreter by the widow of Gamtiliya as security for the costs 
of appeal in the presence of appellant who did not object. 

Formal power of attorney to appear and prosecute a civil case 
is not required either in the Native Commissioner's Court or in 
this Court. It is sufficient if the attorney had general instructions 
to bring or to defend the case. The attorney's mandate, however, 
lapses upon the death of the party he represents. If a party 
in a pending case dies it is the practice of courts, under Common 
Law, to call upon the heir to accept the case as it stands, and 
proceed therein with the opposite party, or to consent to his 
opponents claim (see van Leeuwen's Roman-Dutch Law, Kotze's 
Translation, Vol. 11, p.p. 381-2). This is also the practice in 
Native Commissioners' Courts. 

Now since appellant did not admit respondent's claim he must 
be deemed to have authorised Mr. Wilkins to act for him in the 
Native Commissioner's Court. In D. and D. H. Fraser, Ltd., 
v. Wailer (1916, A.D., 494), it was held that a power given to 
an attorney to appear in a suit in a Magistrate's Court is a suffi­
cient authority to him to note an appeal, as this is an act done 
in the lower Court where his power was intended to operate, but 
the power of attorney does not authorise him to prosecute the 
appeal since the rules of appellate tribunals require the filing of 
a power of attorney to prosecute the appeal. 

As I have already stated, the rules of the Native Appeal ( ourt 
do not require the filing of a power of attorney. But it must be 
noted that the regulations governing the noting of an appeal are 
contained in the rules of the Native Appeal Court and not in the 
rules of the Native Commissioner's Court. In this respect the 
rules of the latter Court and that of the Magistrate's Court differ. 
Since the rules of the Native Appeal Court provide for the 
noting and prosecution of an appeal, an attorney for a party 
in a Native Commissioner's Court has, in the absence of specific 
instructions, no authority to note and prosecute an a ppeal in 
the Native Appeal Court. An unsuccessful litigant in the lower 
Court may, for various reasons, accept the judgment even if he 
was convinced that it was wrong. If. therefore, he wishes to take 
the judgment on appeal it is essential that he gives instructions 
to that end. 
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In the present case appellant has definitely stated in his affidavit, 
and the other affidavits support him, that he has given no specific 
instructions to note the appeal and that he is satisfied With the 
judgment. Since he is the appellant of record he has the sole 
ri~ht to say whether or not the appeal should be proceeded 
With. 

For this reason the objection to the hearing of the appeal is 
allowed and the appeal is struck off the roll with costs. 

For Appellant: Mr. Wilkins, Mqanduli. 
For Respondent : Mr. Airey, Umtata. 

CENTRAL NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 8/52. 

RABOTATA v. MALUl'iGA. 

JoHANNESBURG: 19th February, 1952. Before Manberg, 
President, Warner and Hattingh, Members of the Court. 

COMMON LA \V. 
EjectmenJ-judgment entered in terms of seulement-const "lt to 

judgment for ejectment-Writ of execution suspendea on 
conditions-On breach of conditions writ of execlllion 
issuable ll'ithout further legal process. 

Summary: The facts emerge from the judgment. 
Held: 

(1) Appellant not a statutory tenant. 
(2) No further legal process necessary. 
(3) That settlement was not a novation of judgment. 

Cases referred to: 
Cairn (Pty.), Ltd. v. Playdon & Co., Ltd., 1948, S.A. 

(3), 121. 
Anamia v. Moodboy, 1943, A.D. 538, 9. 
St. Patrick's Mansions (Pty.), Ltd ., \'. Graham's Restaurants 

(Pty.), Ltd., S.A. (4), 1949-69. 
Statutes re/erred to: 

Rents Act, Section 23. 
Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Johannesburg. 
Marsberg (President), delivering the judgment of the Court):­
In the Native Commissioner's Court at Johannesburg, plaintiff, 

Paul Malunga sued defendant, Jackson Rabotata for damages 
and ejectment from premises at 72 Edward Street, Sophiatown, 
Johannesburg, of which plaintiff was the landlord and defendant 
the tenant. It is unnecessary to quote the particulars of the 
claim or the defence and the counterclaim which was lodged 
by defendant because when the parties appeared in Court on 
25th June, 1949, duly represented, Mr. Bregmann for plaintiff 
informed the Court that a settlement between the parties had 
been reached and handed in a written statement signed by both 
parties to the action, setting out the terms of the settlement. The 
settlement was then attested in Court and agreed to by the 
parties concerned. 

Judgment was entered into in terms of the settlement recorded 
and filed. 

The deed of settlement is as follows:-
" In the matter between: 

Paul Malunga ...... .. ....... Plaintiff 

and 

Jackson Rabotata ... .. . . .. . .. Defendant. 
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Terms of Settlement. 
I. The defendant hereby agrees that judgment be entered for 

ejectment against the defendant, the said judgment to be 
entered as a judgment by the above Honourable Court. 

2. The defendant hereby acknowledges that at all times 
material hereto he was created a statutory tenant requiring 
rental to have been paid by him, in terms of the Rents 
Act, by the 7th of each and every month. 

3. The parties hereto agree that in terms of judgment granted 
in paragraph I hereof the writ of execution be suspended 
upon the following conditions:-
(a) The defendant is to pay to the plaintiff the sum of 

£7. lis. 4d. forthwith in full settlement of rental and 
lights account up to the 30th June, 1949. 

(b) The defendant is to pay the sum of £4. 10s. each and 
every month as rental (inclusive of lights account). 
The said amount to be paid to the plaintiff at 72 
Edward Street, Sophiatown, and a receipt by plaintiff 
to issue as evidence thereof, by the 7th of each and 
every month, in advance, the rental for July, 1949, 
to be paid accordingly by the 7th July, 1949. 

4. It is agreed that in the event of the defendant failing to 
comply with any condition of 3 (a) or 3 (b) hereof the 
Writ of Execution may be put into operation forthwith, 
without any further notice to the defendant. 

5. The above agreement does not derogate in any way from 
the position that the defendant is and remains a statutory 
tenant as defined in paragraph 2 hereof. 

6. Each party hereto is to pay his own costs. 
Signed at Johannesburg this 25th June, 1949. 

As witnesses: 
(1) (Signed)? 
(2) (Signed)? " 

PAUL MALUNGA, Plaintiff. 
JACKSON RABOTATA, Defendant. 

Thereafter, in 1951, plaintiff apparently endeavoured to put the 
writ of execution into effect, alleging failure on the part of 
defendant to pay the rental for the month of April, 1951, in 
terms of the settlement. Defendant then applied to Court for 
an order restraining the Messenger of the Court. The application 
was granted on 27th June, 1951, the rule to operate as an interim 
interdict and the return day for the hearing of the confirmation 
or otherwise of the rule was fixed for 11th July, 1951. After 
several postponements, the matter was finally disposed of on 15th 
August, 1951, when the rule granted on 27th June, 1951, was 
discharged. 

Defendant has appealed against this order on the following 
grounds, viz. :-

"(a) The judgment is bad in law in that the Additional 
Native Commissioner should have granted the application, 
for one or other of the following reasons:-

(i) In terms of the agreement dated the 25th day of June, 
1949, applicant was constituted a tenant of the premises 
and by reason thereof it was not competent to eject 
applicant by means of execution pursuant to the 
judgment; 

(ii) inasmuch as applicant was constituted a tenant as 
aforesaid, it was not competent to eject applicant 
from the said premises pursuant to clause 4 of the 
said agreement, the said clause being of no force and 
effect; 

(iii) The said agreement in its effect constituted a novation 
of the judgment, and created a relationship of landlord 
and tenant between respondent and applicant respec­
tively." 
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None of the points now taken in the notice of appeal was 
taken before the Native Commissioner when the application for 
stay of the writ of execution was under consideration. Relief 
was sought on quite different grounds, as disclosed in the 
affidavits placed before the Court. The Native Commissioner 
decided the issue on the question whether rental had or had not 
been paid in terms of clause 3 (b) of the settlement. At that 
stage defendant accepted and relied on the settlement as being 
of force and effect. 

Mr . .Mann who appeared for defendant (appellant) before us 
submitted the following propositions:-

(1) That the terms of settlement were so ambiguous as to be 
incapable of interpretatio·l and that they should be 
construed against the plaintiff; 

(2) that the settlement novated the judgment and left the 
defendant in the position of a statutory tenant in terms 
of the Rents Act; 

(3) that defendant could not be ejected without further legal 
process. 

(1) We have carefully followed Mr. J\lann's argument on the 
question of ambiguity in the language of the terms of settlement 
but we are unable to agree with him. To us the document is 
quite clear. Defendant had been sued by plaintiff, inter alia, 
for ejectment from certain premises. Defendant lodged a plea 
and counterclaim. On the 25th June, 1949, when the matter 
came before the Court a settlement had been arrived at. the 
effect of which was that defendant consented to judgment being 
entered against him for ejectment and that the writ of execution 
would be suspended on certain conditions. These matters were 
incorporated in a written document handed into Court and 
judgment was entered in terms of the settlement. We can see 
no ambiguity and indeed both parties followed the arrangements 
laid down until 1951. It is quite clear that they had no doubt 
as to the effect and intention of the settlement. 

(2) We have been asked to say that the settlement novated the 
judgment. The argument submitted to us seems to be quite 
illogical. Judgment was entered after the settlement. We can 
appreciate an agreement novating something which went before 
but we cannot perceive of a nm·ation of something which is to 
follow; nor does our concept of novation run to something which 
novates itself. If anything was substituted by the settlement it 
was the preceding disputes between the parties as disclosed in 
the pleadings in the case. We can read nothing into the settle­
ment to suggest that there should be no judgment against 
defendant or that the parties should be left in status quo. On 
the contrary defendant consented to judgment being entered 
against him for ejectment and such judgment was entered. It 
was submitted that the provisions for payment of future "rental" 
and that the defendant was to be held to continue as a statutory 
tenant constituted a new agreement abrogating the judgment. 
That, however, was clearly not the intention of the parties nor 
can that be gathered by their conduct subsequent to the 
judgment. It is our duty to construe the settlement to give 
effect to the intention of the parties and the judgment of the 
Court. Perusal of the terms of settlement can leave no doubt 
as to the position of the defendant. There is a valid judgment 
against him for ejectment. Ejectment was suspended on certain 
conditions. Payment of future " rental " was a condition of the 
suspension of the writ of execution, not an element of a new 
relationship of landlord and tenant. Similarly, the object of 
clause 5 of the settlement that defendant was to remain a 
statutory tenant, read in the light of the whole settlement, was 
to make provision for the basis on which defendant would be 
treated in case of other disputes between the parties. Clause 5 
cannot be construed to mean that the whole settlement was 
abrogated and that after the judgment the parties stood in the 
relationship of landlord and statutory tenant. Clause 5 must 
be read in conjunction with clause 2. The reference to 
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" statutory tenant " relates to the payment of rental and not to 
the definition of statutory tenants in the Rents Act. Much of 
the argument under this heading has been concerned with the 
use of the particular words "rental" and "statutory tenant". 
Confusion has thereby ensued. To argue on words taken out 
of their context is not helpful. The terms of settlement read 
as a whole are clear and we are satisfied that the Native 
Commissioner was correct in his judgment. 

(3) It was submitted that defendant could not be ejected 
without further legal process. In view of the fact that there 
is a valid judgment against defendant for ejectment we are unable 
to appreciate that further legal proceedings are required. In 
any event further legal relief was sought by defendant in his 
application for stay of execution. In this he failed and the 
matter is now at an end. 

The argument under this heading may have been of greater 
force had there been no prior legal action. 

The appeal is dismissed with costs. 
For Appellant: Mr. Adv. Mann, D.K., instructed by Messrs. 

Broomberg, Graaff & Korb, Magor House, Fox Street, Johannes­
burg. 

For Respondent: Mr. Adv. Spitz, D., instructed by Messrs. 
Bregmann & Van der Wait, Commissioner House, Commissioner 
Street, Johannesburg. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 14/52. 

BUBI AND ANOTHER v. MAHLOKOMANE. 

UMTATA: 20th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President, Bates 
and Young, Members of the Court. 

NATIVE LAW AND CUSTOM. 

Native Appeal Case-Native custom-Adultery-Proof of­
Evidence that ceremony for child held by appellant strong 
proof of adultery-Place where ceremony may be held. 
Summary: Respondent obtained judgment against appellants 

(inmate and kraalhead) respectively for 5 head of cattle or 
their value £40 as damages for adultery with and pregnancy 
of respondent's customary wife. The only corroborative 
evidence in support of the wife's testimony is that appellants 
p'erformed the customary ceremony for the child secretly 
at the kraal of one N who is a relative of appellants. 

Held (l): That if a person performs the customary ceremony 
for a sick child, ·that is very strong proof that he is the 
father of the child. 

Held (2): That the ceremony should be held at the kraal of 
the natural father, but it may also be held at the kraal of a 
relative. 

Appe:ll from the Court of Native Commissioner, Mqanduli. 
Sleigh (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
Re3pondent obtained judgment against appellants (inmate and 

kraalhead respectively) for five head of cattle or their value £40 
as damages for adultery with and the pregnancy of Respondent's 
customary wife, Notobile. Appellants appealed. The judgment 
is attacked on its merits and on the ground that the expert 
evidence given by Bazindlovu Pangindlela is not a true reflection 
of the custom involved. 

70lo-5 
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It is clear that Notobile committed adultery during respondent's 
absence at work. She accused first appellant. In the summons 
it is alleged that she was rendered pregnant by him during the 
1949 I 50 ploughing season but in her evidence she states that it 
was after the hoeing of '!hat crop. Her evidence is contradictory 
in other respects. The only corroborative testimony in support 
of her story is the evidence that about March 1951 appellants held 
the customary ceremony for the child at the kraal of Nokeke. 
If this is so the appeal must fail because it is inconceivable that 
appellants would have performed this ceremony if first appellant 
was not the father of the child. 

There is no doubt that the ceremony was performed. The 
only question is whether it was held at the instigation of 
appellants as the Native Commissioner found. 

Notobile states that her child became ill and first appellant 
told her to take it to Nokeke's kraal where he promised to 
perform the customary ceremony. According to her evidence 
she arrived at Nokeke's kraal on a Sunday and told him the 
purpose of her visit. Later that day he left the kraal and after 
this first appellant arrived to see Nokeke, but finding the latter 
absent left and returned again the following day. As Nokeke 
was still absent he left again. On the following Monday second 
appellant arrived af:er lunch. Nokeke being present. She was at 
the time in Nokeke's mother's hut. She was called to the hut 
in which second appellant and Nokeke were and there the former 
told her that he would arrange for the slaughtering of a goat 
for the child and thereafter left. On the Tuesday morning at 
dawn first appellant arrived at the kraal, Nokeke being present, 
and said that he would bring a goat that day. It arrived with 
a boy of appellants' kraal in the afternoon. Later first appellant 
arrived and at sunset the goat was slaughtered. She was given 
some of the meat and part of the skin was tied on the child's 
arm. First appellant slept there that night, left the next morning, 
returned again at sunset that day, ate the balance of the meat 
and both he and Nokeke then left the kraal. At about bed-time 
that night her hu'>band arrived. 

Notobile's evidence of the time and date of arrivals and 
departures of the appellants, of the arrangements made by them 
for slaughtering of a goat, and of the actual slaughtering and 
ceremony is corroborated by Nokeke to the last detail not with­
standing severe cross-examination. She would hardly have given 
evidence of first appellant's umuccessf ul visits if her story had 
been fabricated. She does not agree with Nokeke as to the time 
when the latter made his statement to the headman implicating 
appellants, but this discrepancy is immaterial as it is not disputed 
that Nokeke did give a statement to the headman explaining 
the presence of the woman at his kraal. 

It is contended that in accordence with custom the ceremony 
is held at the kraal of the natural father of the child. and since 
it was held at Nokeke's kraal he is the father and has falsely 
accused first appellant. It is clear however from the evidence 
of the expert witness called, and the opinion of the assessors, a 
record of which is annexed, that the ceremony may also be 
held at the kraal of a relative of the father, especially if the 
child is adulterine and the adultery has not been admitted. Since 
Nokeke is related to appellants it is improbable that he would 
have falsely accused first appellant. 

In all the circumstances we are satisfied that the judgment is 
correct. The appeal is consequently dismissed with costs. 

Opinion of the Native Assessors. 

Name3 of the Assessors: Sazingam Mgudlwa (Engcobo), Bazind­
lovu Holomisa (Mqanduli), l\lbawuli Dlongwana (Cofimvaba), 

Henry Makamba (Tsolo), Ntabezulu Mtirara (Umtata). 
Question: Should the customary ceremony for an adulterine 

child be held at the kraal of the natural father or may it be held 
at another kraal? 
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Answer: Ntabezulu Mtirara : If the adultery had been denied 
the ceremony must be held at the adulterer's kraal or at the 
kraal of a relative. The ceremony is held secretly. 

All the other assessors agree except Mbawuli Dlongwana, who 
states that the ceremony must be held by the husband of the 
woman. 

Henry Makamba: If the adulterine child becomes ill and the 
ceremony is held by the husband of the woman that would 
be no good as it would not cure the child. If a man comes 
forward and performs the ceremony that shows that he is the 
father of the child. It is necessary for both the adulterer and 
his father to be present when the ceremony is held, but if they 
had discussed the matter then the father need not be present. 

For Appellant: Mr. K. Muggleston, Umtata. 
For Respondent: Mr. Airey, Umtata. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 15 OF 1952. 

FULENI v. BHEBHEZA. 

UMTATA: 20th February, 1952. Before Sleigh, President; Bates 
and Young, Members of the Court. 

COMMON LAW. 
Native Appeal Case-Damages-Mitigation of damages-Unlaw­

ful killing of pig-Offer of carcass to defendant rejected­
Plaintiff entitled to full value of pig. 
Summary: Respondent unlawfully killed appellant's pig valued 

at £6. Respondent was offered the carcase which he rejected. 
Appellant sued for the value of the pig. The Court entered 
a Judgment of absolution holding that there is no evidence 
of the value of the carcase which value should be deducted 
from the value of the live pig. 

Held: 
(1) That there is a duty upon a plaintiff who has suffered 

loss as the result of the acts of the defendant to take 
such steps as a reasonable and prudent man whould 
take to mitigate the loss. 

(2) That since the carcase was offered to respondent he could 
have mitigated the loss to himself by making use of the 
carcase. 

(3) That since he rejected the offer and discarded the carcase 
he cannot complain if appellant who, as owner, had to 
dispose of the carcase, made use of parts of it. 

Cases referred to :-
Wilhelm v. Norton, 1935, E.D.L., 172. 
Kinemas, Ltd. v. Berman, 1932, A.D., 246. 
Butler v. Mayor and Councillors of Durban, 1936 (1), P.H., 

J.7. 
Matanzima v. Mbobi, 1942, N.A.C. (C. & 0.), 105. 
Pretoria Light Aircraft Co., Ltd. v. Midland Aviation Co. 

(Pty.), Ltd., 1950 (2), S.A. (N) at p. 663. 
Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Tsolo. 
Sleigh (President), delivering the judgment of the Court :­
This is an appeal against a judgment of absolution in an action 

in which appellant sued respondent for the sum of £6 being 
the value of a pig which respondent had unlawfully killed after 
it had trespassed in his land. 
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Respondent admitted that the killing of the pig was unlawful. 
The only question the trial Court had to decide, therefore, was 
the measure of damages to be awarded. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner found that the live value 
of the pig to plaintiff was £6, but he says in his reasons, 
" Having recovered the carcase, there was a duty on plaintiff 
(appellant) to minimise the damages by taking all reasonable 
measures to profitably dispose of it or using portion of it for 
feeding purposes at his own kraal or rendering down of the fat 
for soap making. He states that he did noJ do this as he was 
keeping it as an exhibit for a contemplated case. This explana­
tion was most unreasonable". 

There is undoubtedly a duty upon a plaintiff to take such steps 
as a reasonable or prudent man would take to mitigate the loss. 
This legal principle (which appears to have been taken from the 
English Common Law) applies more particularly Jo damages 
arising from a breach of contract (see IVessels on Contract. pars. 
3325-7). The onus is on the defendant to show that the plamtiff 
failed to adopt a course which would have lessened the damages 
(see Wilhelm v. Norton. 1935, E.D.L. at p. 172; and Kinemas, 
Ltd. v. Berman, 1932, A.D., 246). However, the priciple has also 
been applied in actions based on delicts. McKerron in his Law 
of Delicts (Third Ed. at p. 165) says that the defendant cannot 
be held responsible for the damages which are due to the plain­
tiff's failure to take steps to mitigate his loss. This principle 
was applied in Butler v. Mayor and Councillors of Durban. 1936 
(1), P.H., J.7) and in Matanzima v. Mbobi [1942, N.A.C. (C & 0.), 
105]. 

The evidence in the present case is that appellant took his 
complaint to the headman who instructed respondent to take the 
carcase. To this the latter replied that he was not prepared to 
take is and that appellant could "throw it in the dongas ". 
Appellant then instructed one, Gideon, to take it to his kraal 
where the head was cut off and retained as an exhibit and the 
body was skinned. Appellant states that the body became rotten 
and had to be thown away, but there is evidence that at least 
part of it was consumed at appellant's kraal. 

Respondent's whole case is that since appellant took possession 
of the ca rcase. its value should be deducted from the value of 
the pig before it was killed. In Pretoria Light Aircraft Co., Ltd. 
v. Midland Aviation Co. (Pty.), Ltd. [1950 (2), S.A. (N), at p. 
t63] the plaintiff company sued the defendant company for £700, 
the value of an aircraft which the defendant undertook to 
assemble and which was partly destroyed by fire through the 
negligence of defendant's servants. The defendant claimed that 
pla intiff must submit to a reduction of this sum by the value 
of the parts which remained after the fire. The Court, however, 
held that there was no obligation upon plaintiff to take the parts 
whch remained; that he was entitled to a complete aeroplane. 
and, that defendant could recoup itself by disposing of the parts. 

The position in the present case is very much the same. 
Respondent was offered the carcase which he rejected and clearly 
indicated tha t he did not care what happened to it. It was then 
open to any one to make use of it. If appellant had claimed 
the carcase in the first instance and had denied respondent's 
right to remove it, then the former would have had to reduce 
the damages by the va lue of the ca rcase, but it was offered to 
respondent who was thus in the position to mitigate the loss to 
himself by making use of the carcase. He has not done so. 
Appellant, as the owner. had to dispose of it and if he was able 
to make use of parts of it respondent cannot complain. Appel­
lant is entitled to the full value of the pig. 

The appeal is allowed with cos:s and the jud.cment of the 
Court below is altered to one for plaintiff for £6 and costs. 

For Appellant: Mr. Airey, Umtata. 

For Respondent: Mr. Mbobo, Tsolo. 
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CENTRAL NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 48/51. 

NTLAKO v. DEJASMARCH. 

JoHANNESBURG: 25th February, 1952. Before Marsberg, President; 
Warner and de Beer, Members of the Court. 

LAW OF PROCEDURE. 
Practice and Procedure-Security: Application for condonation 

of late noting of appeal-Native Appeal Court Rules-Security 
riot given in terms of rule 8 (3) Government Notice No. 2254 
of 1928-Application for condonation with supporting affida­
vits not filed with Registrar as required by Rule 19-Subject 
to proviso to section fifteen of Act No. 38 of 1927-court will 
not allow departure from the rules nor any laxity of practice 
where parties were represented in Lower Court-What appli­
cant for condonation must show in addition to his explanation 
of his delay-Aboriginal race or tribe "of Africa "-Meaning 
of section thirty-five of Act No. 38 of 1927. 
Summary: Appellant, also applicant for condonation of late 

noting of appeal, alleged that as a full blooded Abyssinian, 
he is not a "member of an aboriginal race or tribe of 
Africa", alleging that Abyssinians originated from Yemen in 
Asia. 

Held: Abyssinian is member of aboriginal race of Africa­
therefore a Native in terms of definition. 

Cases referred •:o: 
Mncwango v. Mpungose, 1931, N.A.C. (T. & N.), 23. 
Majozi v. Majozi, 1945, N.A.C. (T. & N.), 98. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Johannesburg. 
Marsberg (President), delivering judgment of the Court:­
In the matter between Ras Sultan Dejasmarch, appellant and 

Solomon Ntlako, respondent, an application came before this 
Appeal Court on 11th October, 1951, for condonation of appel­
lant's failure to lodge security with the Clerk of the Court in 
the appeal which he had noted against the judgment of the 
Native Commissioner of Johannesburg. Objection having been 
taken by the respondent that in terms of the rules no valid notice 
of appeal was before the Court, the appeal was struck off the 
rolls. 

We have now before us another application for condonation 
for appellant's failure to lodge security, accompanied by an affi­
davit setting forth his reasons why the security was not duly 
lodged at the time he lodged the appeal. The firm of Max 
Goodman, Attorneys, was acting for him at the time. Before 
the date of judgment Mr. Vranas of that firm withdrew from 
the case and the matter was subsequently taken over by 
Mr. Attorney S. Miller. In the correspondence between the two 
firms there was a failure to lodge security, the matter being com­
plicated by appellant's journeying to other places. The appellant 
alleged a misunderstanding between himself and Mr. Vranas as 
the cause of the failure to lodge the security. An affidavit bY. 
Mr. Vranas, handed in by respondent, however, does not confirm 
appellant's allegation of a misunderstanding. He states specifically 
that he drew up a notice of appeal for appellant and instructed 
him what to do with it. Appellant states that he refused to 
follow this advice but took the papers and instructed Mr. Miller 
to act for him. Mr. Miller failed to lodge or ascertain that the 
security had been lodged. It was paid in about 15th August, 
1951, long after the due date. 
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Now, following the decisions of the Native Appeal Court, 
an applicant for condonation of the late noting of an appeal 
must show, in addition to his explanation of his delay, that he 
has a reasonable prospect of succeeding on the appeal itself. 
Advocate Julian Phillips, who appears for appellant, has put 
three propositions before us:-

(l) That the Native Commissioner erred in placing the onus 
on appellant, defendant in the case in the Court below, 
to prove that he was not a native. 

(2) That appellant, being a full-bloodtJ Abyssinian, is not a 
member of an aboriginal race or tribe of Africa. 

(3) That on the merits of the cla1m and counter-claim appellant 
has a prospe<.:t of success. 

(I) For the purposes of our decision on the application before 
us we will grant that the onus of proving that the parties before 
the Native Commissioner were natives rested on the plaintiff, 
not on applicant who was the defendant in the Court below. In 
a special plea in bar, defendant alleged that he was an Abyssinian 
ano not subject to the junsdicllon of the Court. Normally, on 
such a plea, the onus would rest on the defendant. The Native 
Commissioner so placed the onus, Mr. Vranas accepted the onus 
and called applicant to give evidence. The only part of this 
evidence with which we need concern ourselves is that defendant 
claimed to be a full-blooded Abyssinian and that his race came 
from Yemen in Arabia. All that plaintiff was required to prove 
was that defendant was an Abyssinian. Defendant alleged that 
fact in his plea and no further proof was needed. To that extent 
the onus on plaintiff was discharged. 

(2) We can, therefore, proceed to l\f r. Phillips's next proposi­
tion, that an Abyssinian is not a member of an aboriginal tribe 
or race of Africa . This proposition comprised the greater part 
of his argument before us. His submission as to the meaning of 
"abongmal" has been somewhat startling. We understood him 
to suggest that in order to prove that a person from a part 
of Africa, not being South Africa, was a native within the defini­
tion of the Native Administration Act, No. 38 of 1927, a 
plaintiff must adduce evidence of the ultimate origin of his race 
or tribe and prove that that race or tribe had its origin in Africa. 
He suggested that it would be necessary to invoke the aid of 
anthropologists to establish these facts. In particular he claimed 
that as the Abyssinians held that they origmally came from the 
Yemen, a part of Asia, they could not be held to be race of 
Africa. In the elaboration of his argument it was quite clear that 
Mr. Phillips had given much thought to this proposition. Carried 
to its logical conclusion we could imagine the proceedings of 
the Courts of Native Commissioner being enlivened now and then 
by some fascinating speculations as to the origin of various 
peoples. In endeavouring to pierce the mists of antiquity would 
we know where to cry halt? Should we recall Charles Darwin 
with his " Descent of Man "? Or perhaps Dr. Broome with his 
amazing discoveries at Sterkfontein? 

Surely Parliament when passing the Native Administration Act 
could never have had in contemplation that Native Commis­
sioners' Courts would be required to inquire into problems of 
this nature. Mr. Phillips has suggested that the purpose of the 
Act was to establish Courts for South African Natives where 
their problems would be dealt with according to their customs 
and that they were not intended to administer law to peoples of 
higher development from other parts of Africa. We think he 
has misconceived the purpose of the Act, as a wider experience 
of the business of the Courts of Native Commissioners would 
have indicated and as the judgment in the Appellate Division 
in the case of Yako v. Beyi would show. The Act clearly 
established a forum where people, as defined, would in the 
Union of South Africa, be amenable to and subject to the laws 
of this country. Included in the definition are persons who are 
members of any aboriginal race or tribe of Africa. Applicant 
is a full-blooded Abyssinian. The only question to be answered 
is: Is he a member of an aboriginal race or tribe of Africa? 
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For ourselves we do not intend to speculate on the origin of 
the Abyssinians. They may have come from the _Yemen, as 
claimed. We do not know. We are content to abide by the 
meaning of "aboriginal" as currently used and as, we are sure, 
intended by Parliament. The Concise Oxford Dictionary has this 
definition:-

"Aboriginal, a & n. Indigenous, existing in a land at the 
dawn of history. or be/ore arrival of colonists (of races and 
natural objects)." 

Every school boy knows that in historical times the Abyssinians 
have been in Africa. They were certainly there when white men 
began to take an interest in the Dark Continent. These facts are 
so notorious that, in our opinions, they are not arguable. 

(3) We have perused the record of the trial before the Native 
Commissioner in the light of submissions made to us on the 
facts of the case but there too we can see no prospect of appli· 
cant succeeding on the appeal. 

\Ve can see no good purpose therefor~ in granting indulgence 
to applicant and the application for condonation of the late 
noting of the appeal in due form is therefore refused with costs. 

For Appellant: Adv. Phillips, instructed by S. Miller, Standard 
Bank Chambers, corner of West and Commissioner Streets, Johan­
nesburg. 

For Respondent: Mr. B. A. S. Smits, A.H.T. Building, 67 
Commissioner Street, Johannesburg. 

NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 134/51. 

l\IOSEHLA v. MOSEHLA. 

PRETORIA: 17th March, 1952. Before Steenkamp, President; 
O'Connell and Bosman, Members of the Court. 

COMMON LAW. 
Native Estate-marriage by Christian rites--community of 

property excluded by section twenty-two (6) of Act 38 of 
1927-estate devolves according to Native Custom. 

Custody of children-claim to be determined according to Com­
mon law where marriage was by Christian rites. 
Practice and Procedure: Claim in summons for specific articles 

followed by words "and etc."-Court will not recognise 
words "and etc." as being a description to be supplemented 
by evidence. 

Summary: Plaintiff, who had been married to her late husband 
by Christian rites, sued her father-in-law for the custody 
of the two minor children born of her marriage, and for 
delivery of certain household articles. 

Held: That as the marriage was by Christian rites with com­
munity of property excluded in terms of section twenty-two 
(6) of Act No. 38 of 1927, the estate devolves according to 
Native law and custom in terms of paragraph 2 (c) of 
Government Notice No. 1664 of 1929, as amended. 

Held further: That as the union between the deceased and 
plaintiff was a marriage and not a Native customary union, 
the claim for custody of the minor children falls to be 
de:ermined according to Common law. 

Held further: That as no Court will recognise the words "and 
etc." as being a description to be supplemented by evidence, 
only the articles mentioned in the summons could be adjudi· 
cated on. 
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CaseJ re/erred to: 
Sikenkelana v. Ngcukane, 1947, N.A.C. (C & 0) 9. 
Danana v. Satatsha. 1947, N.A.C. (C & 0) 48. 
Butelezi v. Tango, 1947, N.A.C. (T & N) 98. 
Ex parte Minister of Native Affairs in re Molefe v. Molefe, 

1946, A.D. 315. 
Sondhlo v. Sondhlo, 1937 (2) P.H.-B. 54. 

Cases distinguished: 
Lehasa v. Cewane, 1947, N.A.C. (T & N) 132. 
Ndhlovu v. Ndhlovu, 1946, N.A.C. (T & N) 13. 

Statutes referred to: 
Section eleven of Act No. 46 of 1887 (Natal). 
Section twenty-two (6) of Act No. 38 of 1927. 
Paragraph 2 (e) of Government No:ice No. 1664 of 1929. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Hammans­
kraal. 

Steenkamp (President), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
Plaintiff (now respondent) sued the defendant (now appellant), 

her father-in-law, for custody of two minor children and delivery 
of her household effects consisting of-

.. I sideboard, kitchen dresser, two boxes, I table, I bed 
two chairs, and etc." 

In this action she was assisted by one Johannes Kgomo, 
described as her natural guardian, but this was unnecessary as 
Common law applies to her claims as will be apparent from 
what follows. 

In her summons plaintiff avers that she was married to the 
defendant's son, Silas Mosehla. who died on the 5th January, 
1948, and that she resided with her late husband at the defen­
dant's kraal. This is admitted by the defendant in his plea. 
She also avers that she now desires to establish her own kraal 
with her parents and defendant refuses and neglects to give her 
the two minor children of the marriage with defendant's late son, 
and also the household effects already described. 

The rest of the defendant's plea reads as follows:-
" I do not want plaintiff to leave me. I am not chasing 

her away. If she wants to get married again I will not 
stop her. I will help her to get married to her second 
huc;band. The household effects and the two children are 
in my kraal. I am not chasing her. I want her to come 
back." 

In her evidence plaintiff states that she was married to the late 
Silas by Chmt1an marriage. A copy of the marriage certifi­
cate was handed in and from this it appears that community 
of property was excluded by virtue of section twenty-two (6) 
of the Native Administration Act, 1927. This exclusion of 
community of property is very important for the purposes of this 
case, as it results in the property in the late Sila's estate falling 
within the purview of the provisions of paragraph 2 (e) of 
Government Notice No. 1664 of 1929, as amended by Govern­
ment Notice No. 939 of 1947, and therefore in its distribution 
according to Native law and cus:om. This question was dealt 
with in the case of Sikenkelana v. Ngcukane, 1947, N.A.C. (C.O.) 
9, the decision in which was to the effect that where parties are 
married by civil rites and community of property is excluded 
by operation of law, as in the present case, then on the death 
of one of the spouses, the property shall devolve according to 
Native law and custom. I agree that that is the correct position. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner in his reasons for judgment, 
came to the conclusion that as the marriage was celebrated 
according to Christian rites the plaintiff, by virtue of such 
marriage, was the legal guardian of the children and the heir 
to the assets in the deceased estate. He has overlooked the law 
as set out in Sikenkelana's case that a distinction must be drawn 
for the purposes of succession between marriages in community of 
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property and under antenuptial contract on the one hand, and 
marriages in which community was excluded by operation of 
law on the other. In the last-mentioned, the Native law of 
succession is applicable whereas in the two former ones, our 
Common law of succession is to be applied. 

It was not elicited in the Court below whether the two children 
are males or females. Native law being applicable, it follows 
that the deceased's heir is his eldest son, if he had one, or failing 
male issue, then his father or his eldest brother, on the death of 
the father, becomes heir. 

In any case the widow may, in no circumstances, become 
heir in a case of the nature in question and she is only entitled 
to her own property as laid down by the Appellate Division in 
the case of ex parte Minister of Native Affairs in re Molefe v. 
Molefe, 1946, A.D. 315. 

The Sister Court also dealt with this matter in Danana v. 
Satatsha, 1947. N.A.C. (C.O.) 48. It is apparent that the Assistant 
Native Commissioner overlooked all these cases, otherwise he 
would have approached the matter from the correct angle. 

It is observed that the Assistant Native Commissioner gave 
judgment in favour of plaintiff for certain property not included 
in the summons, viz., 4 head of cattle and 7 sheep. This is 
definitely against all principles of procedure and law. In any 
case the plaintiff is not entitled thereto as, in her evidence, she 
admits that her late husband bought the cattle and sheep. In 
the summons, after describing some of her household property, 
the words "and etc." are inserted. No Court will recognise the 
words "and etc." as being a description to be supplemented by 
evidence. If plaintiff was not able to mention in detail the 
property she claimed, an amendment of the claim could have 
been applied for during the course of the trial. This was not 
done and therefore only the articles actually mentioned in the 
summons could be adjudicated on. The plaintiff is therefore only 
entitled to the following articles claimed in the summons, which, 
according to her uncontroverted evidence, she purchased:-

Sideboard. 
1 Kitchen dresser. 
1 Table. 
2 Chairs. 
1 Three-quarter bed. 
2 Boxes. 

am not concerned with any property not mentioned in the 
summons. 

It was suggested during argument that where the plaintiff states 
in evidence that she bought certain articles of furniture, it does 
not follow that she used her own money, and her late husband 
might have provided ~he means therefor. This Court is not 
prepared to return the record for further evidence to have this 
elicited, as defendant could have led evidence or cross­
examined plaintiff as to whether or not her late husband provided 
the funds for the purchase of furniture. 

Council for appellant has argued that the custody of the two 
children falls to be determined under Native law and custom 
and he has quoted the following cases:-

(l) Lehasa v. Cewane, 1947, N.A.C. (T & N) 132. 
(2) Ndhlovu v. Ndhlovu, 1946, N.A.C. (T & N) 13. 

In the first case the custody of an illegitimate child was sought. 
The claimant who sued through her guardian, alleged that the 
child in question was illegitimate, being the offspring of the 
claimant's daughter. Although the claimant, i.e. the grandmother 
had been married by civil rites, it does not follow that Common 
law was applicable when the custody of the grandchild was in 
dispute. 
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The second case was heard on appeal in Natal where special 
statutory provisions existed by virtue of section eleven of Act 
No. 46 of 1887. This section reads as follows:-

" No marriage between Natives solemnized under this 
Law shall, when the male Native is subject to the Native 
Law in force in this Colony, in anywise, except as in this 
Law provided, remove either of the parties to such marriage 
from the operation of such Native Law, either in their 
person or in their property." 

Subsequent to the decision of Ndhlovu's case, this Court held 
that section eln•nJ of Act No. 46 of 1887 had been tacitly 
repealed by Act No. 38 of 1927. 

It will therefore be observed that the decision in Ndhlovu's 
case, even if correctly decided, has no application in the Trans­
vaal. 

Counsel for appellant has also quoted the case of Butelezi v. 
Tango, 1947, N.A.C. (T & N) 98, but in that case the question 
of the custody of children was not involved and a distinction 
must be drawn between a claim for property and a claim for 
custody of children. 

The claim for the custody of the two minor children concerned 
falls to be determined according to Common law as the union 
between the plaintiff and her late husband was a marriage and 
not a customary union. This is borne out in the case of 
Sondhlo v. Sondhlo, heard in the Supreme Court, Transvaal 
Provincial Division, reported in Prentice Hall, 1937 (2) B. 54, 
in which it was held that even if there were considerations of 
Native custom, they could not prevail against the ordinary rules 
obtaining in our Courts regarding the custody of children of 
European parents. It follows that the plaintiff, on her late hus­
band's death, became the guardian u11cler Commo11 law of their 
minor children and she is therefore entitled to their custody. 
But this finding must not be construed to mean that the plaintiff 
is thereby also awarded the property rights in the children con­
cerned, e.g. any lobola paid for them at a later date, if either 
or both are females, as that aspect is not in issue in the present 
action and in any event lobola transactions being unknown to 
Common law. fall to be determined according to the law in 
which they have their origin, viz .• Native law. 

In my view the appeal should be allowed in part with costs, 
and the Assistant Native Commissioner's judgment altered to 
read:-

.. For plaintiff for I sideboard, I kitchen dresser, I table, 
2 chairs, I three-quarter bed and 2 boxes. Custody of the 
two minor children is awarded to the plaintiff." 

O'Connell (~!ember): I concur. 
Bosman (Member): I concur. 
Pretoria, 19th ~larch, 1952. 
For Appellant: Adv. Van Recnen, instructed by Messrs. 

Mathews & Lanser, Warm Baths. 
For Respondent: Mr. A. P. Nel of Messrs. Ncl & Nel, 

Pretoria. 

NOR1H EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 131/51. 

:'\GWENYA V. l\IANZINI. 

PRETORIA: 17th March, 1952. Before Steenkamp, President; 
O'Connell and Bosman, ~!embers of the Court. 

COMMON LA \V. 
Practice and Prc.ccdure-Appeal-No security gil·en for respoll­

dent's costs on appeal. 
Summary: An appeal was noted by the appellant, but he gave 

no security for respondent's costs on appeal. 
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Held: That as the noting of the appeal is not complete until 
both events have happened, viz., delivery of a notice of appeal 
and the giving of security, the appeal be struck off the roll 
with costs. 

Cases referred to: 
Campbell v. Mcdonald, 1920, O.P.D., 255. 
Mance and Another v. Blaetye, 1936, N.A.C. (C.O.), 111. 

Statutes, etc. referred to: 
Rule 8 (3) of Government Notice No. 2254 of 1928. 
Rule 5 (3) of Government Notice No. 2887 of 1951. 

Rule 47 (4) of Magistrates' Courts Rules. 
Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Stander­

ton. 
Steenkamp (P), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
Judgment was delivered on the 18th September, 1951. The 

attorney for appellant (plaintiff in the Court below) filed a notice 
of appeal which is dated the 8th October, 1951, but this notice of 
appeal was only received by the Clerk of the Court on the 29th 
October, 1951. No security in terms of the old rules [Government 
Notice No. 2254 of 1928-Rule 8 (3)], was given. This rule 
reads as follows:-

"The party noting an appeal or cross-appeal shall give 
security to the satisfaction of the Clerk of the Court in the 
sum of £5 for the payment of costs of the other party." 

The Magistrates' Courts Rules published under Act No. 32 of 
1944, make the following provision under Rule 47 (4) :-

" An appeal shall be noted by the delivery of notice, and, 
unless the Court of Appeal shall otherwise direct, by giving 
security for the respondent's costs of appeal to the amount 
of £20." 

In the case of Campbell v. Mcdonald, 1920, O.P.D., 255, it 
was held that that security need not be given simul ac semel with 
delivery of notice, but the noting of appeal is not complete until 
both events have happened. 

The Native Appeal Court, Cape, in the case of Mance and 
Another v. Blaetye, 1936, N.A.C. (C.O.), 111, struck the appeal 
off the roll with costs because, when the appeal was noted, the 
security bond was rejected by the Clerk of the Court, and the 
appellant's attorney duly notified-the Court holding that the 
appeal had not been duly noted. 

The present case was placed on the roll by the Registrar of 
this Court, after having been notified by the Clerk of the Court 
that an appeal had been noted. The Registrar must assume that 
the notice of appeal is in order and he has no other alternative but 
to comply with the other directions contained in the rules, but 
this Court is entitled to hold and to order that when the record 
is considered by the Appeal Court and it is found that the notice 
of the appeal is defective, the case be removed from the roll as 
provisionally prepared by the Registrar. 

The new rules, published under Government Notice No. 2887 
of 1951 (Native Appeal Court Rules) are even more explicit, and 
under Rule 5 (3) it is laid down as follows:-

"The party noting an appeal or cross-appeal shall, when 
delivering the notice of appeal, give security to the satisfac­
tion of the Clerk of the Native Commissioner's Court in the 
sum of £7. 10s. for the payment of the costs of the other 
party." 

As there is no proper notice of appeal before this Court it is 
ordered that the appeal be struck off the roll with costs. This 
does not prevent appellant from noting a fresh appeal and apply­
ing for condonation of the late noting. 

O'Connell (Member): I concur. 
Bosman (Member): I concur. 
For appellant: Adv. I. E. Lubinsky, i/b H. W. Chaim, Esq .• 

Johannesburg. 
For respondent: Adv. G. P. C . Kotze, i/b Messrs. Battt:son, 

Curlewis & Els, Devon. 
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NORTH EASTERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 141/51. 

NKOSI v. ZWA~E. 

PRETORIA: 18th March, 1952. Before Steenkamp, President; 
O'Connell and Bosman, Members of the Court. 

COl\1MON LA \V. 
Practice and Procedure: Chief's Court-No jurisdiction conferred 

on Chief-Judgment cmd everything flowing therefrom void 
aborigine. 

Summary: Six head of cattle were attached by the Messengers 
of a Chief, who has no civil jurisdiction, in pursuance of a 
judgment of such Chief. Plaintiff (now respondent) sued 
defendant (now appellant) for the return of the cattle or 
their value £40. 

Held: That as the judgment of the Chief was void ab origine, 
everything that flows thercfrom must also be of no legal force. 

Statutes referred to: 
Section 12 of Act No. 38 of 1927. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Piet Retief. 

Bosman (Member), delivering the judgment of the Court:-
In the Native Commissioner's Court a t Piet Retief, Ntlanezwe 

Zwane (plaintiff) sued Bonaparte Nkosi (defendant) for the return 
of six head of cattle which, according to the summons, defendant 
wrongfully and unlawfully removed from the possession of plain­
tiff on the 3rd !\larch, 1949, plus three increase, or their value, 
£70. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner gave judgment for the 
return of six head of cattle or their value £40. 

The defendant now appeals against this judgment on the follow­
ing grounds:-

(1) That the judgment is against the evidence and the weight of 
evidence. 

(2) That the judgment is bad in law in that the Court erred 
in holding that because the defendant admitted that he had 
possession of the six head of cattle, he was bound to return 
them and further that this was a case of spoliation and 
1\lhlaba Dlamini who sent his Police boys to take the 
cattle should have been sued for the return of the cattle. 

According to the evidence in the Court below the appellant 
avers that he obtained a judgment from Chief Mahlaba against 
respondent for six head of cattle and to enforce that judgment 
the cattle of respondent were attached by a Police boy of Chief 
Mahlaba. Appellant also admits that he took possession of the 
cattle of which he had already sold five. 

According to the evidence, no jurisdiction in terms of Section 
12 of the Native Administration Act, 1927, as amended, was at 
any time conferred upon Chief Mahlaba. This Chief has, there­
fore no jurisdiction to hear and determine claims by Natives 
against Natives and any judgment which he, in these circumstances, 
delivers, cannot be legally enforced. 

It is also clear from the evidence that the Police boy referred to 
actually took the cattle from the possession of respondent, merely 
to assist appellant in enforcing the judgment of Chief Mahlaba. 

As this judgment is void ab origine, everything that flows there 
from must also be of no legal force. 
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Counsel has advanced the argument that plaintiff should have 
vindicated his property from the person in possession thereof­
there being evidence that defendant had disposed of the cattle 
to a third person. This contention cannot be upheld, because at 
the time appellant disposed of the cattle, he was aware of the 
respondent's claim to them. He was also fully acquainted at that 
time with the fact that the Chief in question had no jurisdiction 
to adjudicate on the matter. 

The appeal is dismissed with costs. 
Steenkam p (P): I concur. 
O'Connell (Member): I concur. 
For appellant: E. Phillips, Esq., i/b Messrs. Olmesdahl & 

Olmesdahl, Piet Re~ief. 
For respondent: A. W. Jones, Esq., i/b Messrs. Bennett & 

Myburgh, Vryheid. 

NORTH EASTERN NATNE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 11/52. 

LEBOGO v. MALAPO AND ANOTHER. 

PRETORIA: 19th March, 1952. Before Steenkamp, President; 
O'Connell and Bosman, Members of the Court. 

COMMON LAW. 
Practice and Procedure: Application to rescind judgment obtained 

by fraud-Affidavits by parties contradictory-Allegations to be 
investigated in the form of viva voce evidence. 
Summary: Judgment was entered for plaintiffs. Application 

made by defendant for rescission of that judgment, which he 
alleges was obtained by fraud, supported by affidavits. 
Counter-affidavits were filed by plaintiffs. These two sets of 
affidavits were contradictory. 

The Native Commissioner, without hearing viva voce evi­
dence on the questions raised, dismissed the application. An 
appeal was brought against this dismissal of the application. 

Held: That as the affidavits lodged by the two parties were 
contradictory, the record should be returned to the Native 
Commissioner for the purpose of converting the application 
into a trial action, and afte.r viva voce evidence has been 
heard, a fresh judgment to be given. 

Cases referred to: 
Colonial Government v. Mowbray Municipality, 11 C.T.R., 

605. 
Jamalodien v. Ajimudien, 1917, C.P.D. 293. 
De Marillac v. Bruyns, 14, S.C., 317. 

Statutes, etc., referred to: 
Rule 30 (2) of Government Notice No. 2253 of 1928. 
Section 10 (3) of Act No. 38 of 1927. 
Section 15 of Act No. 38 of 1927. 

Appeal from the Court of the Native Commissioner, Pretoria. 
Steenkamp (P), delivering the judgment of the Court:-
On the 25th October, 1951, the Additional Native Commissioner 

of Pretoria entered judgment in favour of plaintiffs (now respon­
dents) for the immediate restoration of possession and occupancy 
of the dairy premises at 1170 La Fleur Street, Lady Selborne, 
District Pretoria, and £103. 12s. damages with costs. The defen­
dant did not note an appeal but on the 12th December, 1951, 
the Native Commissioner heard an application by the defendant 
(now appellant) for the rescission of the judgment which had 
been given against him. In his application he avers that that 
judgment was obtained by means of fraud. 
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The applicant filed several affidavits in support of his applica­
tion. The respondents, who were the judgment creditors in the 
trial case, filed counter-affidavits. After perusing these affidavits 
the Native Commissioner dismissed, with costs, the application for 
a rescission of the judgment. 

An appeal has now been noted to this Court against the dis­
missal of the application. The grounds of appeal are as fol­
lows:-

" 1. The Additional Native Commissioner should have allowed 
the application and found that the original judgment 
delivered on the 25th October, 1951, was obtained by the 
plaintiffs, now the respondents, on false evidence. 

2. Alternatively if it was found that there was a dispute on 
facts and that the Court could not decide the matter on 
Affidavit, the matter should have been referred for viva 
voce evidence to be adduced in order that the applicant, 
now the appellant, could have subpoenaed the Manager of 
Yskou Dairy to produce his books in order to show the 
amount of milk deliveries made to the plaintiffs, now the 
respondents." 

There can be no doubt that the affidavits furnished by the 
applicant and the respondents are contradictory and it would 
therefore have been most difficult to decide the application unless 
viva voc£' evidence was adduced and for the respective parties to 
cross-examine the witnesses on the other side. 

According to Rule 30 (2) of the Native Commissioner's Courts, 
published under Government Notice No. 2253 of 1928, and which 
were in force at the time the application was heard, it is provided 
that the Court may rescind or vary any judgment granted by it 
which was void ab origine or was obtained by fraud or by mis­
take common to the parties. There is no provision in the old 
Native Commissioners' Courts Rules as to how applications should 
be brought and one will have to resort to the Common law to 
find out what the procedure is. 

Counsel for respondents has strongly argued that Native Com­
missioners' Courts arc creatures of statute and do not possess 
jurisdiction beyond that given by the statute and regulations 
empowered to be published under the statute, and seeing that the 
regulations, i.e. Rules of Court make no provision for the con­
version of an application into a trial, it was not competent to 
resort to the Common law which might have existed prior to 
specific rules having been promulgated for the Supreme or 
Magistrate's Court. 

In my opinion such an argument cannot be entertained as, 
according to Section 10 (2) of the Native Administration Act, No. 
38 of 1927, as amended by Section 3 of Act No. 21 of 1943, 
every Native Commissioner's Court shall be a Court of law. 
This I understand to mean that such a Court must administer 
the law of the land and unless the Common law of this country 
has been specifically excluded by a statutory provision. then that 
Common law, including procedure and practice, with all its 
complications and antiquity, must be followed irrespective of any 
complicacy or difficulties encountered in the absence of codifica­
tion. 

Nathan, in his "Common Law of South Africa", Volume IV. 
pages 2323 to 2326, deals with motions and applications to 
Court. After describing how applications should be made, the 
author states:-

"Where the affidavits of parties on an opposed appliction 
are contradictory so that the Court cannot decide the issue 
from such affidavits, the Court will not decide the matter on 
motion but will order an action to be brought; and the 
Court may allow the notice of motion to stand for the 
summons in the action (Colonial Governmeill v. Mow­
bray Municipality, 11, C.T.R., 605)." 
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I have no reason to doubt, nor has any been advanced, that 
this was the Common law procedure and practice followed by 
our Courts before specific rules were promulgated. 

Briefly the facts are that the plaintiffs in their original action 
averred that the Yskou Dairies delivered to them 80 gallons of 
fresh milk and 30 gallons of sour milk per day at their premises 
where they carried on the business of a dairy, and which premises 
they had leased from the defendant. Because the defendant had 
forcibly ejected them from the premises and they were unable to 
carry on with the business for a period of 24 days, the loss they 
sustained amounted to £103. 12s. as assessed by the Court in the 
original trial. 

It is observed that one of their main witnesses in the original 
trial case was a Mr. Schalk Willem van Heerden, who testified 
in his evidence that he used to deliver daily 80 gallons of fresh 
milk and 30 gallons of sour milk at the premises where the plain· 
tiffs carried on their business. Mr. van Heerden was the driver 
of the delivery lorry used by the Yskou Dairies. Mr. van Heer· 
den, in a subsequent affidavit, when the application was made for 
a rescission of the judgment, declared on oath that he had made 
a mistake. There are also filed, on behalf of the applicant, an 
affidavit by Mr. Quintus Pienaar, who is the Assistant Manager 
of Yskou Dairy, in which he states that during the period in 
question, the respondents in the present application were supplied 
with an average of 20 to 30 gallons of fresh and sour milk daily, 
with a maximum of 50 gallons during the week and 60 gallons 
per day on Sundays; and an affidavit by Mr. Pieter P. du Plessis 
which is to the effect that on the 14th October, 1951, i.e. before 
the original trial case was heard, one of the plaintiffs per telephone 
requested him to give evidence to the effect that they used to 
purchase 80 gallons of milk a day. He refused to give evidence 
to that effect as it was not the truth. It is noted from the record 
that neither Mr. du Plessis nor Mr. Pienaar were called as wit· 
nesses. 

If the affidavits of these two gentlemen are to be believed, then 
it is manifest that the plaintiffs obtained damages far in excess of 
what they could have suffered, and the credibility of their evidence 
in connection with their ejectment from the premises might thereby 
be affected. There must have been a doubt in the mind of the 
Additional Native Commissioner as to where the truth lay when 
he heard the application and he should have ordered that the 
matter go for trial to enable him to determine whether the judg· 
ment obtained by the plaintiffs in the first instance was the correct 
one, and whether or not fraud had been committed. 

It is true, as pointed out by the Additional Native Commis· 
sioner, that the Courts are slow to set aside judgments on the 
ground of pe1;jury unless proved in the clearest possible manner, 
and that the best proof is a criminal conviction, but the decisions 
given by the Supreme Court in the case of Jamalodien v. Ajimu­
dien, 1917, C.P.D., 293, and De Marillac v. Bruyns, 14, S.C. 317, 
are not so peremptory that before a Court may consider an appli­
cation for rescission on the ground of fraud, it must have in its 
possession a conviction for perjury. There are other factors, as is 
shown in the present application, where one of the main wit· 
nesses has admitted that he had mistakenly given false evidence 
on oath. 

Both Counsel have quoted various cases in connection with 
applications for rescission of judgments obtained by fraud, but 
it is not necessary to analyse those cases, as I prefer to deal with 
the present application in terms of the wide powers given to this 
Court by Section 15 of the Native Administration Act, No. 38 of 
1927. We have the power to direct that a case from a Native 
Commissioner's Court be retried or reheard or to make any such 
order upon the case as tlze interests of justice may require. 

There is sufficient information in the form of the affidavits 
filed before the Native Commissioner for this Court to direct that 
the allegations contained therein be more fully investiga ted in the 
form of viva voce evidence. 
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In my opmwn the appeal should be allowed with costs and 
the Additional Native Commissioner's decision set aside, and the 
record returned for the purpose of converting the application 
into a trial action, and after viva voce evidence has been heard, 
a fresh judgment to be given. 

It is realised that the Presiding Additional Native Commissioner 
might find himself in somewhat a predicament in hearing the case 
as now directed, after having dismissed the application, and this 
Court does not wish to lay it down that he must personally try 
the case. It might therefore be advisable for some other judical 
officer to undertake this duty. 

O'Connell (Member): I concur. 

Bosman (Member): I concur. 
For appellant: Adv. J. P. 0. de Villiers, i/b Messrs. De Beer 

& Co., Pretoria. 
For Respondent: Adv. W. J. Human, i/b Messrs. Edelstein & 

Veale, Pretoria. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 16/52. 

SJSHUBA v. SISHUUA. 

KING WtLLIAM's TowN: 25th March, 1952. Before Sleigh, Presi­
Pike and Davis, Members of the Court. 

CO~ION LA \V. 
Nati~·e Appeal Case- Estate- Marriage in comwtity of property­

De~·oll·e according to Roma11·Dutclt Law. 
Sttmmary: D. who was the registered owner of one garden lot 

and one building lot, was married to his two wives according 
to Native Custom and died in 1905. In 1933 the family of D 
agreed that the two lots should go to his four sons, namely 
L, K, N and J. L and K were then already dead, but it 
was agreed that their estates should figure as shareholders. 
It is clear that the lots were not surveyed into four portions. 
In 1935 L's estate and J's were each paid £100 for their 
shares, in 1937 N bought K's share for £100, the money being 
paid to appellant as eldest son of K. The latter was married 
according to Christian rites and left nine children including 
respondent. In this action respondent sued appellant for one 
ninth share of £100 and obtained judgment. Appellant 
appeals. 

Held: That since Kapase was married in community of property 
his estate must devolve in the manner prescribed by Section 
2 (c) of G.N. 1664 of 1929, as amended, i.e. according to 
Roman-Dutch Law. 

Cases re/erred to: 
Njobe v. Njobe and Dube, N.O. 1950 (4), S.A. (C), 545. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Whittlesea. 

Sleigh (President) delivering the judgment of the Court:-
It appears from the evidence that the late Dulini Sishuba was the 

registered owner of Garden Lot No. 236 and Building Lot No. 79. 
in Hukuwa Location, Queenstown District. Dulini, who was 
married to his two wives by native custom, died in 1905. Nothing 
was done to transfer the lots which were still registered in his 
name in 1933. Apparently, about this time, the lots were the 
subject of an investigation by a Commissioner appointed in terms 
of Section 8 (l) of Act No. 38 of 1927. The Commissioner's 
finding was apparently taken on appeal to the Land Appeal Board. 
It is not disclosed what the decision of the Board was, but we 
have it on record that in 1933 the family of Dulini agreed that 
the two lots should go to four of his sons, namely, Lufele, Kapase, 
Nzeli and James. Lufele and Kapase were then already dead, 
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but it was agreed that their estates should figure as share-holders. 
It is not stated how the land was occupied, but it is clear that 
the lots were not surveyed into four portions. In 1935 Lufele's 
estate and James were each paid £100 for their shares, and in 
1937 Nzeli bought Kapase's share for £100, the money being paid 
to appellant who is the eldest son of Kapase. The latter was 
married twice according to Christian rites and left nine children 
including respondent. 

In this action respondent sued appellant for one-ninth share of 
the £100 and obtained judgment. From this judgment appellant 
has appealed on the following grounds:-

1. That defendant acquired a vested right to certain share of 
Garden Lot No. 235 and Building Lot No. 79, in Hukuwa 
Location, District Queenstown, such vested right having 
been transmitted to defendant as the heir of the late Kapase 
according to native custom. 

2. That after defendant had obtained the vested right afore­
mentioned he disposed of his share in the land for the sum 
of £100, which sum he was entitled to keep in full as the 
heir of the late Kapase according to Native Custom. 

3. That the Native Commissioner erred in holding that Euro­
pean Law applied to the disposal of the said garden Lot 
No. 235 and Building Lot No. 79, or the shares therein or 
the money received from the sale thereof. 

4. That in any event the plaintiff is barred from recovering the 
amount claimed as the evidence establishes that his right 
to do so is prescribed according to law. 

At the hearing of the appeal the fourth ground was abandoned 
and it is in any case untenable as prescription was not pleaded or 
canvassed in the Court below, and appellant cannot now rely on 
this defence. 

In regard to the other grounds of appeal it is clear that appel­
lant relies on Native law as the basis of his claim to retain the 
full amount, for he says in his evidence, "I received the share of 
Kapase because he was dead and I am his eldest son". And in 
his grounds of appeal he says in effect that Kapase's estate 
acquired a vested right to a quarter share in the two lots and such 
right was transmitted to him as heir of Kapase according to 
Native Custom. 

According to the evidence, which is not disputed, Kapase was 
a registered parliamentary voter and died in 1927. That is before 
Chapter V of Act No. 38 of 1927 came into operation. It seems 
to be common cause that he died intestate, that his estate was 
never reported to the Master and that he was domiciled in Queens­
town District when he married his wives according to Christian 
rites. When these marriages were contracted the only form of 
marriage in the Cape Province, excluding the Transkeian Terri­
tories, was either in communi~y of property or by antenuptial 
contract. The latter form of marriage is so rare among natives 
that it is most improbable that they entered into this form of 
marriage. We are therefore entitled to assume that Kapase was 
married to his wives in community of property. 

There can be no dispute that in terms of the family agreement 
Kapase's estate acquired a right to a quarter share in the lots and 
since the estate was not reported to the Master it must, in view 
of the provisions of Section 23 (11) of Act No. 38 of 1927, devolve 
as is provided in this Act. 

Now it is contended that what the estate acquired was a vested 
right in quitrent land in a native location, that that right was 
transmitted to appellant in terms of Section 23 (2) of the Act and 
that he is therefore entitled to the £100. Assuming for the 
moment that the right which was an asset in Kapase's estate was 
governed by Section 23 (2), the fallacy in the contention lies in 
the fact that the right was transmitted not to appellant alone but 
to all Kapase's children since their right of inheritance is protected 
by Section 22 (8) of the Act. [See Njobe v. Njobe and Dube, N.O. 
1950 (4) S.A. (C) 545.] The fact that at one time appellant was 
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the sole registered owner of both lots does not alter the pos1t10n. 
The other children were entitled to their share of their father's 
estate even when appellant was the registered owner, and could 
have pressed their claims against him then for the value of their 
inheritance even though they could not impeach his t:tle. 

The position is that although Kapase's estate had a right to a 
quarter share in the two lots, that right was never perfected into 
ownership in the lots because the estate never obtained transfer 
of its share in the Deeds Office so as to bring the matter within the 
ambit of Section 23 (2) of Act No. 38 of 1927. The right was an 
asset in the estate and this asset was by agreement between the 
four brothers valued at £100, and since Kapase contracted a 
marriage in community of property the amount must devolve in 
the manner prescribed by section 2 (c) of Government Notice No. 
1664 of 1929 as amended, i.e. according to Roman-Dutch Law. 

If I am wrong in assuming that the estate was never reported 
then it will still devolve as if Kapase was a European since the 
provisions of Act No. 39 of 1887 (Cape) would apply. The con­
tention that the assets in the estate devolve according to native 
law consequently fails. 

The appeal is dismissed with costs. 
For appellant: Mr. Stanford, King William's Town. 
For respondent: l\tr. Kidson, Queenstown. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 17 / 52. 

KOLOTI '' · SO:'\IYO. 

KlNGWilllA~ISTOWN: 26th ~larch, 1952. Before Sleigh, President, 
Pike and Davis. ~!embers of the Court. 

LA \V OF PROCEDURE. 
Nati\•e Appeal Case- Estate-Practice and Procedure- Nati\•e 

Commissioner has 110 jurisdiction to hold inquiry in terms of 
Sectio11 3 (3) if in respect of atl estate devolvi11g accordi11g to 
Roma11-Dutch Law- Devolution is govemed by Section 2 of 
G.N. 1664 of 1929- Prescriptioll does 110t operate if estate 
devoh·e 1· according to Nati\'e custom. 
Summary: This is an appeal against the finding of the Assistant 

Native Commissioner in regard to an inquiry held in term<> of 
Section 3 (3) of G.N. No. 1664 of 1929. The case concerns 
two perpetual quitrent garden lots, situate in Ntselemanzi 
Na tive Village (Lovedale) within the municipal area of Alice, 
and registered in the names of Nomenene and Seti Qololo 
respectively. 

Held (I): Tha t as the estates were not reported to the ~faster 
the devolution of the estates is governed by Section 2 of 
G.N. No. 1664 of 1929. 

llelcl (2) : Tha t as Nomenen'<! was married according to Native 
custom her estate would devolve on her eldest son Seti and 
it follows that Seti's heir or heirs are entitled to both lots. 

llehl (3): That in order to determine the per~on or persons 
·entitled to succeed to Seti's estate. it is essential to know 
whether he was married to his wife according to Christian 
rites or according to Native custom, and there is no satisfac­
tory evidence on this point. 

Held (4}: That if Seti contracted a Christian marriage his estate 
would devolve according to Roman-Dutch Law, prescription 
would operate and the Native Commissioner would have no 
jurisdiction to hold the inquiry in terms of Section 3 (3) in 
so far as his estate is concerned. If he contracted a custo­
mary union his estate would devolve according to Native 
custom and prescription would not apply. 
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Case referred to: 
Lequoa v. Sipamla 1944 N.A.C. (C. & 0 .) 85. 

Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, Victoria East. 

Sleigh (President) delivering the Judgment of the Court:-

The dispute in this case concerns the devolution of two perpe­
tual quitrent garden lots, each two morgen in extent, situare in 
Ntselemanzi Native Village (Lovedale), within the Municipal 
area of Alice, Victoria East District. The lots are:-

(a) Garden Lot No. 26 granted to Nomenene on 23/7/1858, 
and 

(b) Garden Lot No. 7 granted to Seti Rololo on 1/11/1875. 

The grants appear to have been made under the Cathcart 
Proclamation of the 6th August, 1813. 

There are two claimants to the lots, namely Petwell Koloti 
on behalf of a minor, Morris Koloti and Sinah Somyo. 

The Assistant Native Commissioner held an inquiry in terms 
of Section 3 (3) of G.N. No. 1664 of 1929 and held-

(1) that Temba Puru is heir to Garden Lot No. 26, and 
(2) that Fikile Mancapa is heir to Garden Lot No. 7 by reason 

of acquisitive prescription. 

Although the Native Commissioner rejected the claims of both 
claimants only Petwell Koloti has appealed. 

The lots are still registered in the names of the original grantees 
who died more than 50 years ago. We are therefore entitled to 
assume that the estates of the grantees were never reported to 
the Master of the Supreme Court. If they had been so reported 
the lots would have been transferred to the rightful heirs long 
ago. If we are correct in our assumption then, in vi·ew of the 
provisions of Section 23 (11) of Act No. 38 of 1927, the devolu­
tion of the estates is governed by Section 2 of G.N. No. 1664 of 
1929 as amended. It should be noted that the lots being immov­
able property in a Municipal area, do not fall within the purview 
of sub-sections (1) and (2) of Section 23 of the Act. 

It is common cause that Nomenene and Seti were related but 
the witnesses disagree as to how they were related. Petwell and 
his witnesses maintain that they were mother and son, whereas 
Sinah and her witnesses contend that they were sister and brother. 
The Native Commissioner accepted the latter contention and 
awarded Nomenene's lot to Temba Puru, the great grandson of 
Puru who, he found, married Nomenene; and Seti's lot to Fikile 
Mencapa, the son of Willie, the son of Maria who was the 
daughter of Seti, on the ground that Willie had acquired the lot 
by acquisitive prescription. 

None of the witnesses is able to give first-hand evidence on 
the point whether Seti was the brother or son of Nomene. It 
is clear that they rely on what they were told. The probabilities. 
however, indicate that they were mother and son. It is clear 
that there was a great disparity in their ages. Nomenene was 
obviously already a widow when she was granted the Lot No. 
26 in 1858. Lettie Maqoma who was born in 1872, says that 
Nomenene was a very old woman when she died during the 
Ncayicibi war (1877-78), i.e. 20 years after she acquired the lot. 
She must therefore have been an elderly woman in 1858. Seti 
died about 1897-8 and even if he died at a very great age as 
Nomenene did, he mu:t have been born about 20 years after 
Nomenene. Moreover, it is improbable, if they were sister and 
brother, that a lot would have been granted to her 17 years 
before one was allotted to her brother. In our opinion the 
probabilities support Petwell's contention, and her estate would 
therefore devolve on her eldest son, Seti, and it follows that 
Seti's heir or heirs are entitled to both lots. 
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The next question to be decided is who is Seti's heir. To 
determine this it is essential to know how he was married to his 
wife, Nyilinga. Although David Maqoma says that Seti was 
married according to Native Custom, it is clear from his evidence 
that he was only about six years of age when Lot No. 7 was 
allotted to Seti in 1875 and the probabiliJies are that Seti was 
then already married. David's evidence in this respect is therefore 
inconclusive. He goes on to say that Seti was a strong Church 
man and an elder of the Church. This is supported by other 
witnesses. Since he was an elder of the Church it is likely that 
he contracted a Christian marriage before he was appointed an 
elder, although it is possible that he was, prior to this, married 
according to Native Custom. There is no evidence that the 
Church registers were searched in order to determine whether 
Seti had contracted a Christian marriage. It therefore becomes 
necessary to return the proceeding\ to the Assistant Native Com­
missioner for inquiry into this aspect of the case. If it is found 
that Seti was married according to Christian rites then the Native 
Commission·cr would have no jurisdiction to hold an inquiry in 
terms of Section 3 (3) in so far as Seti's estate in concerned. 
His estate would devolve according to Roman-Dutch Law and 
prescription would operate if the circumsJances justify it. 

If no record of Seti's marriage can be traced in the Church 
records then it may be assumed that he was married according 
to Native Custom. His estate will then devolve according to 
Native law and prescription would not operate, since this principle 
is unknow to, and not applicable to actions arising out of 
Native Law and Custom [see Lequoa v. Sipamla 1944 N.A.C. 
(C. & 0.) 85, ami S~!ction 11 (4) of Act No. 18 of 1943]. 

As is have indicated the Native Commissioner has awarded 
th.-: lots to two persons who were not claimants and are not 
parties in this appeal. It is po~sible that they may lay no claim 
to the lots, but they are entitled to be heard. Then there are 
others who may have a good claim. especially if Seti's estate 
devolves according to Roman-Dutch Law. 

In the circumstances the appeal will be allowed, the findings 
of the Native Commissioner are set aside and the record of the 
proceedings i~ returned to him to enable Temba Puru, Fikile 
Mancapa a nd any other person to lodge their claims, if any, and 
to deliver a fresh finding. There will be no order as to costs in 
this Court as Sinah has not opposed the appeal. 

For Appellant: 1\fr. R. H. Randcll, King William's Town. 

For Respondent: In default. 

SOUTHERN NATIVE APPEAL COURT. 
N.A.C. CASE No. 18 /52. 

KWINA~A AND A~OTIIER 1'. LENGESI Al'<D OTHERS. 

KtNO WtLLIAM's TowN: 28th March, 1952. Before Sleigh, 
President; Pike and Davis, Members of the Court. 

COl\1MON LA \V. 
Native Appeal Case-Defamation-The words as a whole are 

defamatory per se and were understood i11 a defamatory se!tse­
The defl'lt ce of fair comme11t must fai/-Damages-Appellmtts 
awarded £80. 
Summary: Appellants sued respondents for £200 as damages 

for defamation alleging that in a card printed. at the order 
of respondents. defendants wrongfully and unlawfully 
published a malicious and defamatory statement concerning 
appellants. That the words were understood to mean that 
appellants were traitors to their people and that they commit-
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ted a breach of trust and acted mala fide against the interest 
of the people. Defendants deny that the words complained 
of are defamatory and that they were understood to mean 
any of the imputations alleged. The Native Commissioner 
held that the words were not defamatory per se and appel­
lants appealed. 

Held: 
(1) That the words complained of are as a whole defamatory 

per se. 
(2) That according to the attitude adopted by the mass of 

people it is reasonable to conclude that a~ least some of 
them understood the words in a defamatory sense. 

(3) That the defence of fair comment must fail since the 
comment is based on untrue facts. 

(4) That nominal damages will not console the hurt done to 
appellants. 

The appeal succeeds. 
Cases referred to: 

New Age Press, Ltd. & Ano. v. O'Keefe, 1947 (1) S.A.L.R. 
at page 315. 

Crawford v. Albu, 1917, A.D. page 102. 
Appeal from the Court of Native Commissioner, East London. 
Pike (Member), delivering the judgment of the Court:­
Appellants, who were plaintiffs in the Court below, sued 

respondents for £200 for defamation. In the particulars of claim 
it is alleged that appellants were formerley Members of the 
Joint Location Advisory Board of East London and that res­
pondents were officials of the Congress Youth League; that in 
November, 1950 and at a meeting of the Board at which appel­
lants were present, a proposal by the Housing and Non-European 
Affairs Committee of the East London Municipality to impose a 
lodger free of 2s. per lodger on all lodgers residing in the Native 
Locations was discussed and that appellants voted against the 
proposal. It is further alleged in the particulars as follows:-

" 4. During or about April, 1951, and in a card printed by 
the East London Daily Dispatch, Limited, at the order of 
defendants, defendants wrongfully and unlawfully published 
the following malicious and defamatory statement of and 
concerning plaintiffs in the Xosa language:-

CONGRESS YOUTH LEAGUE. 
AZIBATALWA I 2s. 
I COUNCIL MA YIZIBIZE I 2s. 
KU KWINANA (B.A.)-MNGQIKANA 
Aboyelisele inkedama Zase Africa 

Mayibuye, Mayibuye i Africa. 
A true translation whereof in the English language is: 

CONGRESS YOUTH LEAGUE. 
2s. not being paid 
The Council must demand the 2s. from 
Kwinana (B.A.)-Mngqikana, who have 
betrayed the orphans of Africa. 

Africa must come to being. 
5. By the said words set out in paragraph four, defendants 

meant and were understood to mean that plaintiffs were 
traitors to their peolpe, that they committed a breach of 
trust and acted mala fide against the interests of their 
people." · 

To these averments respondents pleaded as follows: -
.. 4. (a) Defendants deny that the words complained of are 

defamatory and/or that they bear the meaning alleged in 
plaintiff's translation of them into English and put plaintiff 
to the proof thereof. 
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(b) Defendants deny that the said words mean and/or 
were understood to mean any of the imputations alleged or 
that if any such imputation was conveyed, that it was defama· 
tory of plaintiffs and put plaintiffs to the proof thereof." 

The Assistant Native Commissioner held that the words com­
plained of are not defamatory per se and that he was unable to 
read the words the innuendo set out in the particulars of claim. 
He entered judgment for respondents with costs and appellants 
have appealed on the following grounds:-

1. That the Magistrate erred in finding that the words con­
tained in the card published by the defendants were not 
per se defamatory of the plaintiffs. 

2. That even if the said words are not per se defamatory the 
Magistrate erred in finding that they did not bear a 
secondary meaning which was defamatory, in law, of the 
plaintiffs. 

The first question for decision is the correct meaning of the 
words "abeyelisele" and "inkedama" appearing on the card. 
The witnesses are all in substantial agreement with the literal 
translation but differ in regard to the meaning attached to the 
words by the ordinary Xosa speaking native. The literal trans· 
lation of the word "abeyelisele" viz.; "to cause to sink into a 
hole, river, snare or temptation" conveys no sense in relation 
to the context of the words on the card. It therefore becomes 
necessary to examine the evidence of the various witnesses, not 
for the purpose of finding out whether they placed a defamatory 
meaning upon their interpretations, but to ascertain the correct 
English meaning of the words. 

First appellant, who is a teacher and holds the degree of 
Bachelor of Arts, says that the word "abeyelisele" means "to 
betray" and has the same meaning as "ukungcatsha" "to betray" 
and that read in the context on the card it does not mean "to 
cause to sink, to let down". In regard to the word "inkedama ". 
literally translated as "orphans", he states that it means "every 
African in this country who is hopeless, helpless and down and 
out and who are looking to me for guidance ". 

Gibson Maneli, who gave evidence for appellants and who 
was a teacher and has been an attorney's interpreter for the past 
25 years, says that "abeyelisele" is a very strong word; that 
it is used when two people come to a krantz or deep waters and 
one pushes the other in to be drowned or pushes from behind 
over the krantz. He says the words "elelisele •• and "ukung­
catshe" mean the same thing and that the former word, as used 
in the context, means "betray" because it must be read in 
conjunction with the other words on the card and not by itself. 

The only witness called by the defence was Davidson Jabavu, 
a retired professor in bantu languages. It is clear that both he 
and Maneli have no interest in this case. In his evidence in chief 
he translates the card "The 2s. are not being paid. The Council 
should require them from Kwinana B.A. and Mngqikana who 
have caused the orphans of Africa to sink down into something 
like a hole or mud or water. Let Africa come back". He says 
that the word "abeyelisele" implies that the thing or person 
sinks out of sight. He denies that the word means betray and 
says that the word "ukungcatsha" is a much stronger word 
meaning betray. In cross-examination he admits that the Xosa 
language has developed since Kropf's dictionary was published in 
I916 and states that the card as a whole means "let the Council 
demand the 2s. from these men who have done down the poor 
of Africa who ought to be pitied". He stated that he fully 
understood the implication of the words "done down" but goes 
on to say that these words do not impute dishonesty or improper 
conduct. Continuing he states that the words convey 'something 
less than what Judas did to our Lord·. I would say that the 
words on the card are unpleasant". 
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The Assistant Native Commissioner accepted the literal trans­
lation given by Professor Jabavu in his evidence in chief but in 
our opinion having regard ·to the evidence as a whole, the 
correct translation is: " The 2s. will not be paid. Let the 
Council demand the fee from Kwinana B.A. and Mngqikana who 
have betrayed the poor of Africa who are helpless and ought to 
be pitied. Let Africa come back." 

Th<: test for determining whether the above statement is 
defamatory or not is whether under the circumstances in which 
the statemen~ is published, reasonable men to whom the publica­
tion is made, would be likely to understand it in a defamatory 
sense (The Law of Delict by McKerron, 3rd edition, page 206). 

The word "betray", according to the various meanings ascribed 
in the dictionary, may be used in an innocent or defamatory 
sense. The fact that a word can have an innocent meaning does 
not necessary preclude it from having defamatory meaning. The 
word cannot be divorced from its context. The document must 
be taken as a whole. (The Law of Defamation in South Africa, 
by Nathan, page 34.) Among the meanings of the word furnished 
by Webster's dictionary is the following:-

"To prove faithless or treacherous to, as to a trust or 
one who trusts; to be false or recreant to, to fail or desert 
in a moment of need; as to betray a friend or cause." 

The Oxford Dictionary gives among others, the following 
meaning:-

.. To be or prove false to (a trust or him who trus:s one) 
to be disloyal to, to disappoint the hopes and expectations of. 
To prove false, to let go weakly or basely." 

Reading the word betray with the o ther words on the card, 
i.e. "Let the Council demand the fee from Kwinana and 
Mngqikana who have" and "the poor of Africa who are help­
less and ought to be pitied", we are of opinion that the words 
as a whole are defamatory per se. [See New Age Press, Ltd., 
& Ano. v. O'Keefe, 1947 (1) S.A.L.R., page 315]. 

Having come to this conclusion it is unnecessary to decide 
whether the words bear the innuendo assigned to them in para­
graph 5 of appellant's declaration. But in our opinion the words 
are capable of such a meaning. The appellants were elected as 
Members of the Advisory Board to represent the interests of the 
inhabitants of the municipal locations. 

The evidence shows that the Municipality decided to impose a 
lodger's fee and to place the matter before the Advisory Board 
for its comments. The appellants voted against the imposition 
of the fee. Professor Jabavu in his evidence says that the words 
on the card conveyed that the appellants had done down the 
people and that they were responsible for the imposition of the 
fee. The allegation that appellants had actually imposed the 
fee, thereby having done down the people they were elected to 
protect, imputes a dishonest breach of trust and therefore , that 
they acted mala fide. 

The next point to be considered is whether the persons to whom 
the words were published understood them in the sence set out 
above. The evidence on this point is overwhelming. First 
appellant says it would be understood from the words on the 
card that he had been guilty of a breach of trust, that he had 
done something against the interests of the people and that he 
had done so in bad faith. This is supported by the uncontra­
ditced facts that the children a t the school where he teaches, 
shouted "traitor" at him and that at public meetings which he 
attended, the public would not allow him to speak as they 
accused him of being a traitor. Maneli, who, be it remembered, 
is a completely impartial witness, states tha t the words con­
veyed to him tha t the appellants are a danger to the people and 
that they had done something to oppress the people. Jabavu, 
who is also an impartial witness, called by the defence, states 
that the effect of these words would -lessen the esteem in which 
a public man is held, to some degree. It is not disputed in 
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evidence that the respondents distributed these cards to some 
4,000 people who were demonstrating against the imposition of 
this fee. In view of the attitude taken up by this mass of people 
it is reasonable to conclude that at least some of them understood 
the words in the defamatory sense indicated. Moreover, there 
is no evidence to the contrary. 

The alternative defence of fair comment raised by respondents, 
and which was not dealt with in the Court below, remains to be 
considered, Council for both parties having requested this Court 
to dispose of the issue. It will be convenient to set out the 
relevant pleadings in this connection. Paragraph 3 of the appel­
lant's declaration reads as follows:-

"During or about November, 1950, and at a meeting of 
the said Joint Location Advisory Board at which plaintiffs 
were present a proposal of the Housing and Non-European 
Affairs Committee of the East London Municipality to impose 
a lodger's fee of 2s. per lodger on all lodgers residing in 
the Native locations was discussed. Plaintiffs voted against 
the imposition of such a lodger's fee." 

Respondents replied in their plea-

.. Ad para 3.-Save that defendants have no knowledge that 
plaintiffs voted against the imposition of the said lodger's 
fee and put plaintiffs to the proof thereof the allegations 
in this paragraph are admitted." 

and in paragraph 4 (c) stated:-

"Alternatively and in any event defendants plead and state 
that the abovesaid statement was a fair and bona fide com­
ment on a matter of public interest, namely, the discussions 
and proceedings of the meeting referred to in para. 3 of 
plaintiffs' summons and the subsequent imposition by the 
East London Municipality of a lodger's fee of 2s. per lodger 
and the storm of public protest, agitation, controversy and 
public demonstration, in or about April, 1951, which followed 
the announcement of the abovesaid imposition." 

There are three essentials of this defence as laid down in 
Crawford v. Albu, 1917, A.D., page 102. 

(a) The statement must appear to be recognisable to the ordinary 
reasonable man as comment and not as a statement of 
fact. 

(b) The comment must be fair. 

(c) The facts commented upon must be truly stated and must be 
matters of public interest. 

In the above case Innes, C.J. said "then the superstructure of 
comment must rest upon a firm foundation and it must be clearly 
distinguishable from that foundation. It must relate to a matter 
of public interest and it must be based upon facts expressly 
stated or clearly indicated and admitted or proved to be true. 
There can be no fair comment upon facts which are not true". 

In the present action the respondents have failed to state 
expressly or to clearly indicate, in their plea, the facts upon which 
the publication was fair comment. On the contrary, the plea 
states that respondents have no knowledge that appellants voted 
against the imposition of the lodger's fee, yet the publication of 
the defamatory words conveyed to the public that appellants 
were responsible for the imposition of this fee and this has been 
proved to be untrue. This defence must therefore fail. 
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lt remains for the Court to assess the damages to be awarded 
to appellants. They are both responsible members of the native 
community and hold positions above that of the average urban 
native. Respondents are all office bearers of the Congress Youth 
League and, it would seem, are not without influence among 
the native community. The publication was made at a public 
gathering in the municipal location at which over 4,01:>0 persons 
were present and at other public places. The circumstances 
indicate therefore that nominal damages will not adequately con­
sole the hurst done to the appellants. Taking all the circum­
stances into account the appellants are awarded damages in an 
amount of £80. 

Argument was heard on the 24th March, 1952, and judgment 
reserved until today. Mr. Stanford who represents Council for 
appellants applies for costs under items 4 and 5 of the 'tariff 
provided in Government Notice No. 2887 of the 9th November, 
1951, to be increased to £4. 4s. each owing to the length of the 
record and the legal issues involved. Counsel for respondents is 
not represented today. 

The application is granted. 

The appeal is allowed with costs and the judgment of the 
Court below is altered to one for plaintiffs for the sum of £80 
and costs. 

For Appellant: Mr. L. Kaplan, East London. 

For Respondent: Miss Advocate E. Egan, instructed by Mr. 
W. M. Tsotsi, Lady Frere. 




